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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements,” as that term is defined under the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (“PSLRA”), Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements include statements about our expectations, beliefs or intentions regarding
our product development efforts, business, financial condition, results of operations, strategies or prospects. You can identify forward-
looking statements by the fact that these statements do not relate strictly to historical or current matters. Rather, forward-looking statements
relate to anticipated or expected events, activities, trends or results as of the date they are made. Because forward-looking statements relate
to matters that have not yet occurred, these statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to
differ materially from any future results expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Many factors could cause our actual
activities or results to differ materially from the activities and results anticipated in forward-looking statements. These factors include those
described below and in “Item 1A-Risk Factors” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, and described
from time to time in our other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Except as required by law, we do not undertake
any obligation to update forward-looking statements. We intend that all forward-looking statements be subject to the safe-harbor provisions
of the PSLRA. These forward-looking statements are only predictions and reflect our views as of the date they are made with respect to
future events and financial performance.

Risks and uncertainties, the occurrence of which could adversely affect our business, include the following:
* We have a history of operating losses and we do not expect to become profitable in the near future.
*  Our technologies are in an early stage of development and are unproven.

*  Our business is substantially dependent on our ability to develop, launch and generate revenue from our pharmaceutical and
diagnostic programs.

*  Our research and development activities may not result in commercially viable products.

*  The results of previous clinical trials may not be predictive of future results, and our current and planned clinical trials may not
satisfy the requirements of the FDA or other non-U.S. regulatory authorities.

* We may require substantial additional funding, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all.

*  We may finance future cash needs primarily through public or private offerings, debt financings or strategic collaborations,
which may dilute your stockholdings in the Company.

» If our competitors develop and market products that are more effective, safer or less expensive than our future product
candidates, our commercial opportunities will be negatively impacted.

» The regulatory approval process is expensive, time consuming and uncertain and may prevent us or our collaboration partners
from obtaining approvals for the commercialization of some or all of our product candidates.

» Failure to recruit and enroll patients for clinical trials may cause the development of our product candidates to be delayed.

» Even if we obtain regulatory approvals for our product candidates, the terms of approvals and ongoing regulation of our
products may limit how we manufacture and market our product candidates, which could materially impair our ability to
generate anticipated revenues.

»  We may not meet regulatory quality standards applicable to our manufacturing and quality processes.

* Even if we receive regulatory approval to market our product candidates, the market may not be receptive to our products.
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*  The loss of Phillip Frost, M.D., our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, could have a material adverse effect on our business
and product development.

» If we fail to attract and retain key management and scientific personnel, we may be unable to successfully develop or
commercialize our product candidates.

* In the event that we successfully evolve from a company primarily involved in development to a company also involved in
commercialization, we may encounter difficulties in managing our growth and expanding our operations successfully.

» If we fail to acquire and develop other products or product candidates, at all or on commercially reasonable terms, we may be
unable to diversify or grow our business.

*  We have no experience manufacturing our pharmaceutical product candidates other than at our Israeli, Mexican, and Spanish
facilities and we therefore rely on third parties to manufacture and supply our pharmaceutical product candidates, and would
need to meet various standards necessary to satisfy FDA regulations if and when we commence manufacturing.

*  We currently have no pharmaceutical or diagnostic marketing, sales or distribution capabilities other than in Chile, Mexico,
Spain, and Brazil for sales in those countries and our active pharmaceutical ingredients (“APIs”) business in Israel, and the sales
force for our laboratory business based in Nashville, Tennessee. If we are unable to develop our sales and marketing and
distribution capability on our own or through collaborations with marketing partners, we will not be successful in
commercializing our pharmaceutical product candidates.

» The success of our business will be heavily dependent on the success of Phase 3 clinical trials for CTAP101 Capsules and
Fermagate Tablets.

» Independent clinical investigators and contract research organizations that we engage to conduct our clinical trials may not be
diligent, careful or timely.

» The success of our business is dependent on the actions of our collaborative partners.

*  Our license agreement with TESARO, Inc. (“TESARO”) is important to our business. If TESARO does not successfully develop
and commercialize rolapitant, our business could be adversely affected.

» If we are unable to obtain and enforce patent protection for our products, our business could be materially harmed.

*  We do not have an exclusive arrangement in place with Dr. Tom Kodadek with respect to technology or intellectual property that
may be material to our business.

» If we are unable to protect the confidentiality of our proprietary information and know-how, the value of our technology and
products could be adversely affected.

*  We rely heavily on licenses from third parties.

*  We license patent rights to certain of our technology from third-party owners. If such owners do not properly maintain or
enforce the patents underlying such licenses, our competitive position and business prospects will be harmed.

*  Our commercial success depends significantly on our ability to operate without infringing the patents and other proprietary
rights of third parties.

* Adverse results in material litigation matters or governmental inquiries could have a material adverse effect upon our business
and financial condition.

*  Medicare prescription drug coverage legislation and future legislative or regulatory reform of the health care system may affect
our ability to sell our products and provide our services profitably.
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» Failure to obtain and maintain regulatory approval outside the United States will prevent us from marketing our product
candidates abroad.

*  We may not have the funding available to pursue acquisitions.

* Acquisitions may disrupt our business, distract our management, may not proceed as planned, and may also increase the risk of
potential third party claims and litigation.

*  We may encounter difficulties in integrating acquired businesses.
* Non-U.S. governments often impose strict price controls, which may adversely affect our future profitability.

» Political and economic instability in Europe and Latin America and political, economic, and military instability in Israel could
adversely impact our operations.

»  We are subject to fluctuations in currency exchange rates in connection with our international businesses.

*  Our business may become subject to legal, economic, political, regulatory and other risks associated with international
operations.

*  The market price of our Common Stock may fluctuate significantly.

» Directors, executive officers, principal stockholders and affiliated entities own a significant percentage of our capital stock, and
they may make decisions that you may not consider to be in your best interests or in the best interests of our stockholders.

* Compliance with changing regulations concerning corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses.

» If we are unable to satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as they apply to us, or our
internal controls over financial reporting are not effective, the reliability of our financial statements may be questioned and our
Common Stock price may suffer.

*  We may be unable to maintain our listing on the NYSE, which could cause our stock price to fall and decrease the liquidity of
our Common Stock.

»  Future issuances of Common Stock and hedging activities may depress the trading price of our Common Stock.

* Provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law could discourage an acquisition of us by a third party, even if the
acquisition would be favorable to you.

*  We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the “Company”, “OPKO”, “we”,

13 LIS

our”, “ours”, and “us” refer to OPKO Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation, including our wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Item 1. Financial Statements

O PKO Health, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(unaudited)

(In thousands except share and per share data)

March 31, 2013(1) December 31, 2012(D
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 181,596 $ 27,361
Accounts receivable, net 21,170 21,162
Inventory, net 23,022 22,261
Prepaid expenses and other current assets _ 11,895 _ 7,873
Total current assets 237,683 78,657
Property, equipment, and investment properties, net 16,750 16,526
Intangible assets, net 82,354 84,238
In-process research and development 203,030 11,546
Goodwill 82,709 80,450
Investments, net 28,546 15,636
Other assets _ 2,863 _ 2,777
Total assets § 653,935 i 289,830
LIABILITIES, SERIES D PREFERRED STOCK, AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 11,287 $ 10,200
Accrued expenses 26,673 24,656
Current portion of lines of credit and notes payable _ 20,264 _ 17,526
Total current liabilities 58,224 52,382
3.00% convertible senior notes, net of discount and estimated fair value of embedded
derivatives 196,421 —
Other long-term liabilities, principally contingent consideration and deferred tax liabilities _ 79,512 _ 34,168
Total long-term liabilities _ 275,933 _ 34,168
Total liabilities 334,157 86,550
Commitments and contingencies
Series D preferred stock - $0.01 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued
or outstanding at March 31, 2013 and 1,129,032 shares issued and outstanding
(liquidation value of $30,595) at December 31, 2012 — 24,386
Equity
Series A Preferred stock - $0.01 par value, 4,000,000 shares authorized; no shares
issued or outstanding at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively — —
Series C Preferred Stock - $0.01 par value, 500,000 shares authorized; no shares
issued or outstanding at March 31, 2013 or December 31, 2012 — —
Common Stock - $0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized; 338,828,976 and
305,560,763 shares issued at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively 3,388 3,056
Treasury stock - 2,293,056 shares at both March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (7,457) (7,457)
Additional paid-in capital 739,778 565,201
Accumulated other comprehensive income 8,093 7,356
Accumulated deficit __(422,985) _ (388,770)
Total shareholders’ equity _ 320,817 _ 179,386
Noncontrolling interests _ (1,039) _ (492)
Total equity __ 319,778 _ 178,894
Total liabilities, Series D Preferred Stock, and equity § 653,935 i 289,830

(1) Asof March 31,2013 and December 31, 2012, total assets include $5.7 million and $5.6 million, respectively, and total liabilities
include $6.2 million and $5.5 million, respectively related to SciGen (I.L.) Ltd, (“SciGen”), a consolidated variable interest entity.
SciGen’s consolidated assets are owned by SciGen and SciGen’s consolidated liabilities are those as to which there is no recourse
against us. Refer to Note 5.

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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OPKO Health, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

For the three months ended March 31,

2013 2012

Revenues:

Products $ 15,527 $ 8,639

Revenue from services 3,092 87

Revenue from transfer of intellectual property _ 12,757 _ 51

Total revenues 31,376 8,777

Cost of revenues, excluding amortization of intangible assets _ 11,757 _ 4,987
Gross margin, excluding amortization of intangible assets 19,619 3,790
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 12,424 4,671

Research and development 9,910 4,831

Contingent consideration 1,344 1,144

Amortization of intangible assets _ 2,714 _ 1,991
Total operating expenses _ 26,392 _ 12,637
Loss from operations (6,773) (8,847)
Other income and (expense), net:

Interest income 59 27

Interest expense (2,897) (351)

Fair value changes of derivative instruments, net (23,549) 1,117

Other income, net _ 2,331 _ 181
Other income and (expense), net _ (24,056) _ 974
Loss before income taxes and investment losses (30,829) (7,873)
Income tax provision 43 215
Loss before investment losses (30,872) (8,088)
Loss from investments in investees _ (3,890) _ (523)
Net loss (34,762) (8,611)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests _ (547) _ —
Net loss attributable to common shareholders before preferred stock dividend (34,215) (8,611)
Preferred stock dividend _ (420) _ (560)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders $ (34,635) $ 9,171)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.11) $ (0.03)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 312,932,561 297,543,066

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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OPKO Health, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(unaudited)
(In thousands)
For the three months ended March 31,
2013 2012

Net loss attributable to common shareholders $ (34,635) $ 9,171)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net:

Change in foreign currency translation 323 1,390

Available for sale investments:

Change in other net unrealized gains, net _ 414 _ 109

Comprehensive loss $_ (33,898) $__ (7,672)

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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OPKO Health, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
For the three months ended March 31, 2013

Common Stock Treasury Additional Other
Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Noncontrolling
Shares Dollars Shares Dollars Capital Income Deficit Interests

Total

Balance at December 31,

2012 305,560,763 $3,056 (2,293,056) $(7,457) $565,201 $ 7,356 $(388,770) $ (492)
Equity-based compensation

expense — — — — 5,205 — — —
Exercise of Common Stock

options 433,250 4 — — 901 — — —
Exercise of Common Stock

warrants 962,929 9 — — 81 — — —
Series D Preferred Stock

dividend — — — — (3,015) — — —
Conversion of Series D

Preferred Stock 11,290,320 113 — — 24,273 — — —
Issuance of Common Stock

in connection with

Silcon acquisition at

$6.73 per share 64,684 1 — — 435 — — —
Issuance of Common Stock

in connection with

Cytochroma acquisition

at $7.16 per share 20,517,030 205 — — 146,697 — — —
Net loss attributable

common shareholders

before preferred stock

dividend for the three

months ended March 31,

2013 — — — — — — (34,215) —
Net loss attributable to

noncontrolling interests

for the three months

ended March 31, 2013 — — — — — — — (547)
Other comprehensive

income — — — — — 737 — —

$178,894

5,205

905

90
(3,015)

24,386

436

146,902

(34,215)

(547)

737

Balance at March 31, 2013 338,828,976 $3,388 (2,293,056) $(7.,457) $739,778 $ 8,093 $(422,985) § (1,039)

$319,778
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OPKO Health, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(unaudited)
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash interest on convertible senior notes
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Losses from investments in investees
Equity-based compensation — employees and non-employees
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts
Provision for inventory obsolescence
Revenue from receipt of equity
Realized gain on investments available for sale
Change in fair value of derivatives instruments
Change in fair value of contingent consideration
Deferred income tax benefit
Changes in assets and liabilities of continuing operations, net of the
effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Foreign currency measurement
Accrued expenses

Cash used in operating activities of continuing operations
Cash provided in operating activities of discontinued operations

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investments in investees
Proceeds from sale of investments available for sale
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash
Purchase of marketable securities
Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of 3.00% convertible senior notes, net (including related parties)
Payment of Series D dividends, including related parties
Proceeds from the exercise of Common Stock options and warrants
Borrowings on lines of credit
Repayments of lines of credit and capital lease obligations

Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid
Income taxes refunded
RXi common stock received
Non-cash financing:
Shares issued upon the conversion of:
Series D Preferred Stock
Common Stock warrants, net exercised
Issuance of Common Stock to acquire:
Cytochroma
Silcon

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

For the three months ended

March 31,
2013 2012
$ (34,762) $ (8,611)
3,429 2,328
1,303 —
145 —
3,890 523
5,205 1,180
381 (151)
939 255
(12,540) (51)
(2,347) —
23,549 (1,117)
1,344 1,144
98 —
(558) (2,691)
(1,439) (4,433)
(2,570) (481)
71 7
(103) @71)
(340) (458)
(440) 1,253
(14,745) (11,574)
— 75
(14,745)  (11,499)
(2,500)  (2,700)
2,528 —
78 —
_ (14,997)
(755) (175)
(649)  (17,872)
170,184 —
(3,015) —
995 31
8,428 10,337
6,951)  (5,490)
169,641 4,878
(12) 95
154235  (24,398)
27,361 71,516
$ 181,596 $ 47,118
$ 242 $ 177
$  (118) $ (6
$ 12,500 § —
$ 24386 § —
$ 815 § —
$146902 $§ —
$ 43 $ —



10



Table of Contents

OPKO Health, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)

NOTE 1 BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION

We are a multi-national biopharmaceutical and diagnostics company that seeks to establish industry-leading positions in large and
rapidly growing medical markets by leveraging our discovery, development and commercialization expertise and our novel and proprietary
technologies. We are developing a range of solutions to diagnose, treat and prevent various conditions, including molecular diagnostics
tests, laboratory developed tests, point-of-care tests, and proprietary pharmaceuticals and vaccines. We plan to commercialize these
solutions on a global basis in large and high growth markets, including emerging markets.

We own established pharmaceutical platforms in Spain, Chile and Mexico, which are generating revenue and which we expect to
generate positive cash flow and facilitate future market entry for our products currently in development. In addition, we recently established
pharmaceutical operations in Brazil. We also operate a specialty active pharmaceutical ingredients (“APIs”’) manufacturer in Israel, which
we expect to play a valuable role in the development of our pipeline of molecules and compounds for our proprietary molecular diagnostic
and therapeutic products. We operate a laboratory business with laboratories certified under the Clinical Laboratory Improvement
Amendments of 1988 (“CLIA”), that has a strong presence in the U.S. urologic pathology market, and will provide us with a platform to
commercialize certain of our novel diagnostics tests currently in development. We operate a development stage pharmaceutical company,
with operations in the United States and Canada, which is engaged in the development of a vitamin D prohormone to treat secondary
hyperparathyroidism (known as “CTAP 101 Capsules”), and of a non-absorbed phosphate binder to treat hyperphosphatemia in dialysis
patients. We also own an interest in a biopharmaceutical company that develops, manufactures and markets recombinant human health care
biotechnology derived products in Israel and whose principal marketed product is a novel third generation Hepatitis B vaccine currently
being commercialized in Israel, India and Hong Kong.

We are incorporated in Delaware and our principal executive offices are located in leased offices in Miami, Florida. We lease office
and lab space in Jupiter and Miramar, Florida, which is where our molecular diagnostics research and development and oligonucleotide
research and development operations are based, respectively. We lease office, manufacturing and warehouse space in Woburn,
Massachusetts for our point-of-care diagnostics business, and in Nesher, Israel for our API business. We lease laboratory and office space
in Nashville, Tennessee and Burlingame, California for our CLIA-certified laboratory business, and we lease office space in Bannockburn,
Illinois, and Markham, Ontario and laboratory space in Toronto, Ontario for the Cytochroma business. Our Chilean operations are located
in leased offices and warehouse facilities in Santiago. Our Mexican operations are based in owned offices, an owned manufacturing facility
and a leased warehouse facility in Guadalajara. Our Spanish operations are based in owned offices in Barcelona, in an owned
manufacturing facility in Banyoles and a leased warehouse facility in Palol de Revardit. Our Brazilian operations are located in leased
offices in Sao Paulo.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-
X. Accordingly, they do not include all information and notes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for
complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring adjustments) considered
necessary to present fairly the Company’s results of operations, financial position and cash flows have been made. The results of operations
and cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2013, are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations and cash flows that
may be reported for the remainder of 2013 or for future periods. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read
in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Reclassifications. Certain prior year amounts in the condensed consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform
with the 2013 presentation. Due to the acquisition of Prost-Data, Inc., a CLIA-certified laboratory business, (“OURLab”) in December
2012, we changed our segment presentation to include diagnostics as a reportable segment. As a result of this change in reportable
segments, we restated certain prior year amounts in the condensed consolidated financial statements to conform with the 2013 presentation.
These reclassifications had no impact on our results of operations. Refer to Note 12.

Principles of consolidation. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of OPKO
Health, Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiaries and variable interest entities (““VIEs”) in which we are deemed to be the primary beneficiary.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
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Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include short-term, interest-bearing instruments with original maturities of 90
days or less at the date of purchase. We also consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities at the date of purchase of 90
days or less as cash equivalents. These investments include money markets, bank deposits, certificates of deposit and U.S. treasury
securities.

Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (net realizable value). Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out
method. We consider such factors as the amount of inventory on hand, estimated time required to sell such inventories, remaining shelf-
life, and current market conditions to determine whether inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase price and the estimated fair value of the net
assets acquired when accounted for by the purchase method of accounting and arose from our acquisitions. Goodwill and other intangible
assets acquired in business combinations, licensing and other transactions at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were $368.1 million
and $176.2 million, respectively.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations, licensing and other transactions are recognized at the date of
acquisition at their respective fair values. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired is
recognized as goodwill. We determined the fair value of intangible assets, including in-process research and development (“IPR&D”),
using the “income method.”

Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment, or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be recoverable, on an enterprise level by assessing qualitative factors or performing a quantitative analysis in
determining whether it is more likely than not that its fair value exceeds the carrying value.

Fair value measurements. The carrying amounts of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate their fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Investments that are considered available for sale as of
March 31, 2013 are carried at fair value.

Short-term investments, which we invest in from time to time, include bank deposits, corporate notes, U.S. treasury securities and U.S.
government agency securities with original maturities of greater than 90 days and remaining maturities of less than one year. Long-term
investments include corporate notes, U.S. treasury securities and U.S. government agency securities with maturities greater than one year.

In evaluating the fair value information, considerable judgment is required to interpret the market data used to develop the estimates.
The use of different market assumptions and/or different valuation techniques may have a material effect on the estimated fair value
amounts. Accordingly, the estimates of fair value presented herein may not be indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a current
market exchange. Refer to Note 8.

Contingent consideration. Each period we revalue the contingent consideration obligations associated with certain acquisitions to
their fair value and record increases in the fair value as contingent consideration expense and decreases in the fair value as contingent
consideration income. Changes in contingent consideration result from changes in the assumptions regarding probabilities of successful
achievement of related milestones, the estimated timing in which the milestones are achieved and the discount rate used to estimate the fair
value of the liability. Contingent consideration may change significantly as our development programs progress, revenue estimates evolve
and additional data is obtained, impacting our assumptions. The assumptions used in estimating fair value require significant judgment. The
use of different assumptions and judgments could result in a materially different estimate of fair value which may have a material impact on
our results from operations and financial position.

Derivative financial instruments. We record derivative financial instruments on our balance sheet at their fair value and the changes
in the fair value are recognized in Fair value changes of derivatives instruments, net, when they occur, the only exception being derivatives
that qualify as hedges. For the derivative instrument to qualify as a hedge, we are required to meet strict hedge effectiveness and
contemporaneous documentation requirements at the initiation of the hedge and assess the hedge effectiveness on an ongoing basis over the
life of the hedge. At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, our forward contracts for inventory purchases did not meet the documentation
requirements to be designated as hedges. Accordingly, we recognize all changes in fair values in Fair value changes of derivatives
instruments, net. Refer to Note 8. Changes in fair value of our common stock option and common stock warrants holdings of our available
for sale investments are recognized in either Other income, net, or Other comprehensive loss. Refer to Note 8. In addition, based on specific
terms of the Notes (defined in Note 6) that we issued in January 2013, we have determined that those terms are considered to be embedded
derivatives and recorded them at fair value. Refer to Note 6. The changes in fair value of the embedded derivatives are recognized in Fair
value changes of derivatives instruments, net. Refer to Note 8.

Revenue recognition. Generally, we recognize revenue from product sales when goods are shipped and title and risk of loss transfer to
our customers. Our estimates for sales returns and allowances are based upon the historical patterns of product returns and allowances
taken, matched against the sales from which they originated, and management’s evaluation of specific factors that may
increase or decrease the risk of product returns.

Revenue for services is recognized on the accrual basis at the time test results are reported, which approximates when services are
provided. Services are provided to certain patients covered by various third-party payer programs including various managed care
organizations, as well as the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Billings for services under third-party payer programs are included in sales
net of allowances for contractual discounts and allowances for differences between the amounts billed and estimated program payment
amounts. Adjustments to the estimated payment amounts based on final settlement with the programs are recorded upon settlement as an



adjustment to revenue. For the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, revenue for services also includes $0.2 million and $0.1
million, respectively, of revenue related to our consulting agreement with Neovasc, Inc. (“Neovasc”) and to revenue related to molecular
diagnostics collaboration agreements. We recognize this revenue on a straight-line basis over the contractual term of the agreements.

Revenue from transfer of intellectual property includes revenue related to the sale, license or transfer of intellectual property such as
upfront license payments, license fees and milestone payments received through our license, collaboration and commercialization
agreements. We analyze our multiple-element arrangements to determine whether the elements can be separated and accounted for
individually as separate units of accounting.
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Non-refundable license fees for the out-license of our technology are recognized depending on the provisions of each agreement. We
recognize non-refundable upfront license payments as revenue upon receipt if the license has standalone value and the fair value of our
undelivered obligations, if any, can be determined. If the license is considered to have standalone value but the fair value of any of the
undelivered items cannot be determined, the license payments are recognized as revenue over the period of our performance for such
undelivered items or services. License fees with ongoing involvement or performance obligations are recorded as deferred revenue as
Accrued expenses or Other long-term liabilities, when received and generally are recognized ratably over the period of such performance
obligation only after both the license period has commenced and we have delivered the technology. The assessment of our obligations and
related performance periods requires significant management judgment. If an agreement contains research and development obligations, the
relevant time period for the research and development phase is based on management estimates and could vary depending on the outcome
of clinical trials and the regulatory approval process. Such changes could materially impact the revenue recognized, and as a result,
management reviews the estimates related to the relevant time period of research and development on a quarterly basis. For the three
months ended March 31, 2013, we recorded $12.8 million of Revenue from the transfer of intellectual property, of which $12.5 million
related to the sale of substantially all of our assets in the field of RNA interference to RXi Pharmaceuticals Corporation (“RXi”). Refer to
Note 5.

Revenue from milestone payments related to arrangements under which we have continuing performance obligations are recognized
as Other revenue upon achievement of the milestone only if all of the following conditions are met: the milestone payments are non-
refundable; there was substantive uncertainty at the date of entering into the arrangement that the milestone would be achieved; the
milestone is commensurate with either the vendor’s performance to achieve the milestone or the enhancement of the value of the delivered
item by the vendor; the milestone relates solely to past performance; and the amount of the milestone is reasonable in relation to the effort
expended or the risk associated with the achievement of the milestone. If any of these conditions are not met, the milestone payments are
not considered to be substantive and are, therefore, deferred and recognized as Other revenue over the term of the arrangement as we
complete our performance obligations.

Total deferred revenue included in Accrued expenses and Other long-term liabilities was $3.1 million and $1.9 million at March 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. We analyze accounts receivable and historical bad debt levels, customer credit worthiness and
current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts using the specific identification method. Our
reported net loss is directly affected by our estimate of the collectability of accounts receivable. The amount of allowance for doubtful
accounts was $0.7 million and $0.5 million at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Equity-based compensation. We measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments
based on the grant-date fair value of the award. That cost is recognized in the statement of operations over the period during which an
employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. We record excess tax benefits, realized from the exercise of stock
options as a financing cash inflow rather than as a reduction of taxes paid in cash flow from operations. Equity-based compensation
arrangements to non-employees are recorded at their fair value on the measurement date. The measurement of equity-based compensation
is subject to periodic adjustment as the underlying equity instruments vest. During the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, we
recorded $5.2 million and $1.2 million, respectively, of equity-based compensation expense.

Segment reporting. Our chief operating decision-maker (“CODM?”) is comprised of our executive management with the oversight of
our Board of Directors. Our CODM reviews our operating results and operating plans and makes resource allocation decisions on a
Company-wide or aggregate basis. We currently manage our operations in two reportable segments, pharmaceuticals and diagnostics. The
pharmaceutical segment consists of two operating segments, our (i) pharmaceutical research and development segment which is focused on
the research and development of pharmaceutical products, and vaccines, and (ii) the pharmaceutical operations we acquired in Chile,
Mexico, Israel, Spain and Brazil. The diagnostics segment consists of two operating segments, our (i) pathology operations we acquired
through the acquisition of OURLab and (ii) point-of-care and molecular diagnostics operations. There are no inter-segment sales. We
evaluate the performance of each segment based on operating profit or loss. There is no inter-segment allocation of interest expense and
income taxes.
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Variable interest entities. The consolidation of VIEs is required when an enterprise has a controlling financial interest. A controlling
financial interest in a VIE will have both of the following characteristics: (a) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most
significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and (b) the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. Refer to Note 5.

Investments. We have made strategic investments in development stage and emerging companies. We record these investments as
equity method investments or investments available for sale based on our percentage of ownership and whether we have significant
influence over the operations of the investees. For investments classified under the equity method of accounting, we record our
proportionate share of their losses in Losses from investments in investees in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations. Refer
to Note 5. For investments classified as available for sale, we record changes in their fair value as unrealized gain or loss in Other
comprehensive loss based on their closing price per share at the end of each reporting period. Refer to Note 5.

Recent accounting pronouncements. In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU”) 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, (“ASU 2013-
02). ASU 2013-02 requires the presentation of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income in either (1) the notes or
(2) the face of the financial statements. We adopted ASU 2013-02 for our first quarter ended March 31, 2013. The adoption of ASU 2013-
02 did not have a material impact in our condensed consolidated financial statements, but did require certain additional disclosures. Refer to
Note 7.

NOTE 3 LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing our net loss by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted loss per share is computed by dividing our net loss by the weighted average number of shares outstanding and the impact of all
dilutive potential common shares, primarily stock options. The dilutive impact of stock options and warrants is determined by applying the
“treasury stock” method. Potentially dilutive shares issuable pursuant to the Notes (defined in Note 6) were not included in the computation
of net loss per share for the three months ended March 31, 2013, because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Also, a total 0of 30,119,145 and 27,416,029 potential common shares have been excluded from the calculation of net loss per share for
the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, 1,511,693 Common Stock options and Common Stock warrants to purchase shares of
our Common Stock were exercised, resulting in the issuance of 1,396,179 shares of Common Stock. Of the 1,511,693 Common Stock
options and Common Stock warrants exercised, 115,514 shares were surrendered in lieu of a cash payment via the net exercise feature of
the warrant agreements.
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NOTE 4 COMPOSITION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENT CAPTIONS

March 31, December 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable $ 21,839 $ 21,636
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (669) (474)
$ 21,170 $ 21,162
Inventories, net
Finished products $ 19,177 $ 17,963
Work in-process 970 688
Raw materials 5,152 4,923
Less: inventory reserve (2,277) (1,313)
$ 23,022 $ 22261
Intangible assets, net
Technology $ 52,740 $ 52,810
Customer relationships 23,151 23,088
Product registrations 9,660 9,637
Tradename 3,757 3,746
Covenants not to compete 8,660 8,662
Other 1,242 367
Less: accumulated amortization (16,856) (14,072)
$ 82,354 $ 84,238
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable $ 1,789 $ 1,614
Deferred revenue 1,593 1,518
Clinical trials 184 50
Professional fees 601 675
Employee benefits 3,533 3,319
Deferred acquisition payments, net of discount 5,298 6,172
Contingent consideration 5,151 5,126
Other 8,524 6,182
$ 26,673 $ 24,656
Other long-term liabilities:
Contingent consideration — Cytochroma $ 48,110 $ —
Contingent consideration — Farmadiet 513 532
Contingent consideration — OPKO Diagnostics 12,006 11,310
Contingent consideration — FineTech — 2,578
Contingent consideration — CURNA 528 510
Deferred acquisition payments, net of discount 3,868 3,931
Mortgages and other debts payable 3,706 5,150
Deferred tax liabilities 9,206 9,777
Other, including deferred revenue 1,575 380
$ 79,512 $ 34,168

The change in value of the intangible assets and goodwill are primarily due to the acquisitions of Silcon Comércio, Importacao E
Exportacao de Produtos Farmaceuticos e Cosmeticos Ltda, (“Silcon”), and Cytochroma Inc., (“Cytochroma”), as well as the foreign
currency fluctuations between the Chilean and Mexican pesos and the Euro against the U.S. dollar at March 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012.

NOTE 5 ACQUISITIONS, INVESTMENTS, AND LICENSES
Cytochroma acquisition

On March 4, 2013, we acquired Cytochroma, a corporation located in Markham, Canada, whose lead products, both in Phase 3
development, are CTAP101 Capsules, a vitamin D prohormone to treat secondary hyperparathyroidism (“SHPT”) in patients with stage 3
or 4 chronic kidney disease (“CKD”) and vitamin D insufficiency, and Fermagate Tablets, a non-absorbed phosphate binder to treat
hyperphosphatemia in dialysis patients (the “Cytochroma Acquisition”).
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In connection with the Cytochroma Acquisition, we delivered 20,517,030 of shares of our Common Stock valued at $146.9 million
based on the closing price per share of our Common Stock as reported by the NYSE on the actual closing date of the acquisition, or $7.16
per share. The number of shares issued was based on the volume-weighted average price per share of our Common Stock as reported on the
NYSE for the ten trading days immediately preceding the date of the purchase agreement for the Cytochroma Acquisition, or $4.87 per
share. The Cytochroma Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, conditions to closing, indemnification rights and
obligations of the parties.

In addition, the Cytochroma Acquisition requires payments of up to an additional $190.0 million in cash or additional shares of our
Common Stock, at our election, upon the achievement of certain milestones relating to development and annual revenue. As a result, we
recorded $47.7 million as contingent consideration. We will evaluate the contingent consideration on an ongoing basis and the changes in
the fair value will be recognized in earnings until the milestones are achieved.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition of
Cytochroma at the date of acquisition, which are subject to change while contingencies that existed on the acquisition date are resolved:

(In thousands
Current assets (including cash of $378 thousand) $ 1,224
Intangible assets:
In-process research and development 191,530
Patents _ 210
Total intangible assets 191,740
Goodwill 2,411
Plant and equipment 306
Accounts payable and accrued expenses __(1,069)
Total purchase price $194,612

Goodwill is principally related to the acquired workforce. Goodwill is not tax deductible for income tax purposes.

Silcon asset acquisition

On February 15, 2013, we acquired the assets of Silcon Comércio, Importacao E Exportacao de Produtos Farmaceuticos e Cosmeticos
Ltda. (“Silcon”), a Brazilian pharmaceutical company, pursuant to a purchase agreement entered into on December 26, 2012. Pursuant to
the purchase agreement, we paid $0.3 million in cash and delivered 64,684 shares of our Common Stock at closing valued at $0.4 million
based on the closing price per share of our Common Stock as reported by the NYSE on the actual closing date of the acquisition, or $6.73
per share. The number of shares issued was based on the average closing price per share of Common Stock as reported on the NYSE for the
10 trading days immediately preceding the execution of the purchase agreement, or $4.64 per share.

We accounted for this acquisition as an asset acquisition rather than a business combination. As a result we recorded the assets at fair
value, with most of the value being allocated to the most significant asset, its pharmaceutical business licenses.

OURLab acquisition

In October 2012, we entered into a definitive merger agreement to acquire OURLab, a Nashville-based CLIA laboratory with 17
phlebotomy sites throughout the U.S. In December 2012, we paid $9.4 million in cash and delivered 7,072,748 shares of our Common
Stock at closing valued at $32.9 million based on the closing sales price per share of our Common Stock as reported by the NYSE on the
actual closing date of the acquisition, or $4.65 per share. The number of shares issued was based on the average closing price per share of
our Common Stock as reported on the NYSE for the 15 trading days immediately preceding the execution of the purchase agreement, or
$4.33 per share. Pursuant to the merger agreement, 1,732,102 shares of the stock consideration issued in the transaction are being held in a
separate escrow account to secure the indemnification obligations of OURLab.
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Farmadiet acquisition

In August 2012, we entered into a stock purchase agreement pursuant to which we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Farmadiet
Group Holding, S.L. (“Farmadiet”), a Spanish company engaged in the development, manufacture, marketing, and sale of pharmaceutical,
nutraceutical, and veterinary products in Europe (the “Farmadiet Transaction”).

In connection with the Farmadiet Transaction, we agreed to pay an aggregate purchase price of €13.5 million (approximately $16.0
million), of which (i) 50% ($8.4 million) was paid in cash at closing, and (ii) 50% (the “Deferred Payments”) will be paid, at our option, in
cash or shares of our Common Stock as follows: (x) 25% to be paid on the first anniversary of the closing date; and (y) 25% to be paid 18
months after the closing date. On the date of acquisition, we recorded the €6.8 million Deferred Payments at $7.8 million, net of a discount
of $0.6 million. The discount will be amortized as interest expense through the respective payment dates. The Deferred Payments are
required to be paid in Euro and as such, the final U.S. dollar amount to be paid will be based on the exchange rate at the time the Deferred
Payments are made. In the event we elect to pay the Deferred Payments in shares of our Common Stock, the number of shares issuable
shall be calculated using the average closing price per share of our Common Stock as reported on the NYSE for the ten trading days
immediately preceding the applicable payment date. We have the right to hold back up to €2.8 million (approximately $3.6 million as of
March 31, 2013) from the Deferred Payment to satisfy indemnity claims.

In connection with the Farmadiet Transaction, we also entered into two ancillary transactions (the “Ancillary Transactions”). In
exchange for a 40% interest held by one of the sellers in one of Farmadiet’s subsidiaries, we agreed to issue up to an aggregate of 250,000
shares of our Common Stock, of which (a) 125,000 shares were issued on the closing date, and (b) 125,000 will be issued upon achieving
certain milestones. In addition, we acquired an interest held by an affiliate of Farmadiet in a product in development in exchange for which
we agreed to pay up to an aggregate of €1.0 million ($1.3 million) payable at our option in cash or shares of our Common Stock, of which
(a) 25% ($0.3 million) was paid at closing through delivery of 70,421 shares of our Common Stock, and 75% ($1.0 million) will be paid in
cash or shares of our Common Stock upon achieving certain milestones. As a result, we recorded $1.2 million as contingent consideration
for the future consideration. We evaluate the contingent consideration on an ongoing basis and the changes in fair value are recognized in
earnings until the milestones are achieved. Refer to Note 8. The final U.S. dollar amount to be paid will be based on the exchange rate at
the time the milestones are achieved. The number of shares of our Common Stock issued is determined based on the average closing sales
price for our Common Stock on the NYSE for the ten trading days preceding the required payment date.

ALS acquisition

In April 2012, we completed the acquisition of ALS Distribuidora Limitada (“ALS”), a privately-held Chilean pharmaceutical
company, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement entered into in January 2012. In connection with the transaction, we agreed to pay up to a
total of $4.0 million in cash to the sellers. Pursuant to the purchase agreement, we paid (i) $2.4 million in cash at the closing, less certain
liabilities, and (ii) $0.8 million in cash at the closing into a separate escrow account to satisfy possible indemnity claims. During the three
months ended March 31, 2013, we paid the remaining $0.8 million that we had agreed to pay upon the legal registration in the name of
ALS of certain trademarks and product registrations previously held by Arama Laboratorios y Compaiiia Limitada.

Pro forma disclosure for acquisitions

The following table includes the pro forma results for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 of the combined companies
as though the acquisition of Cytochroma had been completed as of the beginning of each period, respectively.

For the three months ended March

31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Revenues $ 31,376 $ 10,958
Net loss $ (35,276) $  (9,210)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders $ (35,149) $ (9,766)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.11) $ (0.03)

The unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for information purposes only. The unaudited pro forma financial
information may not necessarily reflect our future results of operations or what the results of operations would have been had we owned
and operated each company as of the beginning of the period presented.

We incurred a pre-tax loss related to the activities of Cytochroma of $2.3 million from the date of our acquisition through March 31,
2013.

17



Table of Contents

Investments

The total assets, liabilities, and net losses of our equity method investees as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2013 were
$47.5 million, $15.1 million, and $21.0 million, respectively. The following table reflects our maximum exposure, accounting method,
ownership interest and underlying equity in net assets of each of our unconsolidated investments as of March 31, 2013:

Closing share price

Ownership at Underlying at March 31, 2013
(Dollars in thousands) Year March 31, equity in net for investments
Investee name invested Accounting method 2013 Investment assets available for sale
Sorrento 2009  Equity method 20% $ 2300 $ 1,219
Cocrystal 2009 Equity method 16% 2,500 675
Neovasc 2011 Equity method, warrants  available
for sale 4% 2,013 287
Fabrus 2010 VIE, equity method 13% 650 (28)
BZNE common stock 2012  VIE, equity method 12% 1,276 (302)
RXi 2013  Equity method 21% 15,000 3,766
TESARO 2010 Investment available for sale 1% 550 $21.96
Neovasc options 2011 Investment available for sale N/A 925 CAS 2.60
BZNE Note and conversion 2012
feature VIE, investment available for sale N/A 1,700
ChromaDex 2012 Investment available for sale 1% 1,320 $ 0.71
Plus unrealized gains on investments, options and warrants, net 8,920
Less accumulated losses in investees _ (8,608)
Total carrying value of equity method investees and investments, available for sale §28,546

RXi transaction

An element of our growth strategy is to leverage our proprietary technology through a combination of internal development,
acquisition, and external partnerships to maximize the commercial opportunities for our portfolio of proprietary pharmaceutical and
diagnostic products. Consistent with this strategy, in March 2013, we completed the sale to RXi of substantially all of our assets in the field
of RNA interference (the “RNAi Assets”) (collectively, the “Asset Purchase Agreement”). As consideration for the RNAi Assets, at the
closing of the Asset Purchase Agreement, RXi issued to us 50 million shares of its common stock (the “APA Shares”). In accounting for
the sale of the RNAi Assets, we determined that we did not have any continuing involvement in the development of the RNAi Assets or
any other future performance obligations and, as a result, during the three months ended March 31, 2013, we recognized the APA Shares as
$12.5 million of Revenue from transfer of intellectual property in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, RXi will be required to pay us up to $50.0 million in milestone payments upon the
successful development and commercialization of each drug developed by RXi, certain of its affiliates or any of its or their licensees or
sublicensees utilizing patents included within the RNAi Assets (each, a “Qualified Drug”). In addition, RXi will also be required to pay us
royalties equal to: (a) a mid single-digit percentage of “Net Sales” (as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement) with respect to each
Qualified Drug sold for an ophthalmologic use during the applicable “Royalty Period” (as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement); and
(b) a low single-digit percentage of net sales with respect to each Qualified Drug sold for a non-ophthalmologic use during the applicable
royalty period.

In addition to the Asset Purchase Agreement, we purchased 17,241,380 shares of RXi, for $2.5 million, as part of a $16.4 million
financing for RXi, which included other related parties. We have determined that our ownership, along with that of our related parties,
provides us the ability to exercise significant influence over RXi operations and as such we have accounted for our investment in RXi
under the equity method.

Investments in variable interest entities

We have determined that we hold variable interests in Fabrus, Inc. (“Fabrus”), Biozone Pharmaceutical, Inc. (“BZNE”) and SciGen
(I.L.) Ltd. (“SciGen”). We made this determination as a result of our assessment that they do not have sufficient resources to carry out their
principal activities without additional financial support.

18



Table of Contents

In order to determine the primary beneficiary of BZNE, we evaluated our investment and our related parties’ investments, as well as
our investment combined with the related party group’s investments to identify if we had the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance of BZNE. We determined that power to direct the activities that most significantly impact
BZNE’s economic performance is conveyed through the board of directors of BZNE and no entity is able to appoint the BZNE governing
body that oversees its executive management team. Based on the capital structure, governing documents and overall business operations of
BZNE, we determined that, while a VIE, no single entity has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact BZNE’s
economic performance. However, we determined that we and our related parties can significantly influence the success of BZNE through
our voting power. As such, we account for investment in BZNE under the equity method.

In order to determine the primary beneficiary of Fabrus, we evaluated our investment and our related parties’ investment, as well as
our investment combined with the related party group’s investment to identify if we had the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance of Fabrus. We determined that power to direct the activities that most significantly impact
Fabrus’s economic performance is conveyed through the board of directors of Fabrus as no entity is able to appoint the Fabrus governing
body that oversees its executive management team. Based on the capital structure, governing documents and overall business operations of
Fabrus, we determined that, while a VIE, no single entity has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact Fabrus’s
economic performance. We did determine, however, that our related parties can significantly influence the success of Fabrus through our
board representation and voting power. Accordingly, as we and our related parties have the ability to exercise significant influence over
Fabrus’ operations, we account for our investment in Fabrus under the equity method.

Consolidated variable interest entities

In June 2012, we entered into a share and debt purchase agreement whereby in exchange for $0.7 million we acquired shares
representing a 45% stock ownership in SciGen from FDS Pharma LLP (“FDS”). SciGen is a privately-held Israeli company that produces a
third-generation hepatitis B-vaccine. In November 2012 and March 2013, we loaned to SciGen a combined $0.8 million for working capital
purposes. We have determined that we hold variable interests in SciGen based on our assessment that SciGen does not have sufficient
resources to carry out its principal activities without financial support. In order to determine the fair market value of our investment in
SciGen, we have utilized a business enterprise valuation approach.

In order to determine the primary beneficiary of SciGen, we evaluated our investment to identify if we had the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of SciGen. We have determined that the power to direct the activities
that most significantly impact the economic performance of SciGen is conveyed through SciGen’s board of directors. SciGen’s board of
directors appoint and oversee SciGen’s management team who carry out the activities that most significantly impact the economic
performance of SciGen. As part of the share and debt purchase agreement, SciGen’s board of directors is constituted by 5 members, of
which 3 members will be appointed by us, representing 60% of SciGen’s board. Based on this analysis, we determined that we have the
power to direct the activities of SciGen and as such we are the primary beneficiary. As a result of this conclusion, we have consolidated the
results of SciGen and record a reduction of equity for the portion of SciGen we do not own.
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The following table represents the consolidated assets and non-recourse liabilities related to SciGen as of March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012. These assets are owned by, and these liabilities are obligations of, SciGen, not us.

March 31, December 31,
(In thousands 2013 2012
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 301 $ 174
Accounts receivable, net 76 387
Inventories, net 1,399 1,092
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 174 199
Total current assets 1,950 1,852
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,493 1,539
Intangible assets, net 1,150 1,154
Goodwill 815 796
Other assets 324 231
Total assets $ 5,732 5,572
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,220 $ 1,108
Accrued expenses 3,352 2,859
Notes payable 1,329 —
Total current liabilities 5,901 3,967
Other long-term liabilities 288 1,529
Total liabilities $ 6,189 $ 5,496

NOTE 6 DEBT

On January 25, 2013, we entered into note purchase agreements (the “Notes”) with qualified institutional buyers and accredited
investors (collectively the “Purchaser”) in a private placement in reliance on exemptions from registration under the Securities Act of 1933,
(the “Securities Act”). The Purchasers of the Notes include Frost Gamma Investments Trust, a trust affiliated with Dr. Phillip Frost, our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Hsu Gamma Investment, L.P., an entity affiliated with Dr. Jane H. Hsiao, our Vice Chairman
and Chief Technology Officer. The Notes were issued on January 30, 2013. The Notes, which total $175.0 million, bear interest at the rate
of 3.00% per year, payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, beginning August 1, 2013. The Notes will mature on
February 1, 2033, unless earlier repurchased, redeemed or converted. Upon a fundamental change as defined in the instruments governing
the Notes, subject to certain exceptions, the holders may require us to repurchase all or any portion of their Notes for cash at a repurchase
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest to but not including the
fundamental change repurchase date.

The Notes will be convertible at any time on or after November 1, 2032, through the second scheduled trading day immediately
preceding the maturity date, at the option of the holders. Additionally, holders may convert their Notes prior to the close of business on the
scheduled trading day immediately preceding November 1, 2032, under the following circumstances: (1) conversion based upon
satisfaction of the trading price condition relating to the Notes; (2) conversion based on the Common Stock price; (3) conversion based
upon the occurrence of specified corporate events; or (4) if we call the Notes for redemption. The Notes will be convertible into cash,
shares of our Common Stock, or a combination of cash and shares of Common Stock, at our election unless we have made an irrevocable
election of net share settlement. The initial conversion rate for the Notes will be 141.4827 shares of Common Stock per $1,000 principal
amount of Notes (equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $7.07 per share of Common Stock), and will be subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events. In addition, we will, in certain circumstances, increase the conversion rate for holders
who convert their Notes in connection with a make-whole fundamental change (as defined in the Indenture) and holders who convert upon
the occurrence of certain specific events prior to February 1, 2017 (other than in connection with a make-whole fundamental change).

We may not redeem the Notes prior to February 1, 2017. On or after February 1, 2017 and before February 1, 2019, we may redeem
for cash any or all of the Notes but only if the last reported sale price of our Common Stock exceeds 130% of the applicable conversion
price for at least 20 trading days during the 30 consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day immediately prior to the date on
which we deliver the redemption notice. The redemption price will equal 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, plus
any accrued and unpaid interest to but not including the redemption date. On or after February 1, 2019, we may redeem for cash any or all
of the Notes at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, plus any accrued and unpaid interest up to
but not including the redemption date.
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The terms of the Notes, include, among others: (i) rights to convert into shares of our Common Stock, including upon a fundamental
change; and (ii) a coupon make-whole payment in the event of a conversion by the holders of the Notes on or after February 1, 2017 but
prior to February 1, 2019. We have determined that these specific terms are considered to be embedded derivatives. As a result, embedded
derivatives are required to be separated from the host contract, the Notes, and carried at fair value when: (a) the embedded derivative
possesses economic characteristics that are not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics of the host contract; and (b) a
separate, stand-alone instrument with the same terms would qualify as a derivative instrument. We have concluded that the embedded
derivatives within the Notes meet these criteria and, as such, must be valued separate and apart from the Notes and recorded at fair value
each reporting period.

For purposes of accounting and financial reporting, we combine these embedded derivatives and value them together as one unit of
accounting. At each reporting period, we record these embedded derivatives at fair value which is included as a component of the Notes on
our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We have used a binomial lattice model in order to estimate the fair value of the embedded derivative in the Notes. A binomial lattice
model generates two probable outcomes — one up and another down —arising at each point in time, starting from the date of valuation
until the maturity date. A lattice was initially used to determine if the Notes would be converted, called or held at each decision point.
Within the lattice model, the following assumptions are made: (i) the Notes will be converted early if the conversion value is greater than
the holding value; or (ii) the Notes will be called if the holding value is greater than both (a) the redemption price (as defined in the
Indenture) and (b) the conversion value plus the coupon make-whole payment at the time. If the Notes are called, then the holder will
maximize their value by finding the optimal decision between (1) redeeming at the redemption price and (2) converting the Notes.

Using this lattice, we valued the embedded derivatives using the “with-and-without method,” where the value of the Notes including
the embedded derivatives is defined as the “with,” and the value of the Notes excluding the embedded derivatives is defined as the
“without.” This method estimates the value of the embedded derivatives by looking at the difference in the values between the Notes with
the embedded derivatives and the value of the Notes without the embedded derivatives.

The lattice model requires the following inputs: (i) price of our Common Stock; (ii) Conversion Rate (as defined in the Indenture);
(ii1) Conversion Price (as defined in the Indenture); (iv) maturity date; (v) risk-free interest rate; (vi) estimated stock volatility; and (vii)
estimated credit spread for the Company.

The following table sets forth the inputs to the lattice model used to value the embedded derivative:

March 31, 2013 Issuance Date
Stock price $ 7.63 $ 6.20
Conversion Rate 141.4827 141.4827
Conversion Price $ 7.07 $ 7.07
Maturity date February 1, 2033 February 1, 2033
Risk-free interest rate 1.01% 1.12%
Estimated stock volatility 35% 40%
Estimated credit spread 966 basis points 944 basis points

The following table sets forth the fair value of the Notes with and without the embedded derivatives, and the fair value of the
embedded derivatives as of the issuance date and March 31, 2013 (in thousands):

March 31, Issuance
2013 Date
Fair value of Notes:
With the embedded derivatives $203,069 $175,000
Without the embedded derivatives $119,077 $115,796
Estimated fair value of the embedded derivatives $ 83,992 $ 59,204

Changes in certain inputs into the lattice model can have a significant impact on changes in the estimated fair value of the embedded
derivatives. For example, a decrease in our estimated credit spread results in an increase in the estimated value of the embedded derivatives.
Conversely, a decrease in the price of our Common Stock results in a decrease in the estimated fair value of the embedded derivatives.
From the date the Notes were issued through March 31, 2013, we observed an increase in the market price of our Common Stock which
resulted in a $24.8 million increase in the estimated fair value of our embedded derivatives recorded in Fair value changes of derivative
instruments, net in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.



The principal amounts, unamortized discount and net carrying amounts of the Notes as of March 31, 2013 were as follows:

Principal Unamortized Net Carrying
Balance Discount Amount
(In thousands)
Notes $175,000 $ 62,571 $112,429

$175,000 $ 62,571 $112,429

We have entered into line of credit agreements with sixteen financial institutions in Chile and Spain. These lines of credit are used
primarily as a source of working capital for inventory purchases.

The following table summarizes the amount outstanding under the lines of credit:

(In thousands)

Interest rate on Credit line March 31, December 31,
Lender borrowings capacity 2013 2012
Itau Bank 7.10% $ 3,000 $ 3,072 $ 2,738
Bank of Chile 6.05% 3,000 2,391 2,292
BICE Bank 5.39% 2,000 1,650 2,451
Corp Banca 6.00% 1,000 663 1,248
BBVA Bank 6.36% 3,000 2,785 2,823
Penta Bank 9.48% 1,000 854 833
Security Bank 7.65% 1,500 1,066 —
BCI 6.00% 1,500 1,626 —
Estado Bank 6.26% 2,000 1,969 1,963
Sabadell Bank 7.60% 192 — 3
Bilbao Vizcaya Bank 4.90% 384 307 377
Banco Popular 8.25% 384 3 260
Santander Bank 6.00% 192 71 —
Banesto 5.80% 192 135 163
Banca March 6.25% 256 233 44
Total $19,600 $16,825 $ 15,195

At both March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the weighted average interest rate on our lines of credit was approximately 6.5%.
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At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had mortgage notes and other debt payables related to Farmadiet as follows:

March 31, December 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Current portion of lines of credit and notes payable $ 2,110 $ 2,331
Other long-term liabilities 3,706 3,916
Total mortgage notes and other debt payables $ 5,816 $ 6,247

The mortgages and other debts payable mature at various dates ranging from 2015 through 2024 bearing variable interest rates from

2.7% up to 8.5%. The weighted average interest rate on the mortgage notes and other debt payable at March 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012 was 4.8% and 4.5%, respectively.

NOTE 7 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the three months ended March 31, 2013 changes in Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, were as follows:

Unrealized
gains in
Foreign Accumulated
(In thousands) currency OCI
Balance at December 31, 2012 $3,196 $ 4,160
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications, net of tax o 323 1,405
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income,
net of tax () — (991)
Net other comprehensive income 323 414
Balance at March 31, 2013 $3,519 $ 4574

) Effective tax rate of 38.47%.

Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive for the three months ended March 31, 2013 related to $2.3 million
realized gain on the sales of certain of our investments available for sale. Of the $2.3 million gain on the sales of our investments available
for sale, $1.6 million gain was reclassified from unrealized gains in Accumulated other comprehensive income to Other income, net.

22



Table of Contents

NOTE 8 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

We record fair value at an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. We utilize a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes
the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;
Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as
unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.

A summary of our investments as of March 31, 2013, classified as available for sale, and carried at fair value is as follows:

As of March 31, 2013

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized Gain/(Loss)
gains in losses in in
Amortized Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Fair

(In thousands) Cost OCI OCI Deficit value
Common stock investments, available for sale $ 1,870 $ 6,522 $ — $ — $ 8,392
BZNE Note and conversion feature 1,700 53 — 287 2,040
Neovasc common stock options 925 629 — 589 2,143
Neovasc common stock warrants 659 194 — 473 1,326
Total assets $ 5,154 $ 7,398 $ — $ 1,349 $13,901

A summary of our investments as of December 31, 2012, classified as available for sale, and carried at fair value is as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized Gain/(Loss)
gains in losses in in
Amortized Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Fair

(In thousands) Cost OCI OCI Deficit value
Common stock investments, available for sale $ 2,051 $ 6,185 $ — $ — $ 8,236
BZNE Note and conversion feature 1,700 53 — 287 2,040
Neovasc common stock options 925 293 — 176 1,394
Neovasc common stock warrants 659 194 — (375) 478
Total assets $ 5,335 $ 6,725 $ — $ 38 $12,148

Any future fluctuation in fair value related to these instruments that is judged to be temporary, including any recoveries of previous
write-downs, will be recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income or loss. If we determine that any future valuation adjustment
was other-than-temporary, we will record a loss during the period such determination is made.

As of March 31, 2013, we have money market funds that qualify as cash equivalents, forward contracts for inventory purchases
(Refer to Note 9) and contingent consideration related to the acquisitions of CURNA, Inc. (“CURNA”), Claros Diagnostics, Inc. (“OPKO
Diagnostics”), FineTech Pharmaceuticals, Ltd. (“FineTech”), Farmadiet, and Cytochroma that are required to be measured at fair value on
a recurring basis. In addition, in connection with our investment and our consulting agreement with Neovasc, we record the related Neovasc
options and warrants at fair value.
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Our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are as follows:

(in thousands)
Assets:
Money market funds
Certificates of deposit
Common stock investments, available for sale
BZNE Note and conversation feature
Neovasc common stock options
Neovasc common stock warrants
Total assets
Liabilities:
Forward contracts
Embedded conversion option
Deferred acquisition payments, net of discount
Contingent consideration:
CURNA
OPKO Diagnostics
FineTech
Cytochroma
Farmadiet

Total liabilities

(in thousands)
Assets:
Money market funds
Certificates of deposit
Common stock investments, available for sale
BZNE Note and conversation feature
Neovasc common stock options
Neovasc common stock warrants
Total assets
Liabilities:
Forward contracts
Deferred acquisition payments, net of discount
Contingent consideration:
CURNA
OPKO Diagnostics
FineTech
Farmadiet

Total liabilities

Fair value measurements as of March 31, 2013

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$167,276 $ — $ — $167,276
— 827 — 827
8,392 — — 8,392
. _ 2,040 2,040
— 2,143 — 2,143
— 1,326 — 1,326

$175,668 $ 4296 § 2,040 $182,004

$ — $ 21§ — $ 21
— — 83,992 83,992
— — 9,166 9,166
— — 528 528
— — 13,721 13,721
— — 2,667 2,667
— — 48,110 48,110
— — 1,282 1,282
$ = $ 21 $159,466  $159,487
Fair value measurements as of December 31, 2012
Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$ 18,716 $ — $ — $ 18,716
— 820 — 820
8,236 — — 8,236
. _ 2,040 2,040
— 1,394 — 1,394
— 478 — 478

$26952 $2692 § 2,040 § 31,684

$ — $ 10 $ — $ 10
— — 10,103 10,103
— — 510 510
— — 12,974 12,974
— — 5,262 5,262
— — 1,310 1,310

$ — $ 10 $ 30,159 § 30,169




The carrying amount and estimated fair value of our long-term debt, as well as the applicable fair value hierarchy tiers, are contained
in the table below. The fair value of the Notes is determined using a binomial lattice approach in order to estimate the fair value of the
embedded derivative in the Notes. Refer to Note 6.

March 31, 2013

Carrying Total
Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)
Notes $112,429  $203,0609 §— $— $203,069
$112,429  $203,069 §— $— $203,069

As of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the carrying value of our other assets and liabilities approximates their fair value due
to their short-term nature.
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The following tables reconcile the beginning and ending balances of our Level 3 assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

March 31, 2013

BZNE Note Deferred
and acquisition Embedded
conversion Contingent payments, net conversion
(In thousands) feature consideration of discount option
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 2,040 $ 20,056 $ 10,103 $ —
Additions — 47,710 — 59,204
Total losses (gains) for the period:
Included in results of operations — 1,303 (137) 24,788
Payments — (2,761) (800) —
Balance at March 31, 2013 $ 2,040 $ 66,308 $ 9,166 $83,992
December 31, 2012
BZNE Note Deferred
and acquisition
conversion Contingent payments, net
(In thousands) feature consideration of discount
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ — $ 18,002 $ —
Additions 1,700 1,234 9,673
Total losses (gains) for the period:
Included in results of operations 1,563 820 430
Included in Other comprehensive loss 53 — —
Transfer out to equity method investment (1,276) — —
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 2,040 $ 20,056 $ 10,103

The estimated fair values of our financial instruments have been determined by using available market information and what we
believe to be appropriate valuation methodologies. We use the following methods and assumptions in estimating fair value:

BZNE Notes and conversion feature - The stock market activity in BZNE does not represent an active market and as such, we
determined the fair market value utilizing a business enterprise valuation approach in order to determine the fair value of our investment.
The most significant assumptions are the projected revenue growth and operating income (loss). The impact of a change in any of our
significant underlying assumptions +/- 1% would not result in a materially different fair value.

Contingent consideration — We estimate the fair value of the contingent consideration utilizing a discounted cash flow model for the
expected payments based on estimated timing and expected revenues. We use several discount rates depending on each type of contingent
consideration related to FineTech, OPKO Diagnostics, CURNA, Farmadiet and Cytochroma transactions. The discount rates used range
from 6% to 27% and were based on the weighted average cost of capital for those businesses. If the discount rates were to increase by 1%,
on each transaction, the contingent consideration would decrease by $1.6 million. If estimated future sales were to decrease by 10%, the
contingent consideration related to CURNA, FineTech and Cytochroma would decrease by $0.6 million. As of March 31, 2013, of the
$66.3 million of contingent consideration, $5.2 million is recorded in Accrued expenses and $61.2 million is recorded in Other-long-term
liabilities. As of December 31, 2012, of the $20.0 million of contingent consideration, $14.9 million is recorded in Accrued expenses and
$5.1 million is recorded in Other-long-term liabilities.

Deferred payments — We estimate the fair value of the deferred payments utilizing a discounted cash flow model for the expected
payments.

Embedded conversion option — We estimate the fair value of the embedded conversion option related to the Notes using a binomial
lattice model. Refer to Note 6 for detail description of the binomial lattice model and the fair value assumptions used.

NOTE 9 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

We enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to cover the risk of exposure to exchange rate differences arising from
inventory purchases on letters of credit. Under these forward contracts, for any rate above or below the fixed rate, we receive or pay the
difference between the spot rate and the fixed rate for the given amount at the settlement date.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, we entered into a foreign exchange, fixed interest rate swap contract that provides for
us to pay a fixed interest rate on the underlying loan balance denominated in Chilean Pesos. We entered into this agreement in Chile for
purchases of inventory denominated in U.S. dollars. A hypothetical 1% interest rate change or 10% foreign exchange rate change will not
have a material impact on our results from operations or financial position.
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The following table summarizes the fair values and the presentation of our derivative financial instruments in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

March 31, December 31,
Balance Sheet Location 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Derivative financial instruments:
Neovasc common stock Investment, net
options/warrants $ 3,469 $ 1,872
Embedded conversion option 3.00% convertible senior notes, net
of discount 83,992 —
Forward contracts (1) Current portion of lines of credit and
notes payable 1,107 1,294

(1) The effect on loss in the forward contracts is recorded in Accrued expenses.

To qualify the derivative instrument as a hedge, we are required to meet strict hedge effectiveness and contemporaneous
documentation requirements at the initiation of the hedge and assess the hedge effectiveness on an ongoing basis over the life of the hedge.
At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, our derivative financial instruments do not meet the documentation requirements to be
designated as hedges. Accordingly, we recognize the changes in fair value in Fair value changes of derivative instruments, net in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. The following table summarizes the (loss) gain recorded during the three months ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Derivative gain (loss):
Neovasc common stock options/warrants $ 1,260 $ 1,030
Notes (24,788) -
Forward contracts (21) 87
Total $ (23,549) $ 1,117

The outstanding contracts at March 31, 2013, have been recorded at fair value, and their maturity details are as follows:

(In thousands) Fair value at

Days until maturity Contract value March 31, 2013 Decrease of loss
0to 30 $ 314 3 310 3 @)
31 to 60 112 109 3)
61 to 90 21 21 —
91 to 120 269 264 5)
121 to 180 412 403 )
More than 180 _ — _ — _ —
Total i 1,128 $_ 1,107 $_ (21)

The outstanding contracts at December 31, 2012 have been recorded at fair value, and their maturity details are as follows:

(In thousands) Fair value at

Days until maturity Contract value December 31, 2012 Decrease of loss
0030 R s s _
31 to 60 581 577 4)
61 to 90 341 339 2
91 to 120 212 210 ©)
121 to 180 170 168 2
More than 180 _ — _ — _ —
Total ﬁ 1,304 $_ 1,294 $_ (10)

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On January 25, 2013, we entered into the Notes, with the Purchasers for the sale of $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of
Notes in a private placement in reliance on exemptions from registration under the Securities Act. The Purchasers of the Notes include Frost
Gamma Investments Trust, a trust affiliated with Dr. Phillip Frost, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Hsu Gamma Investment,
L.P., an entity affiliated with Dr. Jane H. Hsiao, our Vice Chairman and Chief Technology Officer. The Notes were issued on January 30,
2013.

In December 2012, we entered into a five year lease with AVI Properties, LLC (“AVI”), an entity affiliated with Dr. Jonathan
Oppenheimer, OURLab’s Chief Executive Officer. The lease is for approximately 44,000 square feet of laboratory and office space in
Nashville, Tennessee, where OURLab is based. The lease provides for payments of approximately $18 thousand per month in the first year,
increasing annually if the consumer price index exceeds 5%, plus applicable sales tax. In addition to the rent, we pay a portion of operating
expenses, property taxes and parking.



During the year ended December 31, 2012, our FineTech subsidiary recorded revenue of $0.1 million for the sale of APIs to Teva.
Dr. Frost serves as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Teva.

In February 2012, we entered into a cooperative research funding and option agreement with The Scripps Research Institute (“TSRI”)
to support research for the development of novel oligomeric compounds relating to our
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molecular diagnostics technology (the “Research Agreement”). Pursuant to the Research Agreement, we agreed to provide funding of
approximately $0.9 million annually over a five year period. In conjunction with entering into the Research Agreement, we also entered
into a license agreement with TSRI for technology relating to libraries of peptide tertiary amides. In addition, we entered into a second
license with TSRI for technology relating to highly selective inhibitors of c-Jun-N-Terminal Kinases that may be useful for the treatment of
various diseases, including Parkinson’s disease. We also entered into a research funding and option agreement to provide funding of
approximately $0.2 million annually over three years to support further development of the technology. Dr. Frost served as a Trustee for
TSRI until November 2012 and Dr. Lerner served as its President until December 2011.

In February 2012, we made a $1.0 million investment in ChromaDex. Other investors participating in the private financing included
the Gamma Trust, Hsu Gamma, and Richard Lerner, a director. Following our investment, we own 1.5% of ChromaDex, the Gamma Trust
owns approximately 16% of ChromaDex; Hsu Gamma owns approximately 1%; and certain of our directors own less than 1% of
ChromaDex.

In February 2012, we purchased from BZNE $1.7 million of 10% secured convertible promissory notes (the “Notes”), convertible
into BZNE common stock at a price equal to $0.20 per common share, which Notes are due and payable on February 24, 2014 and ten year
warrants to purchase 8.5 million shares of BZNE common stock at an exercise price of $0.40 per share.

Mr. Roberto Prego Novo is the Chairman of BZNE and presently serves as a consultant to us. Dr. Frost and Mr. Prego Novo
previously invested in BZNE in February and March, 2011. On May 16, 2011, BZNE acquired the assets and assumed the liabilities of
Aero Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Aero”) in exchange for which BZNE issued an aggregate of 8,331,396 shares of its restricted common stock
to Aero. On September 21, 2011, BZNE issued an additional 13,914 shares to Aero due to the late filing of a registration statement. Prior to
the transaction, Dr. Frost, through the Gamma Trust, beneficially owned approximately 46% of Aero’s issued and outstanding capital
stock; Mr. Prego Novo owned approximately 23% of Aero’s issued and outstanding capital stock through Olyrca Trust; and Dr. Hsiao
beneficially owned approximately 12% of Aero’s issued and outstanding stock. Each of Drs. Frost and Hsiao and Mr. Prego Novo
beneficially owned approximately 9.2%, 1.7%, and 8.2% of BZNE, respectively, following the purchase of Aero by BZNE. Mr. Rubin
beneficially owns less than 1% of BZNE as a result of his prior ownership of Aero shares. In April 2012 and June 2012, Dr. Frost, through
the Gamma Trust, also made loans to BZNE in the principal amounts of $0.3 million and $0.1 million, respectively, which were initially
secured by a first priority lien on a particular BZNE receivable. The notes to Gamma Trust were subsequently amended and Gamma Trust
no longer holds a security interest in the BZNE receivables.

In August 2011, we made an investment in Neovasc. Dr. Frost and other members of our management are shareholders of Neovasc.
Prior to the investment, Dr. Frost beneficially owned approximately 36% of Neovasc, Dr. Hsiao owned approximately 6%, and Mr. Rubin
owned less than 1%. Dr. Hsiao and Mr. Rubin also serve on the board of directors for Neovasc.

In November 2010, we made an investment in Fabrus. In exchange for the investment, we acquired approximately 13% of Fabrus on
a fully diluted basis. Our investment was part of a $2.1 million financing for Fabrus. Other investors participating in the financing include
the Gamma Trust and Hsu Gamma. In connection with the financing, Drs. Frost and Hsiao joined the Fabrus Board of Managers.
Dr. Lerner owns approximately 5% of Fabrus. Mr. Vaughn Smider, Founder and CEO of Fabrus, is an Assistant Professor at TSRI.
Dr. Frost served as a Trustee for TSRI until November 2012, and Dr. Lerner served as President of TSRI until December 2011.

In June 2010, we entered into a cooperative research and development agreement with Academia Sinica, Taipei, Taiwan (“Academia
Sinica”), for pre-clinical work for a compound against various forms of cancer. Dr. Alice Yu, a member of our Board of Directors, is a
Distinguished Research Fellow and Associate Director at the Genomics Research Center, Academia Sinica (“Genomics Research Center”).
In connection with the Academia Sinica Agreement, we are required to pay Academia Sinica approximately $0.2 million over the term of
the agreement.

Effective in September 2009, we entered into an agreement pursuant to which we invested $2.5 million in Cocrystal in exchange for
1,701,723 shares of Cocrystal’s Convertible Series A Preferred Stock. A group of investors, led by the Frost Group (the “Cocrystal
Investors”), previously invested $5.0 million in Cocrystal, and agreed to invest an additional $5.0 million payable in two equal installments
in September 2009 and March 2010. As a result of an amendment to the Cocrystal Investors’ agreements dated June 9, 2009, we, rather
than the Cocrystal Investors, made the first installment investment ($2.5 million) on September 21, 2009.
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In June 2009, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with Sorrento, pursuant to which we invested $2.3 million in Sorrento. In
exchange for the investment, we acquired approximately one-third of the outstanding common shares of Sorrento and received a fully-paid,
exclusive license to the Sorrento antibody library for the discovery and development of therapeutic antibodies in the field of
ophthalmology. On September 21, 2009, Sorrento entered into a merger transaction with Quikbyte Software, Inc. (“Quikbyte”). Prior to the
merger transaction, certain investors, including Dr. Frost and other members of our management group, made an investment in Quikbyte.
Dr. Lerner serves as a consultant and scientific advisory board member to Sorrento and owns less than one percent of its shares.

In November 2007, we entered into an office lease with Frost Real Estate Holdings, LLC (“Frost Holdings”), an entity affiliated with
Dr. Frost. The lease is for approximately 8,300 square feet of space in an office building in Miami, Florida, where our principal executive
offices are located. The lease provides for payments of approximately $18 thousand per month in the first year increasing annually to $24
thousand per month in the fifth year, plus applicable sales tax. The rent is inclusive of operating expenses, property taxes and parking. The
rent for the first year was reduced to reflect a $30 thousand credit for the costs of tenant improvements. In August 2012, we entered into a
six-month extension on the same terms as the 2007 expiring lease and in February 2013, we agreed to extend the lease on a month-to-
month basis for up to an additional six months.

We reimburse Dr. Frost for Company-related use by Dr. Frost and our other executives of an airplane owned by a company that is
beneficially owned by Dr. Frost. We reimburse Dr. Frost in an amount equal to the cost of a first class airline ticket between the travel cities
for each executive, including Dr. Frost, traveling on the airplane for Company-related business. We do not reimburse Dr. Frost for personal
use of the airplane by Dr. Frost or any other executive; nor do we pay for any other fixed or variable operating costs of the airplane. We
reimbursed Dr. Frost approximately $13 thousand and $65 thousand for Company-related travel by Dr. Frost and other OPKO executives
during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In connection with our acquisitions of CURNA, OPKO Diagnostics, FineTech, Farmadiet, and Cytochroma we agreed to pay future
consideration to the sellers upon the achievement of certain events. As a result, for the three months ended March 31, 2013, we recorded
$66.3 million as contingent consideration, with $5.2 million recorded within Accrued expenses and $61.2 million recorded within Other
long-term liabilities in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. Refer to Note 4.

On April 29, 2013, we were named in a putative class action filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in and for Clark County,
Nevada against PROLOR Biotech, Inc. (“PROLOR”), the members of the PROLOR Board of Directors, individually (including Drs. Frost
and Hsiao and Steven Rubin), and the Company. From May 1, 2013 through May 6, 2013, we were named in an additional five putative
class actions suits filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in and for Clark County, Nevada against the same defendants. Each of these
suits alleges a claim against the members of the PROLOR Board for breach of fiduciary duty and a claim against the Company for aiding
and abetting the individual defendants’ alleged breach of fiduciary duty. Each suit seeks to enjoin the pending transaction between the
Company and PROLOR, as well as attorneys’ fees. Certain of the suits also seek rescission and money damages, and one suit seeks
imposition of a constructive trust for any benefits improperly received by the defendants. The Company denies the allegations and intends
to vigorously defend the actions. It is still too early to assess the probability of a favorable or unfavorable outcome or the range of loss, if
any.

In November 2012, Adrian Goldstein, M.D., a former employee of OURLab, filed a complaint for declaratory judgment and alleged
breach of contract against OURLab in the Chancery Court for Davidson County, Tennessee. Dr. Goldstein asserts in his complaint that
OURLab breached his employment agreement and owes him additional compensation and further compensation for the value of OURLab
under a “compensation for sale” provision set forth in his employment agreement. Dr. Goldstein seeks recovery of compensatory damages
not to exceed $20 million, plus his attorney’s fees and litigation expenses. OURLab believes this action is without merit and is vigorously
defending against plaintiff’s claims. It is too early to assess the probability of a favorable or unfavorable outcome or the loss or range of
loss, if any.

In October 2012, we received a letter from counsel to Optos making certain indemnity claims against us in connection with the sale
of our ophthalmic instrumentation business. It is too early to assess the likelihood of litigation in this matter or the probability of a favorable
or unfavorable outcome. However, we do not currently believe this matter will have a material impact on our results of operations or
financial condition.

In July 2012, OURLab received a letter from AdvanceMed Corporation (“AdvanceMed”) regarding a post-payment review conducted
by AdvanceMed (the “Post-Payment Review Letter”). The Post-Payment Review Letter originated with a post payment review audit by
AdvanceMed of 183 claims submitted by OURLab to the Medicare program. OURLab believes that its billing practices were appropriate
and it is following the appeal process set forth by Medicare. OURLab received a partially favorable determination, which reduced the
amount of the alleged overpayment, and it continues to appeal the remaining alleged overpayments. No assurances can be given about the
outcome of the appeal.

We are a party to other litigation in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that any such litigation will have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.
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We expect to incur substantial losses as we continue the development of our product candidates, continue our other research and
development activities, and establish a sales and marketing infrastructure in anticipation of the commercialization of our diagnostic and
pharmaceutical product candidates. We currently have limited commercialization capabilities, and it is possible that we may never
successfully commercialize any of our diagnostic and pharmaceutical product candidates. We do not currently generate revenue from any
of our diagnostic and pharmaceutical product candidates. Our research and development activities are budgeted to expand over a period of
time and will require further resources if we are to be successful. As a result, we believe that our operating losses are likely to be substantial
over the next several years. We may need to obtain additional funds to further develop our research and development programs, and there
can be no assurance that additional capital will be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all.

NOTE 12 SEGMENTS

We currently manage our operations in two reportable segments, pharmaceuticals and diagnostics. The pharmaceutical segment
consists of two operating segments, our (i) pharmaceutical research and development segment which is focused on the research and
development of pharmaceutical products, and vaccines, and (ii) the pharmaceuticals operations we acquired in Chile, Mexico, Israel, Spain
and Brazil. The diagnostics segment consists of two operating segments, our (i) pathology operations we acquired through the acquisition
of OURLAab and (ii) point-of-care and molecular diagnostics operations. There are no inter-segment sales. We evaluate the performance of
each segment based on operating profit or loss. There is no inter-segment allocation of interest expense and income taxes.
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Information regarding our operations and assets for our operating segments and the unallocated corporate operations as well as
geographic information are as follows:

For the three months ended
March 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Product revenues:
Pharmaceuticals $ 15,527 $ 8,639
Diagnostics — —
Corporate — —
$ 15,527 $ 8,639

Revenue from services and license revenue:

Pharmaceuticals $ 12,500 $ —
Diagnostics 3,309 87
Corporate 40 51

$ 15,849 $ 138

Operating (loss) income:

Pharmaceuticals $ 8,483 $ (1,362)
Diagnostics (9,634) (4,669)
Corporate (5,025) (2,816)
Less: Operating loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (597) —

$ (6,773) $ (8,847)

Depreciation and amortization:

Pharmaceuticals $ 1,695 $ 1,450
Diagnostics 1,689 834
Corporate 45 44
$ 3,429 $ 2,328
Revenues:
United States $ 15,849 $ 138
Chile 7,741 5,701
Spain 4,324 —
Israel 2,572 1,627
Mexico 890 1,311
$ 31,376 $ 8,777
As of
March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets:
Pharmaceuticals $338,054 $ 142,299
Diagnostics 113,431 112,422
Corporate 202,450 35,109
$653,935 $ 289,830
Goodwill:
Pharmaceuticals $ 35,103 $ 32,844
Diagnostics 47,606 47,606
Corporate — —

$ 82,709 $ 80,450

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, no customer represented more than 10% of our total revenue. As of both
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, no customer represented more than 10% of our accounts receivable balance.
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NOTE 13 SERIES D PREFERRED STOCK REDEMPTION

On March 1, 2013, our Board of Directors declared a cash dividend to all Series D Preferred Stockholders as of March 8, 2013. The
total cash dividend paid was approximately $3.0 million. In addition, we also exercised our option to convert all 1,129,032 shares of our
outstanding Series D Preferred Stock into 11,290,320 shares of our Common Stock effective of March 8, 2013. Following the conversion
there are no outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock.

NOTE 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In April 2013, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “PROLOR Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which we will
acquire PROLOR Biotech, Inc. (“PROLOR”), a biopharmaceutical company focused on developing and commercializing longer-acting
proprietary versions of already approved therapeutic proteins, in an all-stock transaction. Under the terms of the agreement, holders of
PROLOR common stock will receive 0.9951 shares of our Common Stock for each share of PROLOR common stock. Based on a price of
$7.03 per share of our Common Stock, the transaction is valued at approximately $480 million, or $7.00 per share of PROLOR common
stock. The companies expect the transaction to be completed during the second half of 2013. Closing of the transaction is subject to certain
conditions including, the approval of PROLOR’s and our stockholders and other customary closing conditions. Dr. Frost is PROLOR’s
Chairman of the Board and a greater than 5% stockholder of PROLOR. Dr. Hsiao and Mr. Rubin are both directors of PROLOR and less
than 5% stockholders of PROLOR. The Board of Directors of each of OPKO and PROLOR (with the directors noted above abstaining)
have approved the Merger and the Merger Agreement. In addition, the transaction was also approved by PROLOR’s Strategic Alternatives
Committee.

We have reviewed all subsequent events and transactions that occurred after the date of our March 31, 2013 condensed consolidated
balance sheet date, through the time of filing this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
OVERVIEW

You should read this discussion together with the condensed consolidated financial statements, related Notes, and other financial
information included elsewhere in this report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (the “Form
10-K”). The following discussion contains assumptions, estimates and other forward-looking statements that involve a number of risks and
uncertainties, including those discussed under “Risk Factors,” in Part II, Item 1A of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2012. These risks could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements.
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We are a multi-national biopharmaceutical and diagnostics company that seeks to establish industry-leading positions in large and
rapidly growing medical markets by leveraging our discovery, development and commercialization expertise and our novel and proprietary
technologies. We are developing a range of solutions to diagnose, treat and prevent various conditions, including molecular diagnostics
tests, laboratory developed tests (“LDTs”), point-of-care tests and proprietary pharmaceuticals and vaccines. We plan to commercialize
these solutions on a global basis in large and high growth markets, including emerging markets.

We own established pharmaceutical platforms in Spain, Chile and Mexico, which are generating revenue and from which we expect to
generate positive cash flow and facilitate future market entry for our products currently in development. We also recently established
pharmaceutical operations in Brazil. We operate a specialty active pharmaceutical ingredients (“APIs”) manufacturer in Israel, which we
expect will facilitate the development of our pipeline of molecules and compounds for our proprietary molecular diagnostic and therapeutic
products. We operate a full-service medical laboratory specializing in urologic pathology with CLIA-certified laboratory facilities, that will
provide us with a platform to commercialize certain of our novel diagnostics tests currently in development. We operate a development
stage pharmaceutical company, with operations in the United States and Canada, which is engaged in the development of a vitamin D
prohormone to treat secondary hyperparathyroidism (known as “CTAP 101 Capsules™), and of a non-absorbed phosphate binder to treat
hyperphosphatemia in dialysis patients.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

In April 2013 we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “PROLOR Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which we will
acquire PROLOR Biotech, Inc. (“PROLOR”), a biopharmaceutical company focused on developing and commercializing longer-acting
proprietary versions of already approved therapeutic proteins, in an all-stock transaction. Under the terms of the agreement, holders of
PROLOR common stock will receive 0.9951 shares of our Common Stock for each share of PROLOR common stock. Based on a price of
$7.03 per share of our Common Stock, the transaction is valued at approximately $480 million, or $7.00 per share of PROLOR common
stock. The companies expect the transaction to be completed during the second half of 2013. Closing of the transaction is subject to certain
conditions including, the approval of PROLOR’s and our stockholders and other customary closing conditions.

PROLOR’s long-acting version of human growth hormone, hGH-CTP, has successfully completed four clinical trials, including a
Phase II trial in adults with growth hormone deficiency (GHD). PROLOR has reported that the trials showed that hGH-CTP has the
potential to reduce the required dosing frequency of human growth hormone from the current standard of one injection per day to a single
weekly injection. PROLOR also stated that hGH-CTP demonstrated a good safety and tolerability profile in these clinical trials. A Phase II
trial in children with GHD is currently ongoing, and a Phase III trial in adults with GHD is planned to begin in the second quarter of 2013.
Recombinant human growth hormone (hGH) is used for the long-term treatment of children and adults with GHD due to inadequate
secretion of endogenous growth hormone. hGH-CTP has been awarded orphan drug designation in the U.S. and Europe for both adults and
children with GHD.

In April 2013 we also acquired an approximate ten percent stake in OAO Pharmsynthez (“Pharmsynthez”), a Russian pharmaceutical
company. Our investment was part of an approximate $60.0 million two-stage financing in Pharmsynthez alongside the Russian
Corporation of Nanotechnologies, a Russian state owned company (“RUSNANO”). RUSNANO invested approximately $26.1 million in
the first step of the transaction. RUSNANO was established in 2007 to foster development of nanotechnology and to encourage the growth
of this field in Russia. In addition, we entered into an agreement with Pharmsynthez to develop and market several of our products for sale
in Russia and certain other Eastern European countries.

In March 2013, we completed the sale to RXi Pharmaceuticals Corporation (“RXi”) of substantially all of our assets in the field of
RNA interference (the “RNAi Assets”) (collectively, the “Asset Purchase Agreement”). As consideration for the RNAi Assets, at the
closing of the Asset Purchase Agreement, RXi issued to us 50 million shares of its common stock. In addition, pursuant to the Asset
Purchase Agreement, RXi will
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be required to pay us up to $50.0 million in milestone payments upon the successful development and commercialization of each drug
developed by RXi, certain of its affiliates or any of its or their licensees or sublicensees utilizing patents included within the RNAi Assets
(each, a “Qualified Drug”). In addition, RXi will be required to pay us royalties equal to: (a) a mid single-digit percentage of “Net Sales”
(as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement) with respect to each Qualified Drug sold for an ophthalmologic use during the applicable
“Royalty Period” (as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement); and (b) a low single-digit percentage of net sales with respect to each
Qualified Drug sold for a non-ophthalmologic use during the applicable royalty period. In addition to the Asset Purchase Agreement, we
also purchased 17,241,380 shares of RXi, or $2.5 million, as part of a $16.4 million financing for RXi, which included other related parties
to us. As a result of these transactions, we own approximately 21% of RXi.

In March 2013, we completed the acquisition of Cytochroma Inc., a corporation located in Markham, Canada (“Cytochroma’), whose
lead products, both in Phase 3 development, are CTAP101 Capsules, a vitamin D prohormone to treat secondary hyperparathyroidism
(“SHPT”) in patients with stage 3 or 4 chronic kidney disease (“CKD”) and vitamin D insufficiency, and Fermagate Tablets, a non-
absorbed phosphate binder to treat hyperphosphatemia in dialysis patients (the “Cytochroma Acquisition”).

In connection with the Cytochroma Acquisition, we delivered 20,517,030 of shares of our Common Stock valued at $146.9 million
based on the closing price per share of our Common Stock as reported by the NYSE on the actual closing date of the acquisition, or $7.16
per share. The number of shares issued was based on the volume-weighted average price per share of our Common Stock as reported on the
NYSE for the ten trading days immediately preceding the date of the purchase agreement for the Cytochroma Acquisition, or $4.87 per
share (the “Stock Consideration”). The Cytochroma agreement contains customary representations, warranties, conditions to closing,
indemnification rights and obligations of the parties. In addition, the Cytochroma Acquisition requires payments of up to an additional
$190.0 million in cash or additional shares of our Common Stock, at our election, upon the achievement of certain milestones relating to
development and annual revenue.

In March 2013, our Board of Directors declared a cash dividend to all Series D Preferred stockholders as of March 8, 2013. The total
cash dividend paid was approximately $3.0 million. In addition, the Company also exercised its option to convert all 1,129,032 shares of
our outstanding Series D Preferred Stock into 11,290,320 shares of our Common Stock effective of March 8, 2013. Following the
conversion there are no outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock.

In January 2013, we entered into note purchase agreements, with qualified institutional buyers and accredited investors (collectively,
the “Purchasers”) for the sale of $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.00% convertible senior notes due 2033 (the “Notes”) in a
private placement in reliance on exemptions from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”). The Purchasers of the
Notes include Frost Gamma Investments Trust, a trust affiliated with Dr. Phillip Frost, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Hsu
Gamma Investment, L.P., an entity affiliated with Dr. Jane H. Hsiao, our Vice Chairman and Chief Technology Officer. The Notes were
issued on January 30, 2013.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012

Revenues. Revenues for the first three months of 2013, were $31.4 million, compared to $8.8 million for the comparable 2012 period.
The increase in revenue principally reflected one-time, non—cash revenue related to the RXi Asset Purchase Agreement of $12.5 million,
and revenues related to the post March 31, 2012 acquisitions of ALS Distribuidora Limitada (“ALS”), Farmadiet Group Holding, S.L.
(“Farmadiet”), SciGen (I.L.) Ltd, (“SciGen”) and Prost-Data, Inc. (“OURLab”’), which contributed $1.5 million, $4.3 million, $0.7 million
and $2.9 million, respectively, during the 2013 period. Revenue from our Chilean operations, excluding revenue generated by ALS,
increased $0.5 million during the 2013 period, which was partially offset by a decrease of $0.3 million in revenue from our Mexican
operations. Revenue from our Israeli API business increased $0.4 million during the 2013 period. Revenue related to our molecular
diagnostics collaboration agreements and license agreements, excluding the RXi revenue, increased $0.3 million during the first three
months of 2013 compared to the 2012 period.

Gross margin. Gross margin for the first three months of 2013 increased to $19.6 million from $3.8 million for the comparable 2012
period. Gross margin for the 2013 period increased compared to the 2012 period primarily as a result of $12.5 million in one-time, non—
cash, up-front license revenue consideration received from RXi, as described above, which had no accompanying cost as the cost to develop
the technology sold to RXi was previously expensed as a research and development cost when incurred in prior periods. Gross margin for
the 2013 period also increased due to gross margins recorded by ALS, Farmadiet and OURLab of $0.5 million, $2.6 million, and $0.2
million, respectively. Gross margin from our Israeli API business increased $0.4 million during the 2013 period, offset by decreased gross
margin generated from our Mexico operations of $0.6 million.



Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the first three months of 2013 were
$12.4 million, compared to $4.7 million for the comparable 2012 period. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses
during the 2013 period principally resulted from $4.7 million of such expenses recorded during the 2013 period by ALS, Farmadiet,
SciGen, OURLab, and Cytochroma, which businesses were acquired post March 31, 2012. Excluding the selling, general and administrative
expenses of the acquired businesses, selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $3.0 million during the 2013 period
principally as a result of increased personnel expenses and professional fees associated with our increased operations. Selling, general and
administrative expenses during the first three months of 2013 and 2012, also include equity-based compensation expense of $1.3 million
and $0.6 million, respectively.
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Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses for the first three months of 2013 and 2012 were $9.9
million and $4.8 million, respectively. The increase in research and development expenses during the 2013 period principally resulted from
an increase of $1.7 million related to the Cytochroma development programs, including the cost of the ongoing Phase 3 clinical trials for
CTAP 101 Capsules, which are currently enrolling patients. Research and development expenses during the first three months of 2013 and
2012, also include equity-based compensation expense of $3.9 million and $0.6 million, respectively. The increase in equity-based
compensation expense principally reflects the mark to market impact of Common Stock options granted to non-employees and the
associated increase in the trading price of our Common Stock during the 2013 period.

Contingent consideration. Contingent consideration expenses for the first three months of 2013 and 2012 were $1.3 million and $1.1
million, respectively. The increase in contingent consideration expense resulted from the change in the fair value of the contingent
consideration liabilities due to the time value of money and the impact of the change in the underlying assumptions, if any, during the
period. The contingent consideration liabilities relate to potential amounts payable to CURNA, Inc., Claros Diagnostics Inc. (“OPKO
Diagnostics”), FineTech Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., Farmadiet and Cytochroma’s former stockholders pursuant to our acquisition agreements in
January 2011, October 2011, December 2011, August 2012 and March 2013, respectively.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets was $2.7 million and $2.0 million for the first three months of
2013 and 2012, respectively. Amortization expense increased due to the acquisitions of ALS, Farmadiet, OURLab and Cytochroma, in
April 2012, August 2012, December 2012 and March 2013, respectively.

Other income and (expense), net. During the first three months of 2013, we recorded a $24.8 million non-cash charge related to the
increase in the fair value of the embedded derivatives in the Notes principally due to an increase in the market value of our Common Stock
during the 2013 period, partially offset by a gain of $2.3 million on the sale of certain of our investments available for sale and other
income of $1.3 million related to changes in the fair value of the warrants and options received in connection with our investment in
Neovasc, Inc. Other income and (expense), net, for the first three months of 2013, also included $2.9 million of interest expense primarily
related to the interest incurred by the Notes and the amortization of the deferred financing costs and the embedded derivatives of the Notes.
For the first three months of 2012, other income, net included $1.1 million of other income recognized from the change in fair value of the
warrants received in connection with our investment in Biozone Pharmaceuticals, Inc., partially offset by the interest incurred in our
Chilean lines of credit.

Loss from investment in investees. Loss from investment in investees was $3.9 million and $0.5 million for the first three months of
2013 and 2012, respectively. The increase in loss from investment in investees is primarily due to the result of increased research and
development activities at our investees as well as the impact of including the activities of RXi for the first three months of 2013.

Income taxes. Our income tax provision reflects the projected income tax payable in Israel, Chile, Spain and Canada. We have
recorded a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets in the U.S.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At March 31, 2013, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities of approximately $181.6 million. Cash used in operations
during 2013 primarily reflects expenses related to selling, general and administrative activities related to our corporate operations, research
and development activities and our operations in Chile, Spain, SciGen and Mexico, partially offset by cash provided from our operations at
FineTech. Cash used in investing activities primarily reflects the $2.5 million investment in RXi, capital expenditures of $0.9 million and
net cash
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used in business combinations of $0.1 million offset partially from the sale of available for sale securities. Cash provided by financing
activities primarily reflects the issuance of our 3.00% convertible senior notes and $1.0 million received from Common Stock option and
Common Stock warrant exercises. Since our inception, we have not generated sufficient gross margins to offset our operating and other
expenses and our primary source of cash has been from the public and private placement of stock and credit facilities available to us.

In January 2013, we issued $175.0 million of Notes. The Notes were sold in a private placement in reliance on exemptions from
registration under the Securities Act. A $4.5 million discount was granted to the placement agent and an additional $0.4 million in deferred
charges were recorded for professional fees related to the issuance. Net cash proceeds from the offering totaled $170.2 million. Interest on
the Notes is payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1, beginning August 1, 2013. Holders of the Notes may require us to
repurchase the Notes for 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, on February 1, 2019, February 1, 2023 and
February 1, 2028, or following the occurrence of a fundamental change as defined in the indenture governing the Notes.

In connection with our acquisitions of CURNA, OPKO Diagnostics, FineTech and Cytochroma we agreed to pay future consideration
to the sellers upon the achievement of certain events, including minimum cash payments of $5.0 million to the former stockholder of
FineTech upon the achievement of certain sales milestones, of which $2.7 million was paid in March 2013; up to an additional $19.1
million in shares of our Common Stock to the former stockholders of OPKO Diagnostics upon and subject to the achievement of certain
milestones; and up to an additional $190.0 million in either shares of our Common Stock or cash, at our option subject to the achievement
of certain milestones to the former shareholders of Cytochroma. In connection with the acquisition of Farmadiet, we agreed to pay an
additional €3.4 million (US$4.3 million) in August 2013 and €3.4 million (US$4.3 million) in February 2014. Further, upon the
achievement of certain development milestones, we are obligated to issue 125,000 shares of our Common Stock and €0.8 million (US$1.0
million) in shares of our Common Stock or cash, at our option.

As of March 31, 2013, we have outstanding lines of credit in the aggregate amount of $16.8 million with 15 financial institutions in
Chile and Spain, of which $2.8 million is unused. The weighted average interest rate on these lines of credit is approximately 6.5%. These
lines of credit are short-term and are generally due within three months. These lines of credit are used primarily as a source of working
capital for inventory purchases. The highest balance at any time during the three months ended March 31, 2013 was $17.7 million. We
intend to continue to enter into these lines of credit as needed. There is no assurance that these lines of credit or other funding sources will
be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all, in the future.

We expect to incur losses from operations for the foreseeable future. We expect to incur substantial research and development
expenses, including expenses related to the hiring of personnel and additional clinical trials. We expect that selling, general and
administrative expenses will also increase as we expand our sales, marketing and administrative staff and add infrastructure.

We believe that the cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities on hand at March 31, 2013, which include the net proceeds from
the Notes, and the amounts available to be borrowed under our lines of credit are sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements for
operations and debt service beyond the next 12 months. We based this estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong or are subject to
change, and we may be required to use our available cash resources sooner than we currently expect. If we acquire additional assets or
companies, accelerate our product development programs or initiate additional clinical trials, we will need additional funds. Our future cash
requirements will depend on a number of factors, including possible acquisitions, the continued progress of research and development of
our product candidates, the timing and outcome of clinical trials and regulatory approvals, the costs involved in preparing, filing,
prosecuting, maintaining, defending, and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property rights, the status of competitive products,
the availability of financing, and our success in developing markets for our product candidates. If we are not able to secure additional
funding when needed, we may have to delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate one or more of our clinical trials or research and
development programs or possible acquisitions.
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The following table provides information as of March 31, 2013 with respect to the amounts and timing of our known contractual
obligation payments due by period.

Nine Months
ending

Contractual obligations December 31,
(n thousands) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total
Open purchase orders $§ 8409 $§ 2 $— $— $§— $ — $§ — § 8411
Operating leases 1,902 1,807 1,325 1,184 748 254 286 7,506
3.00% convertible senior notes — — — — — — 196,421 196,421
Mortgages and other debts payable (1) 1,972 582 497 389 353 299 1,724 5,816
Lines of credit 16,825 — — — — — 16,825
Interest commitments 4,853 5,270 5,267 5,264 5,264 5,262 506 31,686
Total $ 33961 $7,661 $7,089 $6,837 $6,365 $5,815 $198,937  $266,665

@ Excludes $1.3 million of consolidated liabilities related to SciGen, as to which there is no recourse against us.

The preceding table does not include information where the amounts of the obligations are not currently determinable, including
contractual obligations in connection with product license agreements and contingent consideration that includes payments upon
achievement of certain milestones.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Accounting estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Equity-based compensation. We recognize equity based compensation as an expense in our financial statements and that cost is
measured at the fair value of the awards and expensed over their vesting period. Equity-based compensation arrangements to non-
employees are recorded at their fair value on the measurement date. We estimate the grant-date fair value of our stock option grants using a
valuation model known as the Black-Scholes-Merton formula or the “Black-Scholes Model” and allocate the resulting compensation
expense over the corresponding requisite service period associated with each grant. The Black-Scholes Model requires the use of several
variables to estimate the grant-date fair value of stock options including expected term, expected volatility, expected dividends and risk-
free interest rate. We perform significant analyses to calculate and select the appropriate variable assumptions used in the Black-Scholes
Model. We also perform significant analyses to estimate forfeitures of equity-based awards. We are required to adjust our forfeiture
estimates on at least an annual basis based on the number of share-based awards that ultimately vest. The selection of assumptions and
estimated forfeiture rates is subject to significant judgment and future changes to our assumptions and estimates may have a material
impact on our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (net realizable value). Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out
method. We consider such factors as the amount of inventory on hand, estimated time required to sell such inventories, remaining shelf-
life, and current market conditions to determine whether inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired in business combinations, licensing and other
transactions were $368.1 million and $176.2 million, respectively, at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, representing approximately
56% and 61% of total assets, respectively.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations, licensing and other transactions are recognized at the date of
acquisition at their respective fair values. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired is
recognized as goodwill. We determined the fair value of intangible assets, including in-process research and development (“IPR&D”),
using the “income method.” This method starts with a forecast of net cash flows, risk adjusted for estimated probabilities of technical and
regulatory success (for IPR&D) and adjusted to present value using an appropriate discount rate that reflects the risk associated with the
cash flow streams. All assets are valued from a market participant view which might be different than our specific views. The valuation
process is very complex and requires significant input and judgment using internal and external sources. Although the valuations are
required to be finalized within a one-year period, it must consider all and only those facts and evidence available at the acquisition date.
The most complex and judgmental matters applicable to the valuation process are summarized below:

»  Unit of account — Most intangible assets are valued as single global assets rather than multiple assets for each jurisdiction or
indication after considering the development stage, expected levels of incremental costs to obtain additional approvals, risks
associated with further development, amount and timing of benefits expected to be derived in the future, expected patent lives in
various jurisdictions and the intention to promote the asset as a global brand.

» Estimated useful life — The asset life expected to contribute meaningful cash flows is determined after considering all pertinent
matters associated with the asset, including expected regulatory approval dates (if unapproved), exclusivity periods and other
legal, regulatory or contractual provisions as well as the effects of any obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic
factors, including barriers to entry.

* Probability of Technical and Regulatory Success (“PTRS”) Rate — PTRS rates are determined based upon industry averages
considering the respective programs development stage and disease indication and adjusted for specific information or data
known at the acquisition date. Subsequent clinical results or other internal or external data obtained could alter the PTRS rate
and materially impact the estimated fair value of the intangible asset in subsequent periods leading to impairment charges.

* Projections — Future revenues are estimated after considering many factors such as initial market opportunity, pricing, sales
trajectories to peak sales levels, competitive environment and product evolution. Future costs and expenses are estimated after
considering historical market trends, market participant synergies and the timing and level of additional development costs to
obtain the initial or additional regulatory approvals, maintain or further enhance the product. We generally assume initial
positive cash flows to commence shortly after the receipt of expected regulatory approvals which typically may not occur for a
number of years. Actual cash flows attributed to the project are likely to be different than those assumed since projections are
subjected to multiple factors including trial results and regulatory matters which could materially change the ultimate
commercial success of the asset as well as significantly alter the costs to develop the respective asset into commercially viable
products.

» Tax rates — The expected future income is tax effected using a market participant tax rate. Our recent valuations typically use a
U.S. tax rate (and applicable state taxes) after considering the jurisdiction in which the intellectual property is held and location
of research and manufacturing infrastructure. We also considered that any earnings repatriation would likely have U.S. tax
consequences.

» Discount rate — Discount rates are selected after considering the risks inherent in the future cash flows; the assessment of the
asset’s life cycle and the competitive trends impacting the asset, including consideration of any technical, legal, regulatory, or
economic barriers to entry, as well as expected changes in standards of practice for indications addressed by the asset.



Goodwill was $82.7 million and $80.5 million, respectively, at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. Goodwill is tested at least
annually for impairment or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable, on an enterprise level by assessing qualitative factors or performing a quantitative analysis in determining whether it is more
likely than not that its fair value exceeds the carrying value. Examples of qualitative factors include our share price, our financial
performance compared to budgets, long-term financial plans, macroeconomic, industry and market conditions as well as the substantial
excess of fair value over the carrying value of net assets from the annual impairment test performed in the prior year.

Intangible assets were $285.4 million and $95.8 million, including IPR&D of $203.3 million and $11.5 million, respectively, at
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances warrant
a review, although IPRD is required to be tested at least annually. Intangible assets are highly vulnerable to impairment charges,
particularly newly acquired assets for recently launched products or IPR&D. These assets are initially measured at fair value and therefore
any reduction in expectations used in the valuations could potentially lead to impairment. Some of the more common potential risks leading
to impairment include competition, earlier than expected loss of exclusivity, pricing pressures, adverse regulatory changes or clinical trial
results, delay or failure to obtain regulatory approval and additional development costs, inability to achieve expected synergies, higher
operating costs, changes in tax laws and other macro-economic changes. The complexity in estimating the fair value of intangible assets in
connection with an impairment test is similar to the initial valuation.

Considering the high risk nature of research and development and the industry’s success rate of bringing developmental compounds
to market, IPR&D impairment charges are likely to occur in future periods. IPR&D is closely monitored and assessed each period for
impairment.

Contingent consideration. Each period we revalue the contingent consideration obligations associated with certain acquisitions to
their fair value and record increases in the fair value as contingent consideration expense and decreases in the fair value as contingent
consideration income. Changes in contingent consideration result from changes in the assumptions regarding probabilities of successful
achievement of related milestones, the estimated timing in which the milestones are achieved and the discount rate used to estimate the fair
value of the liability. Contingent consideration may change significantly as our development programs progress, revenue estimates evolve
and additional data is obtained, impacting our assumptions. The assumptions used in estimating fair value require significant judgment. The
use of different assumptions and judgments could result in a materially different estimate of fair value which may have a material impact on
our results from operations and financial position.

Allowance for doubtful accounts and revenue recognition. Generally, we recognize revenue from product sales when goods are
shipped and title and risk of loss transfer to our customers. Our estimates for sales returns are based upon the historical patterns of products
returned matched against the sales from which they originated, and management’s evaluation of specific factors that may increase or
decrease the risk of product returns. Revenue for services is recognized on the accrual basis at the time test results are reported, which
approximates when services are provided. Services are provided to certain patients covered by various third-party payer programs
including various managed care organizations, as well as the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Billings for services under third-party
payer programs are included in sales net of allowances for contractual discounts and allowances for differences between the amounts billed
and estimated program payment amounts. Adjustments to the estimated payment amounts based on final settlement with the programs are
recorded upon settlement as an adjustment to revenue.

We analyze accounts receivable and historical bad debt levels, customer credit worthiness and current economic trends when
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts using the specific identification method. Our reported net loss is directly
affected by management’s estimate of the collectability of accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts recognized in our
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $0.7 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

Recent accounting pronouncements. In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU”) 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, (“ASU 2013-
02”). ASU 2013-02 requires the presentation of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income in either (1) the notes or
(2) the face of the financial statements. We adopted ASU 2013-02 for our first quarter ended March 31, 2013. The adoption of ASU 2013-
02 did not have a material impact in our condensed consolidated financial statements, but did require certain additional disclosures.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In the normal course of doing business, we are exposed to the risks associated with foreign currency exchange rates and changes in
interest rates.




Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk — Although we do not speculate in the foreign exchange market, we may from time to time
manage exposures that arise in the normal course of business related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates by entering into
offsetting positions through the use of foreign exchange forward contracts. Certain firmly committed transactions are hedged with foreign
exchange forward contracts. As exchange rates change, gains and losses on the exposed transactions are partially offset by gains and losses
related to the hedging contracts. Both the exposed transactions and the hedging contracts are translated at current spot rates, with gains and
losses included in earnings.

Our derivative activities, which consist of foreign exchange forward contracts, are initiated to hedge forecasted cash flows that are
exposed to foreign currency risk. The foreign exchange forward contracts generally require us to exchange local currencies for foreign
currencies based on pre-established exchange rates at the contracts’ maturity dates. As exchange rates change, gains and losses on these
contracts are generated based on the change in the exchange rates that are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations at
maturity, and offset the impact of the change in exchange rates on the foreign currency cash flows that are hedged. If the counterparties to
the exchange contracts do not fulfill their obligations to deliver the contracted currencies, we could be at risk for currency related
fluctuations. We had $1.1 million in foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding at March 31, 2013, primarily to hedge Chilean-based
operating cash flows against U.S. dollars. If Chilean Pesos were to strengthen in relation to the U.S. dollar, our loss or gain on hedged
foreign currency cash-flows would be offset by the derivative contracts, with a net effect of zero.
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We do not engage in trading market risk sensitive instruments or purchasing hedging instruments or “other than trading” instruments
that are likely to expose us to significant market risk, whether interest rate, foreign currency exchange, commodity price, or equity price
risk.

Interest Rate Risk — Our exposure to market risk relates to our cash and investments and to our borrowings. We maintain an
investment portfolio of money market funds. The securities in our investment portfolio are not leveraged, and are, due to their very short-
term nature, subject to minimal interest rate risk. We currently do not hedge interest rate exposure. Because of the short-term maturities of
our investments, we do not believe that a change in market interest rates would have a significant negative impact on the value of our
investment portfolio except for reduced income in a low interest rate environment.

At March 31, 2013, we had cash and cash equivalents of $181.6 million. The weighted average interest rate related to our cash and
cash equivalents for the three months ended March 31, 2013 was 0%. As of March 31, 2013, the principal value of our credit lines was
$16.8 million at a weighted average interest rate of approximately 6.5% for the three months then ended. In addition, we have outstanding
3.00% convertible senior notes with a face value of $175 million.

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximizing yields without
significantly increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we invest our excess cash in debt instruments of the U.S. Government and its
agencies, bank obligations, repurchase agreements and high-quality corporate issuers, and money market funds that invest in such debt
instruments, and, by policy, restrict our exposure to any single corporate issuer by imposing concentration limits. To minimize the exposure
due to adverse shifts in interest rates, we maintain investments at an average maturity of generally less than three months.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined in
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Rule 13a-15(e) as of March 31, 2013. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information the Company is required to
disclose in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including
the CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

Changes to the Company’s Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In connection with the Farmadiet Group Holding, S.L., SciGen (I.L.) Ltd, Prost-Data, Inc and Cytochroma Inc. acquisitions in August
2012, October 2012, December 2012 and March 2013, respectively, we began implementing standards and procedures at Farmadiet,
SciGen and OURLab including upgrading and establishing controls over accounting systems, and adding employees and consultants who
are trained and experienced in the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP to ensure that we have in place
appropriate internal control over financial reporting at Farmadiet, SciGen, OURLab and Cytochroma. Other than as set forth above with
respect to Farmadiet, SciGen, OURLab and Cytochroma, there have been no changes to the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Company’s first fiscal quarter of 2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

On April 29, 2013, a putative class action was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in and for Clark County, Nevada by Peter
Turkell against PROLOR Biotech, Inc. (“PROLOR?”), the members of the PROLOR Board of Directors, individually (including Drs. Frost
and Hsiao and Steven Rubin), and the Company (styled Peter Turkell v. PROLOR Biotech, Inc. et al., No: A-13-680860-B). On May 1,
2013, a second putative class action was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in and for Clark County, Nevada by Floyd A. Fried
against PROLOR, the members of the PROLOR Board, individually (including Drs. Frost and Hsiao and Steven Rubin), the Company and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, POM Acquisition, Inc. (styled Floyd A Fried v. PROLOR Biotech, Inc. et al., No: A-13-681060). A third
putative class action was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in and for Clark County, Nevada by Marc Henzel against PROLOR, the
members of the PROLOR Board, individually (including Drs. Frost and Hsiao and Steven Rubin), and the Company (styled Marc Henzel
vs. PROLOR Biotech, Inc. et al., No: A-13-681020-C). On May 3, 2013, a fourth putative class action suit was filed in the Eighth Judicial
District Court in and for Clark County, Nevada by Bradford W. Baer, Trustee of the B.W. Baer & P. Shapiro-Baer Revocable Trust and
Pamela Shapiro-Baer against PROLOR, the members of the PROLOR Board individually (including Drs. Frost and Hsiao and Steven
Rubin), and the Company (styled Bradford W. Baer, Trustee of the B.W. Baer & P. Shapiro-Baer Revocable Trust and Pamela Shapiro-
Baer v. PROLOR Biotech, Inc. et al., No: A-13-681218-B). On May 6, 2013, a fifth putative class action suit was filed in the Eighth
Judicial District Court in and for Clark County, Nevada by James Hegarty against PROLOR, the members of the PROLOR Board
individually (including Drs. Frost and Hsiao and Steven Rubin), and the Company (styled James Hegarty v. PROLOR Biotech, Inc. et al.,
No: A-13-681250-C). On May 6, 2013, a sixth putative class action suit was filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court in and for Clark
County, Nevada by Jorge L. Salas, Michael Cardello, Ariel Heimann, Jorge Salas, Israel Kuperman, Ido Greenberg, Gideon Schurr, and
Yoav Poles against PROLOR, the members of the PROLOR Board individually (including Drs. Frost and Hsiao and Steven Rubin), and the
Company (styled Jorge Salas, et al. v. PROLOR Biotech, Inc. et al., No: A-13-681279-C).

Each of these suits alleges a claim against the members of the PROLOR Board for breach of fiduciary duty and a claim against the
Company for aiding and abetting the individual defendants’ alleged breach of fiduciary duty. Each suit seeks to enjoin the pending
transaction between the Company and PROLOR, as well as attorneys’ fees. The Fried suit, the Henzel suit, the Baer suit, the Hegarty suit,
and the Salas suit also seek rescission and money damages. The Turkell suit seeks imposition of a constructive trust for any benefits
improperly received by the defendants. The Company denies the allegations and intends to vigorously defend the actions.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Other than as set forth below, there have been no material changes from the risk factors as previously disclosed in the Item 1A of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Failure to close the proposed merger with PROLOR Biotech, Inc. could have a negative impact on the Company and our financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and stock price.

The proposed merger could cause disruptions to our business or business relationships, which could have an adverse impact on the
Company and our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, including the following:

. the diversion of management time on merger-related activities;
. risks that the proposed transaction disrupts current plans and operations;
. the outcome of any legal proceedings instituted against PROLOR, the Company and/or others relating to the merger agreement;

. the effect of the announcement of the merger on the Company’s business relationships, operating results and business generally;
and

. the amount of the costs, fees, expenses and charges related to the merger.

In addition, we have incurred, and will continue to incur, significant costs, expenses and fees for professional services and other
transaction costs in connection with the merger, and many of these fees and costs are payable by us regardless of whether or not the merger
is consummated. Following the announcement of the merger, six putative class action lawsuits have been filed (which name the Company
as a defendant) and several law firms specializing in shareholder lawsuits have announced they are investigating the Board of Directors of
PROLOR for breaches of fiduciary duty and other violations of state law in connection with the merger. Failure of or delay in closing of the
merger could adversely affect the market price of the stock.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.



Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit 2.10+

Exhibit 2.11+®

Exhibit 3.1@
Exhibit 3.26)
Exhibit 4.3¢
Exhibit 31.1

Share Purchase Agreement, dated January 8, 2013, by and among Cytochroma Inc., Cytochroma Holdings ULC,
Cytochroma Canada Inc., Cytochroma Development Inc. Proventiv Therapeutics, LLC, Cytochroma Cayman Islands,
Ltd., OPKO Health, Inc., and OPKO IP Holdings, Inc.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated March 1, 2013, by and among RXi Pharmaceuticals Corporation and OPKO Health,
Inc.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.
Amended and Restated By-Laws.
Indenture, dated as of January 30, 2013, between OPKO Health, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

Certification by Phillip Frost, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period
ended March 31, 2013.
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Exhibit 31.2 Certification by Juan F. Rodriguez, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities

and Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the quarterly
period ended March 31, 2013.

Exhibit 32.1 Certification by Phillip Frost, Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013.

Exhibit 32.2 Certification by Juan F. Rodriguez, Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013.

Exhibit 101.INS*  XBRL Instance Document
Exhibit 101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

Exhibit 101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
Exhibit 101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
Exhibit 101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

Exhibit 101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*

()

@)

3)

@)

As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished herewith and not filed for purposes of sections 11 and 12
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certain confidential material contained in the document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Filed with the Company’s Schedule 13D filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 22, 2013, and incorporated
herein by reference.

Filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 11, 2007, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2008, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 5, 2013, and
incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 10, 2013
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OPKO Health, Inc.

/s/ Adam Logal

Adam Logal
Vice President, Finance, Chief Accounting
Officer and Treasurer
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Exhibit Number

Exhibit 2.10+

Exhibit 31.1

Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 32.1

Exhibit 32.2

Exhibit 101.INS*
Exhibit 101.SCH*
Exhibit 101.CAL*
Exhibit 101.DEF*
Exhibit 101.LAB*
Exhibit 101.PRE*

Description

Share Purchase Agreement, dated January 8, 2013, by and among Cytochroma Inc., Cytochroma Holdings ULC,
Cytochroma Canada Inc., Cytochroma Development Inc. Proventiv Therapeutics, LLC, Cytochroma Cayman
Islands, Ltd., OPKO Health, Inc., and OPKO IP Holdings, Inc.

Certification by Phillip Frost, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the quarterly
period ended March 31, 2013.

Certification by Juan F. Rodriguez, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 2013.

Certification by Phillip Frost, Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013.

Certification by Juan F. Rodriguez, Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*  Asprovided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished herewith and not filed for purposes of sections 11 and 12 of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
+  Certain confidential material contained in the document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange

Commission.
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***CERTAIN INFORMATION IN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE
COMMISSION. CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT HAS BEEN REQUESTED WITH RESPECT TO THE OMITTED
PORTIONS. THREE ASTERISKS DENOTE SUCH OMISSIONS.

Exhibit 2.10
SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

BY AND AMONG
CYTOCHROMA INC.,,
CYTOCHROMA HOLDINGS ULC,
CYTOCHROMA CANADA INC.
CYTOCHROMA DEVELOPMENT INC.
PROVENTIV THERAPEUTICS, LLC
CYTOCHROMA CAYMAN ISLANDS, LTD.,
OPKO HEALTH, INC.
and
OPKO IP HOLDINGS, INC.

January 8, 2013



ARTICLE I
Section 1.1
Section 1.2
Section 1.3

ARTICLE II
Section 2.1
Section 2.2
Section 2.3
Section 2.4
Section 2.5
Section 2.6

ARTICLE III
Section 3.1
Section 3.2
Section 3.3
Section 3.4
Section 3.5
Section 3.6
Section 3.7
Section 3.8
Section 3.9
Section 3.10
Section 3.11
Section 3.12
Section 3.13
Section 3.14
Section 3.15
Section 3.16
Section 3.17
Section 3.18
Section 3.19
Section 3.20

Section 3.21
Section 3.22
Section 3.23
Section 3.24
Section 3.25
Section 3.26
Section 3.27
Section 3.28

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PURCHASE AND SALE
Purchase and Sale
Closing Date

Earn-Out Consideration

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER PARTIES
Organization

Authorization and Enforceability

Bankruptcy, Insolvency and Reorganization

Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties

Brokers Fees

Accredited Investor Status

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES CONCERNING THE COMPANIES
Organization and Related Matters
Books and Records

Capitalization

Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties
Financial Statements

No Undisclosed Liabilities
Absence of Certain Developments
Taxes

Real Property

Tangible Personal Property; Title; Sufficiency of Assets Section 3.10(a)
Intellectual Property

Contracts

Employee Benefits

Labor

Litigation

Compliance with Laws; Permits
Environmental Matters

Insurance

Payables

FDA and Related Matters

Suppliers

Related Party Transactions

Brokers Fees

Absence of Certain Business Practices
Business Continuity

Bank Accounts; Powers of Attorney
Restructuring

No Misrepresentation

O 00X I I Wb



Section 3.29

ARTICLE IV
Section 4.1
Section 4.2
Section 4.3
Section 4.4
Section 4.5
Section 4.6
Section 4.7
Section 4.8

ARTICLE V
Section 5.1
Section 5.2
Section 5.3
Section 5.4
Section 5.5
Section 5.6
Section 5.7
Section 5.8
Section 5.9
Section 5.10
Section 5.11
Section 5.12
Section 5.13
Section 5.14
Section 5.15
Section 5.16
Section 5.17
Section 5.18

ARTICLE VI
Section 6.1
Section 6.2

ARTICLE VII
Section 7.1
Section 7.2
Section 7.3
Section 7.4
Section 7.5
Section 7.6
Section 7.7
Section 7.8

Privacy Laws

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER AND OPKO HEALTH
Organization

Authorization and Enforceability

Conflicts; Consent of Third Parties

Brokers Fees

No Proceedings

Investment Purpose

SEC Reports; Financial Statements

Issuance of Opko Shares

COVENANTS

Commercially Reasonable Efforts; Notices and Consents
Access to Information; Financial Statements
Operation of Business

Further Assurances; Litigation Support

Names and Logos

Mail; Payments; Receivables

Public Announcements; Confidentiality

Tax Covenants

Exclusive Dealing

Resignations; Employment Arrangements
Tangible Property

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Pre-Closing Restructuring

Discharge of Indebtedness and Release of Liens
Opko Health Reporting Obligations

Continued Listing

Opko Health Guarantee

Parent Shareholder Approval

CLOSING CONDITIONS
Conditions to Obligation of Purchaser and Opko Health
Conditions to Obligation of Seller

INDEMNIFICATION

Indemnity Obligations of Seller Parties

Indemnity Obligations of Purchaser

Indemnification Procedures

Expiration of Representations and Warranties

Certain Limitations

Indemnification Payments to Purchaser Indemnitees; Right of Set-Off
Treatment of Indemnification Payments

Mitigation

35

35
35
36
36
36
36
36
37
37

38
38
38
39
41
42
42
42
43
44
44
45
45
45
47
47
47
47
48

48
48

50

51
51
52
52
54
54
54
55
55



Section 7.9
Section 7.10

ARTICLE VIII
Section 8.1
Section 8.2

ARTICLE IX
Section 9.1
Section 9.2
Section 9.3
Section 9.4
Section 9.5
Section 9.6
Section 9.7
Section 9.8
Section 9.9
Section 9.10
Section 9.11
Section 9.12
Section 9.13
Section 9.14
Section 9.15
Section 9.16
Section 9.17

EXHIBITS:

Exhibit A:
Exhibit B:

Right to Indemnification Not Affected by Knowledge or Waiver

No Claims Against the Companies

TERMINATION
Termination of Agreement
Effect of Termination

MISCELLANEOUS

Certain Definitions

Expenses

Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue

Entire Agreement; Amendments and Waivers
Section Headings

Notices

Severability

Binding Effect; Assignment; Third-Party Beneficiaries
Counterparts

Remedies Cumulative

Exhibits and Schedules

Interpretation

Arm’s Length Negotiations

Construction

Specific Performance

Waiver of Jury Trial

Time of Essence

Form of General Release
Form of Non-Competition Agreement

il

55
55

55
55
56

56
56
66
66
67
67
67
68
68
69
69
69
69
70
70
70
70
70



SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of January 8, 2013, is by and among Cytochroma Inc., a
corporation organized under the laws of Ontario (“Seller”), Cytochroma Holdings ULC, an unlimited liability company organized under the
laws of Alberta (“Holdings”), Cytochroma Canada Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of Canada (‘Parent,” and together with
Seller and Holdings, the “Seller Parties”), Cytochroma Development Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of Barbados
(“Development”), Proventiv Therapeutics, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Proventiv”’), Cytochroma Cayman Islands, Ltd., a
limited company organized under the laws of Cayman Islands (“Cayman Newco,” and together with Development and Proventiv, the
“Companies” and each of such entities is referred to as a “Company”), Opko Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Opko Health”), and
Opko IP Holdings, Inc., a limited company organized under the laws of Cayman Islands (“Purchaser”) and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of Opko Health. The Seller Parties, the Companies, Opko Health and Purchaser are sometimes referred to herein collectively as
the “Parties” and each individually as a ‘Party.”

7).

WHEREAS, Seller owns all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Development, no par value (the “Development Shares”);
WHEREAS, Holdings owns all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Proventiv (the “Proventiv Interests”);

WHEREAS, Seller has organized Cayman Newco, and pursuant to the terms hereof, shall sell, transfer and assign all of its assets and
liabilities to Cayman Newco (including the Development Shares) in exchange for additional common shares of Cayman Newco, which
together with the common shares of Cayman Newco owned by it as of the date hereof, shall constitute 100% of the issued and outstanding
common shares of Cayman Newco as of the Closing (the “Cayman Newco Shares,” and together with the Proventiv Interests, the
“Shares”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms hereof, at least one day after the foregoing contribution to Cayman Newco, Seller shall convert
into an unlimited liability company under the laws of Alberta, and at least one day following such conversion, Holdings shall contribute the
Proventiv Interests to Seller;

WHEREAS, the Shares constitute all of the issued and outstanding equity securities of Cayman Newco and Proventiv;

WHEREAS, the Parties desire for Purchaser to purchase from Seller, and for Seller to sell to Purchaser, the Shares, subject to the
terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, representations and warranties made herein and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby are acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:



ARTICLE 1
PURCHASE AND SALE

Section 1.1 Purchase and Sale.

(a) On and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, at the closing of the transactions contemplated hereby (the
“Closing”), Seller shall sell to Purchaser, free and clear of all Liens (other than any restrictions under Applicable Securities Laws), and
Purchaser shall purchase from Seller, all of the Shares. In furtherance thereof, at the Closing Seller shall deliver to Purchaser, free and clear
of all Liens (other than any restrictions under Applicable Securities Laws), any certificates representing the Shares, each duly endorsed in
blank or with duly executed stock powers or assignments attached, with all required share transfer tax stamps affixed thereto.

(b) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the aggregate consideration for the Shares acquired by Purchaser
hereunder (collectively, the “Transaction Consideration”) shall consist of:

(i) a number of unregistered shares, rounded up to the nearest whole share (the “Closing Shares”) of Opko Health common
stock, par value US$0.01 (“Opko Common Stock”), determined by dividing US$100,000,000 by the volume-weighted average
price per share of Opko Common Stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange for the ten (10) trading days immediately
preceding the date of this Agreement (the “Opko Closing Value”); and

(ii) the Earn-Out Consideration.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, each Seller Party covenants and agrees that any distribution of the
Opko Shares to its equity holders shall not (i) violate or conflict with, or result in the breach of, any provision of the Governing Documents
of such Seller Party, and shall otherwise be in full compliance with its Governing Documents; (ii) conflict with, violate, result in the breach
or termination of, constitute a default under, result in an acceleration of, constitute a change of control under, or create in any party the right
to accelerate, terminate, modify or cancel, any Contract to which Seller or any Company is a party or by which Seller or such Company or
its respective properties, assets or equity interests are subject, or require a Consent from any Person in order to avoid any such conflict,
violation, breach, termination, default or acceleration; (iii) violate any Law or any Order by which such Seller Party is bound; and
(iv) require any Consent, Order, waiver, declaration or filing with, or notification to any Person, including any Governmental Body.
Furthermore, any distribution of the Opko Shares by any Seller Party to its equity holders shall be in compliance with all Applicable
Securities Laws and shall be made in such a manner as does not require registration under the Securities Act or any other Applicable
Securities Law. No Transaction Consideration will be distributed to ***, *** or *** for entering into the Non-Competition Agreements.

Section 1.2 Closing Date. The Closing shall take place at the offices of Akerman Senterfitt, One Southeast Third Avenue, Suite 2500,
Miami, Florida 33131, at 10:00 a.m. on the third Business Day following the satisfaction or
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waiver of the conditions set forth in Section 6.1 and Section 6.2 of this Agreement (other than those conditions that by their terms cannot be
satisfied until the Closing), or at such other place and time as the Parties shall mutually agree. The Closing shall be effective as of 11:59
p-m. on the day of the Closing (the “Closing Date”).

Section 1.3 Earn-Out Consideration. As additional consideration for the purchase of the Shares hereunder, Purchaser shall, subject to
the provisions of this Section 1.3, at its election, pay and deliver cash or additional shares of Opko Common Stock (the “Earn-Out Shares”)
(or any combination of cash and Earn-Out Shares as it shall determine) in accordance with the terms set forth below (“Earn-Out
Consideration”). Any such delivery of Earn-Out Consideration is referred to herein as an “Earn-Out Payment.” If Purchaser elects to pay all
or any portion of the Earn-Out Consideration in Earn-Out Shares, Opko Health shall issue such Earn-Out Shares earned hereunder and
contribute such Earn-Out Shares to Purchaser (through Purchaser’s parent company).

(a) Positive Phase 3 Pivotal Trial. Subject to Section 7.6, within thirty (30) days after a positive outcome is obtained from the
first Phase 3 pivotal trial (CL-3001) with respect to CTAP101 Capsules, defined according to the special protocol assessment (“SPA”)
confirmed in writing by the FDA on August 30, 2012, as may be amended after the date hereof with the written approval of the FDA and
Purchaser, Purchaser shall, at its election, (i) pay US$*** in cash to Seller (for purposes of this subsection, the “Earn-Out Value™),

(ii) deliver to Seller a number of Earn-Out Shares determined by dividing such Earn-Out Value by the Opko Milestone Trading Value, or
(iii) pay a portion of such Earn-Out Value in cash and a portion in Earn-Out Shares (determined by dividing such portion by the Opko
Milestone Trading Value) in its discretion. For purposes of this Section 1.3(a), “positive” shall mean either (i) the filing by Purchaser or any
of its Affiliates with the FDA of the first New Drug Application submitted by the Companies or any of their Affiliates for the use of
CTAP101 Capsules (the “CTAP101 NDA”) or (ii) meeting the primary endpoints of the SPA.

(b) Acceptance of NDA filing. Subject to Section 7.6, within thirty (30) days following acceptance by the FDA for filing of the
CTAP101 NDA, Purchaser shall, at its election, (i) pay US$*** in cash to Seller (for purposes of this subsection, the “Earn-Out Value”),
(ii) deliver to Seller a number of Earn-Out Shares determined by dividing such Earn-Out Value by the Opko Milestone Trading Value, or
(iii) pay a portion of such Earn-Out Value in cash and a portion in Earn-Out Shares (determined by dividing such portion by the Opko
Milestone Trading Value) in its discretion.

(c) FDA Approval of NDA. Subject to Section 7.6, within thirty (30) days following the FDA’s approval of the CTAP101 NDA,
Purchaser shall, at its election, (i) pay US$*** in cash to Seller (for purposes of this subsection, the “Earn-Out Value”), (ii) deliver to Seller
a number of Earn-Out Shares determined by dividing such Earn-Out Value by the Opko Milestone Trading Value, or (iii) pay a portion of
such Earn-Out Value in cash and a portion in Earn-Out Shares (determined by dividing such portion by the Opko Milestone Trading Value)
in its discretion.

(d) Revenue Milestones. Subject to Section 7.6, within one hundred five (105) days following the end of any calendar year
through and including the calendar year ending December 31, 2024 (the “Final Milestone Date”) in which any of the following annual Net
Sales targets is first achieved, Purchaser shall, at its election, (i) pay the cash amount listed next to such target below (for purposes of this
subsection, the “Earn-Out Value”) to Seller, (ii) deliver to Seller a number of Earn-Out Shares determined by dividing such Earn-Out
Value by the Opko Milestone Trading Value or (iii) pay a portion of such Earn-Out Value in cash and a portion in
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Earn-Out Shares (determined by dividing such portion by the Opko Milestone Trading Value) in its discretion.

Annual Net Sales Target Earn-Out Value
US Gk US§k**

For purposes of this Section, annual Net Sales shall be calculated on a calendar-year basis following the completion of Opko Health’s audit
of its annual financial statements for such year and certified to Seller by the Chief Financial Officer of Opko Health, provided that any
Earn-Out Payment that is due pursuant to this subsection shall be paid within one hundred five (105) days following the end of any
calendar year regardless of whether or not such audit is complete.

(e) Limitations. Each of the above Earn-Out Payments will be payable only upon the first occurrence of the applicable
Milestone, regardless of how many times the Milestone is ultimately achieved. Any obligation to make an Earn-Out Payment under any
provision of this Section 1.3 shall terminate on the Final Milestone Date, except with respect to an Earn-Out Payment not paid with respect
to a Milestone that has been achieved prior to the Final Milestone Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, in the
event that the payment of any Earn-Out Payment pursuant to Section 1.3(d) in Earn-Out Shares would require or trigger an obligation to
obtain the approval of Opko Health’s shareholders under any Applicable Securities Law or NYSE regulations (or other material listing
regulations applicable to Opko Health), then such Earn-Out Payment shall be made in cash rather than Earn-Out Shares.

(f) Commercially Reasonable Efforts. The Purchaser agrees that until the earlier of (i) the date that all of the Milestones have
been achieved and (ii) the Final Milestone Date, the Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts, in good faith, to cause all of the
Milestones to be achieved. For purposes of this Section 1.3(f), “commercially reasonable efforts” means, (i) efforts of a Person to carry out
its obligations, and to cause its controlled Affiliates and licensees to carry out their respective obligations, using such efforts and employing
such resources normally used by Persons in the pharmaceutical industry relating to the research, development or commercialization of a
proprietary pharmaceutical product, that is of similar market potential at a similar stage in its development or product life as CTAP101
Capsules, taking into account issues of market exclusivity, product profile, including efficacy, safety, tolerability and convenience, the
competitiveness of alternate products in the marketplace or under development, the launch or sales of a generic or biosimilar product, the
profitability of the applicable product (including pricing and reimbursement status) and other relevant, commercially material factors,
including technical, commercial, legal, scientific and/or medical factors and (ii) with respect to the Milestones set forth in Sections 1.3(a)
and (b), shall include compliance in all material respects with the covenants of Purchaser and Opko Health set forth in Section 5.10(b) (for
so long as such covenant remains in effect in accordance with its terms).
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(g) Future Sale. In the event that the Purchaser, subsequent to Closing, sells, transfers, exclusively licenses or otherwise assigns
CTAP101 Capsules or substantially all of the business related to CTAP101 Capsules (or any entity owning the CTAP101 Capsules) to an
independent third party that is not an Affiliate of Purchaser, it shall be a condition of such sale, transfer, exclusive license or assignment
that such third party expressly assumes the payment obligations set forth in this Section 1.3 and the obligations set forth in Section 1.3(f);
provided, however, all future Earn-Out Consideration payable by such thirty party shall be made in cash (and not securities of such third

party).

(h) Maintenance of Stock Listing; Compliance With Reporting Obligations. If, at any time prior to the earlier of the date that all
of the Milestones have been achieved and the Final Milestone Date, (i) Opko Health is no longer listed on the New York Stock Exchange
or any other U.S. national exchange system (excluding the OTCBB) or included in a market quotation system (including NASDAQ),

(i1) Opko Health is delisted or its quotation is suspended or trading is halted for non-compliance with applicable listing requirements or
similar measures by the exchange system, (iii) Opko Health is not in compliance in any material respect with its covenants set forth in
Section 5.15, or (iv) Opko Health’s representations and warranties in Section 4.8 are not true and correct as at the date a Milestone is
achieved, then any Earn-Out Consideration payable pursuant to this Agreement during such period of termination, suspension, halt,
noncompliance or inaccuracy shall be made in cash.

(1) Distribution of Closing Shares and Contingent Rights. The Parties understand and agree that subject to compliance with
Applicable Securities Laws and this Agreement, the Seller Parties may distribute, transfer and/or assign at any time and from time to time
the Closing Shares to the security holders (or beneficial owners thereof) of the Seller Parties. Subject to compliance with Applicable
Securities Laws and this Agreement, the Seller Parties may, at or any time after Closing, assign its rights but not its obligations under this
Agreement, including without limitation, the contingent rights to receive the Earn-Out Payments, to a trustee or third party agent for the
benefit of the security holders of Parent; provided the Seller Parties acknowledge that (i) the contingent rights to receive any Earn-Out
Payment shall not be represented by any form of certificate or other instrument, are not otherwise transferable and do not constitute an
equity or ownership interest in Purchaser or Opko Health, (ii) neither Seller, such trustee or third party agent, nor any direct or indirect
security holders of Seller (or beneficial owners thereof) shall have any rights as a security holder of Purchaser or Opko Health as a result of
the Seller’s or such trustee’s or third party agent’s contingent right to receive any Earn-Out Payment hereunder, (iii) no interest is payable
with respect to any Earn-Out Payment and (iv) no such assignment shall limit or otherwise restrict any right of Opko Health, Purchaser or
any Purchaser Indemnitee under this Agreement, including the rights of such parties pursuant to Article VII hereof. Neither Purchaser nor
Opko Health shall have any obligation or liability to any trustee or third party agent appointed by Seller Parties hereunder, and any such
trustee or third party agent shall be subject to the same obligations as the Seller Parties hereunder, including all restrictions on the transfer
of any Opko Shares or any rights hereunder.

(j) Audit Right. Within ninety (90) days after the end of each of calendar year after the year in which sales of CTAP101
Capsules have commenced, Opko Health and Purchaser will submit to Seller full and accurate reports regarding the Net Sales for such
calendar year (as more specifically addressed in Section 1.3(d)). Opko Health and Purchaser hereby grant Seller the right, exercisable not
more than once in any calendar year to appoint an independent nationally
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recognized accounting firm or any other independent accounting firm reasonably acceptable to Opko Health to examine the books of
account and records of Opko Health, Purchaser or the Companies as they relate to such Net Sales at Seller’s sole cost and expense on prior
written notice of at least twenty (20) days, for the purpose of verifying the amount of such Net Sales, provided that such accounting firm
and any other agent of Seller execute a confidentiality agreement in form reasonably requested by Purchaser or Opko Health.

ARTICLE 11
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER PARTIES

As a material inducement to the Purchaser’s and Opko Health’s entering into this Agreement and completing the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, and acknowledging that the Purchaser and Opko Health are entering into this Agreement in reliance upon
the representations and warranties of each Seller Party set out herein; except as otherwise set forth on the Disclosure Schedule, each Seller
Party, jointly and severally, represents and warrants to Purchaser and Opko Health that the following statements are correct and complete.

Section 2.1 Organization. Each Seller Party is duly organized, validly subsisting and in good standing under the Laws of its
jurisdiction of incorporation or other formation.

Section 2.2 Authorization and Enforceability. Each Seller Party and each Company has all requisite power and authority to execute
and deliver this Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which it is a party, and to consummate the transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby. The execution, delivery and performance by each Seller Party and each Company of each of the Transaction
Documents to which it is a party have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of each such Seller Party or such Company,
as applicable. This Agreement and the other Transaction Documents have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary corporate
action on the part of the Seller Parties, and have been duly and validly executed and delivered by each Seller Party and each Company and
constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of each Seller Party and each Company, enforceable against such Seller Party and such
Company in accordance with their respective terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar
Laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles of equity (regardless of
whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at Law or in equity).

Section 2.3 Bankruptcy, Insolvency and Reorganization. No Seller Party nor any Company is an insolvent person within the meaning
of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) nor has any Seller Party or any Company made an assignment in favour of its creditors nor a
proposal in bankruptcy to their creditors or any class thereof nor had any petition for a receiving order presented in respect of it. No Seller
Party or any Company has initiated proceedings with respect to a compromise or arrangement with its creditors or for its winding up,
liquidation or dissolution. No receiver has been appointed in respect of a Seller Party, any Company, or any of their respective property or
assets and no execution or distress has been levied upon any of its property or assets of a Seller Party or any Company. No act or
proceeding has been taken or authorized by or against a Seller Party or any Company with respect to any amalgamation, merger,
consolidation, arrangement or reorganization of, or relating to, a Seller Party or any Company nor have any such proceedings been
authorized by any other Person.



Section 2.4 Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties. Except as set forth in Section 2.4 of the Disclosure Schedule, the execution and
delivery by each Seller Party of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party, the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby (including the Restructuring and each step thereof), and compliance by each Seller Party with
the provisions hereof or thereof, will not: (a) conflict with, or result in the breach of, any provision of the Governing Documents of such
Seller Party; (b) conflict with, violate, result in the breach or termination of, constitute a default under, result in an acceleration of,
constitute a change of control under, or create in any party the right to accelerate, terminate, modify or cancel, any Contract to which such
Seller Party is a party or by which such Seller Party or its properties, assets or equity interests are subject, or require a Consent from any
Person in order to avoid any such conflict, violation, breach, termination, default or acceleration; (c) violate any Law or any Order by which
such Seller Party is bound or which is applicable to its Business; or (d) result in the creation of any Lien, subscriptions, options, warrants,
calls, proxies, commitments or Contracts of any kind upon any of the Shares. Except as set forth in Section 2.4 of the Disclosure Schedule,
no Consent, Order, waiver, declaration or filing with, or notification to any Person, including any Governmental Body, is required to be
obtained by or made on the part of such Seller Party in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, or the other Transaction Documents, or the compliance by such Seller Party with
any of the provisions hereof or thereof (including the Restructuring and each step thereof).

Section 2.5 Brokers Fees. Except as set forth in Section 2.5 of the Disclosure Schedule, neither Seller nor any Company has any
Liability to pay any fees or commissions to any investment banker, broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.

Section 2.6 Accredited Investor Status. Seller (a) understands and acknowledges that the Opko Shares have not been registered under
the Securities Act, Canadian Securities Laws, under applicable U.S. state securities Laws (“Blue Sky Laws”) or under any applicable
securities Laws of any other jurisdiction, in reliance upon exemptions contained in the Applicable Securities Laws and any applicable
regulations promulgated thereunder or interpretations thereof, and cannot be offered for sale, sold or otherwise transferred unless, among
other things, such securities subsequently are so registered or qualify for exemption from registration under the Applicable Securities Laws;
(b) represents, understands and acknowledges that it is acquiring the Opko Shares under this Agreement in good faith solely for its own
account, for investment and not with a view toward resale or other distribution in violation of Applicable Securities Laws, and that such
securities will not be offered for sale, sold or otherwise transferred without either registration or exemption from registration under
Applicable Securities Laws; (c) has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that Seller is capable of evaluating the
merits and risks of the investment in the Opko Shares, and Seller understands and is able to bear any economic risks associated with such
investment (including the inherent risk of losing all or part of the investment in such Opko Shares); (d) has been given the opportunity to
ask questions of, and receive answers from, the directors and executive officers of Opko Health concerning the business and financial
affairs of Opko Health, and the terms and conditions of Seller’s acquisition of the Opko Shares, and has had further opportunity to obtain
any additional information desired (including information necessary to verify the accuracy of the foregoing);
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and (e) is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of each of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act and National
Instrument 45-106, as applicable.

ARTICLE IIT
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES CONCERNING THE COMPANIES

As a material inducement to the Purchaser’s and Opko Health’s entering into this Agreement and completing the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, and acknowledging that the Purchaser and Opko Health are entering into this Agreement in reliance upon
the representations and warranties of each Seller Party set out herein; except as otherwise set forth on the Disclosure Schedule, each Seller
Party, jointly and severally, represents and warrants to Purchaser and Opko Health that the following statements are correct and complete.

Section 3.1 Organization and Related Matters.

(a) Proventiv is a limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of
Delaware and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business. Proventiv
is duly qualified, registered, licensed or otherwise authorized to do business as a foreign limited liability company and is in good standing
under the Laws of each jurisdiction in which it owns or leases real property and each other jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business
or the ownership of its properties requires such qualification, registration, license or authorization, each of which is set forth in
Section 3.1(a) of the Disclosure Schedule. Cayman Newco is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
Laws of the Cayman Islands and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its
business. Cayman Newco is duly qualified, registered, licensed or otherwise authorized to do business as a foreign corporation and is in
good standing under the Laws of each jurisdiction in which it owns or leases real property and each other jurisdiction in which the conduct
of its business or the ownership of its properties requires such qualification, registration, license or authorization, each of which is set forth
in Section 3.1(a) of the Disclosure Schedule. Development is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
Laws of Barbados and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business.
Development is duly qualified, registered, licensed or otherwise authorized to do business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing
under the Laws of each jurisdiction in which it owns or leases real property and each other jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business
or the ownership of its properties requires such qualification, registration, license or authorization, each of which is set forth in
Section 3.1(a) of the Disclosure Schedule. Except as set forth on Section 3.1(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, there are no Subsidiaries of any
Company.

(b) Seller Parties have delivered to Purchaser and Opko Health complete and correct copies of the Governing Documents of the
Companies, as amended to date and as presently in effect. Except as set forth in Section 3.1(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, since their
inception, no Company has consolidated or merged with, acquired all or substantially all of the assets of, or acquired the shares of or any
interest in any Person.



Section 3.2 Books and Records. The Books and Records, all of which have been provided to Purchaser and Opko Health, are
complete and correct and represent actual, bona fide transactions and have been maintained in accordance with applicable Law and
commercially reasonable business practices. The minute books, share certificate book, register of shareholders, register of transfers and
register of directors and officers of the Seller and the Companies, all of which have been provided to Purchaser, have been maintained in
accordance with applicable Law, are complete and accurate in all material respects and contain accurate and complete records of all
meetings held by, and corporate action taken by, the equityholders, the boards of directors or managers of Seller and the Companies, and no
meeting of any such equityholders, board of directors or managers at which any material business was conducted has been held for which
minutes have not been prepared or are not contained in such minute books.

Section 3.3 Capitalization. Section 3.3 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth the following: (i) the total number of authorized shares of
each class of capital stock or other equity interests of each Company, (ii) the total number of issued and outstanding shares of each class of
capital stock or other equity interests of each Company, (iii) the names of the holders of the issued and outstanding shares of each class of
capital stock or other equity interests of each Company, and (iv) the number of shares of each class of capital stock or other equity interests
of each Company held by each such holder. The issued and outstanding shares of capital stock or other equity interests of each Company
set forth in Section 3.3 of the Disclosure Schedule constitute the Shares. All of the Shares have been duly and validly authorized and issued,
are fully paid and nonassessable, and all such Shares are held of record and owned beneficially as set forth in Section 3.3 of the Disclosure
Schedule. No Shares have been issued in violation of any preemptive rights or any Applicable Securities Laws. Except as set forth in
Section 3.3 of the Disclosure Schedule, the Companies have no outstanding or authorized options, calls, warrants, purchase rights,
subscription rights, conversion rights, exchange rights, preemptive rights or other contracts, commitments, plans or agreements of any kind
(whether or not immediately exercisable) that could require any Company to issue, sell, or otherwise cause to become outstanding any of its
capital stock or other equity security, or securities convertible or exchangeable for, or any options, warrants, or rights to purchase, any of
such capital stock or other equity security. There are no outstanding obligations of any Company to repurchase, redeem or otherwise
acquire any of its capital stock or other equity security. There are no outstanding or authorized stock appreciation, phantom equity, profit
participation or similar rights with respect to any Company. There are no dividends which have accrued or been declared but are unpaid on
the capital stock or other equity interests of any Company. Except as set forth in Section 3.3 of the Disclosure Schedule, there are no voting
agreements, voting trusts, proxies, registration rights agreements, stockholder agreements or other Contracts with respect to any of the
Shares.

Section 3.4 Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties. Except as set forth in Section 3.4 of the Disclosure Schedule, the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which the Companies are a party, the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby (including the Restructuring and each step thereof), and compliance by the Companies with the provisions
hereof or thereof does not and will not, with or without the passage of time or the giving of notice: (a) conflict with, or result in the breach
of, any provision of the Governing Documents of any Company; (b) conflict with, violate, result in the breach or termination of, constitute
a



default under, result in an acceleration of, constitute a change of control under, or create in any party the right to accelerate, terminate,
modify or cancel, any Contract to which any Company is a party or by which any Company or its properties or assets are bound, or require
a Consent from any Person in order to avoid any such conflict, violation, breach, termination, default or acceleration; (c) violate any Law or
any Order by which any Company is bound or which is applicable to its Business; or (d) result in the creation of any Lien other than
Permitted Liens upon the properties or assets of any Company. Except as set forth in Section 3.4 of the Disclosure Schedule, no Consent,
Order, waiver, declaration or filing with, or notification to any Person, including any Governmental Body, is required to be obtained by or
made on the part of any Company; (i) in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the consummation of
the transaction contemplated hereby, or the other Transaction Documents, or the compliance by any of them with any of the provisions
hereof or thereof (including the Restructuring and each step thereof); (ii) to avoid the loss of any Permit of any Company; or (iii) to permit
each Company to carry on its business, and in the case of each of Cayman Newco, to carry on the Business of Seller, in each case, as the
Business is currently carried on prior to the date hereof.

Section 3.5 Financial Statements.

(a) Included in Section 3.5(a) of the Disclosure Schedule are complete copies of (i) the audited consolidated balance sheets of
the Seller Parties and the Companies as at December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 (December 31, 2011 being the “Balance Sheet Date™) and
the related audited consolidated statements of operations and deficit, shareholders’ equity (deficiency) and cash flows of the Seller Parties
and the Companies for the fiscal years then ended and (ii) the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Seller Parties and the Companies
(the “Balance Sheet”) as at November 30, 2012 and the related consolidated statements of operations and deficit, shareholders’ equity
(deficiency) and cash flows of the Seller Parties and the Companies for the eleven-month period then ended (together with all the audited
and unaudited statements set forth in (i), including the related notes and schedules thereto, the “Financial Statements™). The Financial
Statements have been prepared from the Books and Records in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis throughout the periods
indicated, except, in the case of the unaudited financial statements, for the failure to include the footnotes required by GAAP. The
Financial Statements fairly present in all material respects the financial position and results of operations, shareholders’ equity (deficiency)
and cash flows of the Seller Parties and the Companies, on a consolidated basis, as of the dates and for the periods reflected thereon. The
Seller Parties and the Companies maintain a standard system of accounting established and administered in accordance with GAAP.

(b) The Seller Parties and the Companies (i) make and keep accurate Books and Records in a consistent manner and
(i1) maintain internal accounting controls that provide reasonable assurance that (A) transactions are and have been executed in accordance
with management’s authorization, (B) transactions are and have been recorded as necessary to permit preparation of their financial
statements and to maintain accountability for their assets, (C) access to their assets is and has been permitted only in accordance with
management’s authorization, and (D) the reported accountability for their assets is compared with existing assets at reasonable intervals.
There has not been (i) any significant deficiency in the design or operation of internal controls which could affect the ability of the Seller
Parties and the Companies to record, process, and summarize its consolidated financial data or any material
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weaknesses in internal controls of the Seller Parties or the Companies, or (ii) any fraud that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the internal controls of the Seller Parties or the Companies. Since the Balance Sheet Date, there have been no
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could materially affect internal controls by the Seller Parties or the Companies,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Section 3.6 No Undisclosed Liabilities. Neither Seller nor any Company has any Liabilities except (a) to the extent specifically
reflected and accrued for or specifically reserved against in the Balance Sheet and (b) for current Liabilities incurred subsequent to the
Balance Sheet Date in the ordinary course of business consistent with past custom and practice (none of which results from, arises out of,
relates to, is in the nature of, or was caused by any breach of contract, breach of warranty, tort, infringement, or violation of Law). Except
as disclosed in Section 3.6 of the Disclosure Schedule, neither the Companies nor the Seller is a party to or bound by any agreement,
contract, commitment providing for the guarantee, indemnification, assumption or endorsement with respect to the Liabilities of any other
Person.

Section 3.7 Absence of Certain Developments. Except as set forth in Section 3.7 of the Disclosure Schedule and the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, since the Balance Sheet Date, neither Seller nor any Company has conducted its business other than in
the ordinary course consistent with past practice and:

(a) there has not been any Company Material Adverse Change nor has there occurred any event which could reasonably be
expected to result in a Company Material Adverse Change;

(b) No Company or Seller has directly or indirectly, declared, set aside for payment or paid any dividends or distributions on or
in respect of any capital stock or other security of such Company or Seller, or redeemed, purchased, retired or otherwise acquired any
capital stock or other security of such Company or Seller, or made any other payment to or on behalf of any Seller Party or any Affiliate
thereof;

(c) there has not been any split, combination or reclassification of any shares of capital stock or other security of any Company
or Seller;

(d) there has not been any damage, destruction or loss, whether or not covered by insurance, with respect to the property and
assets of the Companies or Seller having a replacement cost of more than $10,000 for any single loss or $25,000 in the aggregate for any
related losses;

(e) no Company or Seller has made any change in the rate of compensation, commission, bonus or other direct or indirect
remuneration payable, or paid or agreed or orally promised to pay, conditionally or otherwise, any bonus, incentive, retention or other
compensation, retirement, welfare, fringe or severance benefit or vacation pay, to or in respect of any director, officer, employee, distributor
or agent of the Companies or Seller, other than increases in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice in the base wages
or salaries of employees of the Companies or Seller other than officers or senior managers;
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(f) no Company or Seller has entered into or amended any employment, deferred compensation, severance or similar agreement;
(g) no Company or Seller has entered into any collective bargaining agreement or relationship with any labor organization;

(h) there has not been any material change by any Company or Seller in accounting or Tax reporting principles, methods or
policies, any settlement of any Tax controversy, any amendment of any Tax Return, or any material Tax election made by or with respect to
the Companies or Seller;

(1) no Company or Seller has entered into or amended any other transaction or Contract other than in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice;

(j) no Company or Seller has hired employees or engaged independent contractors other than in the ordinary course of business
consistent with, and at a level consistent with, past practice;

(k) no Company or Seller has breached any Contract;
(1) no Company or Seller has made any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any Person;

(m) no Company or Seller has mortgaged, pledged or subjected to any Lien any of its assets, or acquired any assets or sold,
assigned, transferred, conveyed, leased or otherwise disposed of any assets of the Companies or Seller except for assets acquired or sold,
assigned, transferred, conveyed, leased or otherwise disposed of in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(n) no Company or Seller has canceled or compromised any debt or claim or amended, canceled, terminated, relinquished,
waived or released any Contract or right except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and which, in the aggregate,
are not material to any such Company or Seller;

(o) no Company or Seller has entered into or amended any Contract or transaction with any of its Affiliates or paid any fees,
expenses or other amounts to any Affiliate of such Company or Seller;

(p) no Company or Seller has made or committed to make any capital expenditures, capital additions or improvements or any
other expense (i) in excess of $20,000 individually or $50,000 in the aggregate, or (ii) outside the ordinary course of business consistent
with past practices;

(q) no Company or Seller has entered into any prepaid transactions or otherwise accelerated revenue recognition or the sales for
periods prior to the Closing outside of the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices;
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(r) no Company or Seller has materially changed its policies or practices with respect to the payment of accounts payable or
other current liabilities or the collection of accounts receivable (including any acceleration or deferral of the payment or collection thereof);

(s) no Company or Seller has amended any of its Governing Documents;

(t) no Company or Seller has adopted any plan of merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation or dissolution or filing of a
petition in bankruptcy under any provisions of federal, state or provincial bankruptcy Law or consent to the filing of any bankruptcy
petition against it under any similar Law or other agreement with respect to the sale of its assets, securities or its respective Business;

(u) no Company or Seller has issued any equity or debt securities or any security exercisable or exchangeable for or convertible
into equity securities of any such Company, or incurred any Indebtedness or other Liabilities (other than in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practices);

(v) no Company or Seller has (i) discharged, repaid, amended, modified, made payment on, canceled or compromised any
Indebtedness, or discharged or satisfied any Lien other than in the ordinary course of the conduct of the Companies’ or Seller’s business
consistent with past practices, or (ii) engaged in any transaction or provided any consideration relating to the release, modification or
diminution of any guarantee, bond, surety or other obligation of any Seller Party or any Affiliate thereof;

(w) no Company or Seller has entered into any compromise or settlement of any Legal Proceeding or investigation by any
Governmental Body;

(x) no Company or Seller has transferred, assigned or granted any license or sublicense of any material rights under or with
respect to any Intellectual Property;

(y) no Company or Seller has failed (i) to file any material reports or take steps necessary to comply with applicable Laws and
(i) to maintain in good standing all Permits; and

(z) no Company or Seller has entered into any agreements or commitments to do or perform in the future any actions referred to
in this Section 3.7.

Section 3.8 Taxes.
(a) Each of the Seller, *** and *** is not a non-resident of Canada for the purposes of the ITA.
(b) Each of *** *** and *** are employees of Proventiv, each of whom deals at arm’s length with both Proventiv and Seller.

(c) Each Company and Seller has timely filed with the appropriate taxing authorities all Tax Returns that it has been required to
file. All such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete in all respects. All Taxes owed by the Companies and Seller (whether or not
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shown on any Tax Return) have been paid. Adequate reserves have been established on the Financial Statements to provide for the
payment of any Taxes which are not yet due and payable with respect to the Companies for taxable periods or portions thereof ending on or
before the Balance Sheet Date. None of the Companies or Seller is the beneficiary of any extension of time within which to file any Tax
Return. No written claim has ever been made by an authority with respect to the Companies in a jurisdiction where any such Company or
Seller does not file Tax Returns that it is or may be subject to taxation by that jurisdiction. There are no Liens on any of the assets of the
Companies or Seller that have arisen in connection with any failure (or alleged failure) to pay any Tax. Each Company and Seller has
remitted all Canada Pension Plan contributions, provincial pension plan contributions, employment insurance premiums, employer health
taxes and other Taxes payable or required to be withheld and remitted by it in respect of its employees to the appropriate Governmental
Body within the time required under applicable Law. Each Company and Seller has charged, collected and remitted on a timely basis all
Taxes as required under applicable Law on any sale, supply or delivery whatsoever, made by it.

(d) The Companies and Seller have withheld and paid to the appropriate taxing authority or other Governmental Body all Taxes
required to have been withheld and paid in connection with amounts paid or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor,
stockholder, or other third party.

(e) Seller and Cayman Newco shall each be registered for GST/HST purposes under Part IX of the Excise Tax Act (Canada) and,
if applicable, for QST purposes under an Act respecting the Quebec sales tax, on the date of the Cayman Newco Transfer.

(f) No Company or Seller has waived or extended any statute of limitations in respect of Taxes or agreed to any extension of
time with respect to the assessment, payment or collection of any Tax.

(g) No Company has an obligation to make a payment that is not deductible under Section 280G of the Code or that includes an
obligation to indemnify or “gross up” the recipient of such payment for taxes imposed by Section 4999 of the Code.

(h) None of the properties or assets of the Companies is property which, for Tax purposes, is required to be treated as owned by
another Person. No Company is an obligor on, and none of their assets have been financed directly or indirectly by, any tax-exempt bonds.
No property or assets of the Companies is “tax-exempt use property” within the meaning of Section 168(h) of the Code.

(1) No deficiency or proposed adjustment which has not been settled or otherwise resolved for any amount of Taxes has been
asserted or assessed by any taxing authority or other Governmental Body against the Companies or Seller. There has not been, within the
past five calendar years, an audit, examination or written notice of potential examination of any Tax Returns filed by the Companies.

(j) There is no action, suit, examination, investigation, Governmental Body proceeding, or audit or claim for refund in progress,
pending, proposed or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened against or with respect to the Companies or Seller regarding Taxes
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other than claims for tax credits referred to in Section 5.13(f). No Seller Party and no director or officer (or employee responsible for Tax
matters) of the Companies or Seller expects any authority to assess any Company or Seller any additional Taxes for any period for which
Tax Returns have been filed.

(k) No Company has agreed to or been required to make any adjustment pursuant to Section 481(a) of the Code or any
corresponding provision of state, local or foreign Law by reason of any change in accounting method initiated by it or on its behalf; no
taxing authority has proposed any such adjustment or change in accounting method; and no Company has an application pending with any
taxing authority requesting permission for any change in accounting method. No Company will be required (A) as a result of a change in
method of accounting for a taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date, to include any adjustment under Section 481(c) of the
Code in taxable income for any taxable period (or portion thereof) beginning after the Closing, (B) as a result of any “closing agreement,”
as described in Section 7121 of the Code, to include any item of income or exclude any item of deduction from any taxable period (or
portion thereof) beginning after the Closing, or (C) to include in taxable income any amounts attributable to transactions entered into prior
to the Closing, or attributable to elections to defer taxable income made prior to the Closing.

(1) No Company has been a member of an affiliated group (as defined in Section 1504 of the Code), filed or been included in a
combined, consolidated or unitary income Tax Return, and is not a partner, member, owner or beneficiary of any entity treated as a
partnership or a trust for Tax purposes. No Company has Liability for Taxes of any person under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 or
similar state, local or foreign Laws, as a successor or transferee, by contract or otherwise.

(m) No Company or Seller is a party to or bound by any Tax allocation or Tax sharing agreement and has no contractual
obligation to indemnify or reimburse any other Person with respect to Taxes. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, no Company
or Seller has entered into an agreement contemplated in section 80.04 or 191.3, or subsection 18(2.3), 127(13) to (17), 127(20) or 125(3) of
the ITA or any analogous provision of any comparable Law of any province or territory of Canada.

(n) True, correct and complete copies of all income and sales Tax Returns filed by or with respect to the Companies or Seller for
taxable periods ending on or after December 31, 2009 have been delivered to Purchaser.

(o) No Company has participated in any reportable transaction as contemplated in Treasury Regulations Section 1.6011-4. The
Companies have disclosed on their federal income Tax Returns all positions taken therein that could give rise to a substantial
understatement of federal income Tax within the meaning of Section 6662 of the Code.

(p) Except as set forth in Section 3.8(p) of the Disclosure Schedule, no Company or Seller is subject to Tax, nor does it have a
permanent establishment, in any jurisdiction other than its country of formation or a political subdivision thereof.
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(q9) No Company or Seller has pending ruling requests filed by it or on its behalf with any taxing authority or Governmental
Body.

(r) No payment contemplated by this Agreement to be made by the Purchaser to any Person will subject the Purchaser to any
obligation to withhold, collect or remit any Taxes under applicable Law.

(s) Proventiv has properly elected under Treasury Regulations Section 301.7701-3 to be classified as an association taxable as a
corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes and such election remains in effect.

(t) Proventiv is not, and has not within the last five years, been a U.S. real property holding corporation as that term is defined in
Code Section 897.

(u) At the time of the Conversion, Seller is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Holdings and no other party has an equity interest
(stock, options, warrants or otherwise) in Seller.

(v) Since January 1, 2013, none of the Companies have entered into transactions or arrangements which would give rise to any
type of income described in Subpart F of the Internal Revenue Code.

(w) Seller was not registered or required to be registered for Ontario PST purposes on or before June 30, 2010. None of Seller’s
assets are located in British Columbia, Saskatchewan, Manitoba or Prince Edward Island.

Section 3.9 Real Property.
(a) No Company or Seller owns or has owned any real property or interest in real property.

(b) Section 3.9(b) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth the address of each parcel of real property and interests in real property
leased by the Companies or Seller as lessee, and a true and complete list of all Leases related to real property currently leased, subleased,
licensed or otherwise occupied by the Companies or Seller (individually, a “Real Property Lease” and the real properties specified in such
Leases being referred to herein collectively as the “Leased Properties™). The Companies or Seller have valid, binding and enforceable
leasehold interests under each of the Real Property Leases, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and
similar Laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles of equity (regardless
of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at Law or in equity). No Company or Seller has received any written notice of any default
or event that with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a default under any of the Real Property Leases and the Companies or
Seller and, to Seller Parties’ Knowledge, each other party thereto, is in compliance with all obligations of such party thereunder. No
Company or Seller has subleased, assigned or otherwise granted to any Person the right to use or occupy such Leased Properties or any
portion thereof. No Company’s or Seller’s possession and quiet enjoyment of Leased Property under each Real Property Lease has been
disturbed and there are no disputes with respect to any Real Property Lease.
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No security deposit or portion thereof deposited with respect to any Real Property Lease has been applied in respect of a breach of or
default under any such Real Property Lease that has not been redeposited in full. No Company or Seller owes, or will owe in the future, any
brokerage commissions or finder’s fees with respect to any Real Property Lease. No Company or Seller has collaterally assigned or granted
any other Lien in any Real Property Lease or any interest therein (other than Permitted Liens). There are no Liens on the estate or interest
created by any Real Property Lease (other than Permitted Liens). Seller Parties have delivered to Purchaser complete and correct copies of
the Real Property Leases, together with all amendments, modifications or supplements, if any, thereto.

(c) The Leased Properties have been used in compliance with all applicable building, zoning, subdivision, health and safety and
other land use Laws and all insurance requirements affecting the Leased Properties (collectively, the “Real Property Laws”), and the
current use or occupancy of the Leased Properties or operation of the Business thereon does not violate any Real Property Laws. No
Company or Seller has received any notice of violation of any Real Property Law. There is no pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller
Parties, threatened zoning application or proceeding or condemnation, expropriation, eminent domain or taking proceeding with respect to
the Leased Properties.

(d) The Leased Properties constitute all interests in real property currently used or currently held for use in connection with the
Business or which are necessary for the continued operation of the Business as the Business is currently conducted. Following the Cayman
Newco Transfer, Cayman Newco shall be the valid lessee under all Real Property Leases in the name of Seller prior to the Cayman Newco
Transfer.

Section 3.10 Tangible Personal Property: Title; Sufficiency of Assets.

(a) Section 3.10(a) of the Disclosure Schedule lists all leases of personal property (“Personal Property Leases”) involving annual
payments in excess of $25,000 relating to personal property used by the Companies or Seller or to which any such Company or Seller is a
party or by which the properties of any such Company or Seller are bound. The Seller Parties have delivered to Purchaser complete and
correct copies of the Personal Property Leases, together with all amendments, modifications or supplements thereto.

(b) The Companies and Seller have valid leasehold interests under each of the Personal Property Leases under which they are a
lessee, and there is no default under any Personal Property Lease by any such Company or Seller, or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, by
any other party thereto, and no event has occurred that with the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both would constitute a default
thereunder, and the Companies and Seller, and to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, each other party thereto is in compliance with all
obligations of the Companies or Seller or such other party, as the case may be, thereunder.

(c) Each Company and Seller has good and marketable legal and beneficial title to all its assets, free and clear of any and all
Liens, except for Permitted Liens or as set forth in Section 3.10(c) of the Disclosure Schedule. Following the Restructuring, the Companies
shall have good and marketable legal and beneficial title to all such assets, free and clear of any and all Liens, except for Permitted Liens,
and such assets shall include all assets, rights and interests
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used or held for use by the Companies and Seller prior to the Restructuring. Such assets, rights and interests constitute all of the assets,
rights and interests reasonably required for the continued conduct of the Business by Purchaser in substantially the same manner as
conducted prior to the date hereof. No asset, right or interest used in connection with the Business is owned by any Person other than Seller
or the Companies. Section 3.10(c) of the Disclosure Schedule sets out a complete and accurate list of all locations where the property and
assets of each Company and Seller are situated, including a brief description of each property and each of the assets situated at each
location.

(d) All tangible personal property owned by the Companies and Seller, and all of the items of tangible personal property used
by the Companies or Seller under the Personal Property Leases are in good operating condition and repair, and are adequate for the uses to
which they are being put, and none of such items of tangible personal property is in need of maintenance or repairs except for ordinary,
routine maintenance and repairs that are not material in nature or cost. Section 3.10(d) of the Disclosure Schedule lists all of tangible
personal property owned by the Companies and Seller as of the date hereof (which will be owned by the Companies as of the Closing).

Section 3.11 Intellectual Property.

(a) The Companies or Seller own, free and clear from all Liens, except for Permitted Liens, or otherwise possess legally
enforceable rights to use all of the Intellectual Property reasonably necessary to the conduct of the Business. The Intellectual Property
owned by the Companies or Seller (“Owned Intellectual Property”) and the Intellectual Property licensed to the Companies or Seller under
the Intellectual Property Licenses comprise all of the Intellectual Property that is used in or is reasonably necessary to conduct the
Business. Following the Cayman Newco Transfer, all owned or licensed Intellectual Property used in the Business will be owned by a
Company (and not Seller).

(b) Section 3.11(b)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, complete and correct list of all Owned Intellectual Property
for which a registration or application has been filed with a Governmental Body, including patents, trademarks, service marks and
copyrights, issued by or registered with, or for which any application for issuance or registration thereof has been filed with, any
Governmental Body. Section 3.11(b)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and correct list of all trademarks, service marks,
other trade designations and domain names that are Owned Intellectual Property and not otherwise identified in Section 3.11(b)(i) of the
Disclosure Schedule. All required filings and fees related to the Owned Intellectual Property have been timely filed with and paid to the
relevant Governmental Body and authorized registrars, and all Owned Intellectual Property is otherwise in good standing. Section 3.11(b)
(iii) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and correct list of all written or oral licenses concerning or relating to Intellectual
Property rights (other than ordinary course licenses of commercially available software), entered into by and/or between any of the
Companies and a Person (collectively, the “Intellectual Property Licenses”). Section 3.11(b)(iv) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a
complete list of all licensed patents, trademarks, patent applications and trademark applications that are used in or is reasonably necessary
to conduct the Business. The Intellectual Property Licenses are valid, binding and enforceable between the Companies or Seller, as
applicable, and the other parties thereto and are in full force and effect. There is no default under any
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Intellectual Property License by the Companies or Seller, or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, by any other party thereto, and no event
has occurred that with the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both would constitute a default thereunder. Each Company or Seller, as
applicable, and to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, each other party thereto is in compliance with all obligations under each Intellectual
Property License.

(c) The prior operation of the Business and the continued operation of the Business as conducted and as currently proposed to be
conducted by Seller Parties and the Companies did not and does not interfere with, infringe upon, misappropriate, or otherwise come into
conflict with, any Intellectual Property rights of third parties and, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, there is no specific facts that would
form any reasonable basis for any such claim.

(d) There is no claim or demand of any Person pertaining to, or any proceeding which is pending or, to the Knowledge of
Sellers, threatened, that challenges the rights of the Companies or Seller in respect of any Owned Intellectual Property, or claims that any
default exists under any Intellectual Property License or that any activities or products of the Business infringes any Intellectual Property
rights of any third party. To the Knowledge of the Sellers, no facts exist which would substantiate an infringing claim against the
Companies by any third party in relation to the Business as conducted and as currently proposed to be conducted by Seller Parties and the
Companies.

(e) Except as set forth in Section 3.11(e) of the Disclosure Schedule, all employees of the Companies or Seller and all other
Persons involved in the development of Owned Intellectual Property, including consultants, have entered into confidentiality and
assignment of inventions agreements substantially in the form included in Section 3.11(e) of the Disclosure Schedule. Except as set forth in
Section 3.11(e) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Companies and the Seller have entered into confidentiality agreements in a form acceptable
to Companies and Seller with any and all third parties with whom the Companies and/or Seller have exchanged or disclosed confidential or
proprietary information with respect to the Owned Intellectual Property. All employees and consultants have executed binding and
enforceable agreements that are sufficient to assign to the Companies any and all rights, title and interest in and to any ideas, inventions or
other Intellectual Property comprising or relating to such Owned Intellectual Property that are material to the Business, and the Companies
have secured valid written assignments from all such Persons.

Section 3.12 Contracts.

(a) Section 3.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth all of the Contracts to which the Companies or Seller are a party (that
have remaining performance obligations) or by which they or any of their assets are bound of the types described below and categorized
accordingly (the “Contracts”):

(i) Contracts relating to the employment or engagement of any Person, or any bonus, deferred compensation, pension, profit
sharing, stock option, employee stock purchase, retirement, retention, severance, or change of control arrangement;

19



(i1) Contracts other than those described in clause (i) with any current or former officer, director or employee of the
Companies or Seller, or any Affiliate of the Companies, Seller or any such Person;

(iii) Contracts with any employee or labor union or association representing any employee;
(iv) Contracts relating to capital expenditures;

(v) Contracts entered into within the last five years relating to the acquisition or disposition of any equity interests in or,
except in the ordinary course of business, assets of any Person;

(vi) Contracts creating or otherwise related to any joint venture or partnership;

(vii) Contracts limiting the ability of the Companies or Seller to engage in any line of business or to compete with any
Person or to conduct business in any geographical area or to solicit any Person for employment;

(viii) Contracts relating to the confidentiality or limitation on use of any information;

(ix) Contracts relating to any Indebtedness of the Companies or Seller (other than accounts payable to trade creditors in the
ordinary and usual course of business consistent with past custom and practice), including credit facilities, promissory notes,
security agreements, and other credit support arrangements, and Contracts under which the Companies or Seller have imposed or
incurred a Lien on any of their assets;

(x) Contracts granting a power of attorney, revocable or irrevocable, to any Person for any purpose whatsoever;

(xi) Contracts that provide for the indemnification by the Companies of any Person or the assumption of any Tax,
environmental or other Liability of any Person;

(xii) Contracts relating to any loan (other than accounts receivable from trade debtors in the ordinary and usual course of
business consistent with past custom and practice) or advance to (other than ordinary course travel allowances to the employees of
the Companies or Seller), or investments in, any Person;

(xiii) Contracts relating to any guarantee or other contingent Liability in respect of any Indebtedness or obligation of any
Person (other than the endorsement of negotiable instruments for collection in the ordinary and usual course of business
consistent with past custom and practice);

(xiv) all broker, distributor, dealer, manufacturer’s representative, franchise, agency, sales promotion, market research,
marketing consulting and advertising Contracts to which the Companies or Seller are a party;
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(xv) Contracts with any Governmental Body;

(xvi) Contracts, loans and/or lease arrangements involving, directly or indirectly, any rebates, payments, commissions,
promotional allowances or any other economic benefits, regardless of their nature or type, to or from any Affiliate or to or from
any customer, supplier, employee or agent of the Companies or Seller;

(xvii) Contracts with suppliers or manufacturers of any materials used in connection with or otherwise relating to any
Product Candidate;

(xviii) all other Contracts which are reasonably likely to involve the receipt or payment of an amount in excess of $100,000
in any 12-month period and which cannot be cancelled by a Company or Seller without penalty and without more than thirty
(30) days’ notice; and

(xix) any other material Contract to which a Company or Seller is a party and which has not previously been disclosed
pursuant to this Section 3.12(a).

(b) Complete copies of the items required to be set forth in Section 3.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule have previously been
provided to Purchaser and Opko Health by Seller Parties. Except as set forth in Section 3.12(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, all of the
Contracts disclosed in Section 3.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule shall, following the Restructuring and the Closing, remain enforceable by
the Companies and, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, binding on the other parties thereto, without the Consent of any Person. No
Company is in default, and no event has occurred which, with the giving of notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute a default,
under any such Contract or any other obligation owed by any such Company or Seller, and, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, no event has
occurred which, with the giving of notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute a default by any other party to any such Contract.
Each of the Contracts disclosed in Section 3.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule is in full force and effect, is valid and enforceable in
accordance with its terms and, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, is not subject to any claims, charges, setoffs or defenses. There are no
disputes pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened under any such Contract. The Companies or Seller, as applicable, and to
the Knowledge of Seller Parties, each other party thereto is in compliance with all of its obligations under each such Contract.

(c) Except as set forth in Section 3.12(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, all consulting agreements of Seller and the Companies
provide for payment on a per diem, rather than retainer, basis and are cancelable upon no more than thirty (30) days’ notice.

Section 3.13 Employee Benefits.

(a) Section 3.13(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and correct list of (i) all “employee benefit plans” as defined
in Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), and any other pension plans or employee
benefit agreements, arrangements, programs or payroll practices (including severance pay, other termination benefits or compensation,
vacation pay, salary, company awards, stock option, stock purchase, salary continuation for disability, sick leave, retirement, deferred
compensation, bonus or other incentive compensation, stock purchase arrangements or policies,
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hospitalization, medical insurance, life insurance and scholarship programs) (whether funded or unfunded, written or oral, qualified or
nonqualified), sponsored, maintained or contributed to or required to be contributed to by the Companies or Seller or by any trade or
business, whether or not incorporated, that together with the Companies and Seller would be deemed a “single employer” within the
meaning of Section 4001 of ERISA (a “Company ERISA Affiliate”) for the benefit of any employee, leased employee, director, officer,
shareholder or independent contractor (in each case either current or former) of the Companies or Seller or any Company ERISA Affiliate
(“Employee Benefit Plans”). Section 3.13(a) of the Disclosure Schedule identifies, in separate categories, Employee Benefit Plans that are
(1) subject to Section 210(a), 4063 and 4064 of ERISA or Section 413(c) of the Code (“Multiple Employer Plans”), (ii) multiemployer plans
(as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA) (“Multiemployer Plans™) or (iii) “benefit plans”, within the meaning of Section 5000(b)(1) of
the Code providing continuing benefits after the termination of employment (other than as required by Section 4980B of the Code or Part 6
of Title I of ERISA or similar state or local Law). No Company nor Seller has any Liability or contingent Liability with respect to any plan,
arrangement or practice of the type described in this Section 3.13(a) other than the Employee Benefit Plans set forth on Section 3.13(a) of
the Disclosure Schedule.

(b) No Company, Seller, any of their Affiliates or any Company ERISA Affiliate has ever participated in, been required to
contribute to, or otherwise been required to participate in any Multiemployer Plan, any Multiple Employer Plan or similar plan under the
Laws of any jurisdiction. No Employee Benefit Plan is or at any time was a “defined benefit plan” as defined in Section 3(35) of ERISA or
a pension plan subject to the funding standards of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code. No Employee Benefit Plan is or at any
time was a defined benefit plan under the Laws of any other jurisdiction. No Company, Seller, any of their Affiliates, or any Company
ERISA Affiliate has ever participated in, been required to contribute to, or otherwise been required to participate in any plan, program or
arrangement subject to Title IV of ERISA. No Employee Benefit Plan is a multiple employer welfare arrangement as defined in
Section 3(40) of ERISA.

(c) Each of the Employee Benefit Plans intended to qualify under Section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Code (“Qualified Plans”) has
received a determination letter from the IRS to such effect and the trusts maintained thereto are exempt from federal income taxation under
Section 501 of the Code and nothing has occurred or will occur through the Closing with respect to any such plan which would reasonably
be expected to cause the loss of such qualification or exemption. There has been no termination or partial termination of such Qualified
Plan within the meaning of Code Section 411(d)(3) and the present value of all Liabilities under any such plan will not exceed the current
fair market value of the assets of such plan (determined using the actuarial assumption used for the most recent actuarial valuation for such
plan).

(d) All contributions, reimbursements, accruals and premiums required by Law or by the terms of any Employee Benefit Plan or
any agreement relating thereto for all periods ending prior to or as of the Closing have been timely paid or properly accrued on the Balance
Sheet and the books and records of the Companies. No Employee Benefit Plan has any unfunded Liabilities which are not reflected on the
Balance Sheet or the books and records of the Companies or Seller.
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(e) There has been no material violation of or material failure to comply with applicable Law, with respect to the filing of
applicable returns, reports, documents and notices regarding any of the Employee Benefit Plans with any applicable Governmental Body or
the furnishing of such notices or documents to the participants or beneficiaries of the Employee Benefit Plans.

(f) True, correct and complete copies of the following documents, with respect to each of the Employee Benefit Plans, have
been delivered to Purchaser: (A) any plans and related trust documents (all amendments thereto), investment management agreements,
administrative service contracts, group annuity contracts, insurance contracts, collective bargaining agreements and employee handbooks,
(B) the most recent Forms 5500 for the past three years and schedules thereto, (C) the most recent consolidated financial statements and
actuarial valuations for the past three years, (D) the most recent IRS determination letters, (E) the most recent summary plan descriptions
(including letters or other documents updating such descriptions) and (F) written descriptions of all non-written agreements relating to the
Employee Benefit Plans.

(g) There are no pending Legal Proceedings which have been asserted or instituted or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties,
threatened against any of the Employee Benefit Plans, the assets of any such plans or of any related trust or the Companies or Seller, the
plan administrator or any fiduciary of the Employee Benefit Plans with respect to such plans (other than routine benefit claims), and there
are no facts or circumstances which could form the basis for any such Legal Proceeding. No Employee Benefit Plan is under audit or
investigation by the IRS, DOL, or any other Governmental Body and no such completed audit, if any, has resulted in the imposition of Tax,
interest, or penalty.

(h) Each of the Employee Benefit Plans complies in all material respects with its terms and all provisions of applicable Law and
all applicable reporting requirements have been satisfied on a timely basis.

(i) The Companies or Seller maintain a “group health plan” within the meaning of Section 5000(b)(1) of the Code and each plan
sponsor or administrator has complied with the COBRA reporting, disclosure, notice, election, and other benefit continuation and coverage
requirements of Section 4980B of the Code, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Part 6 of Title I of ERISA
and the applicable regulations thereunder and any comparable state Laws, including compliance with the Company’s or Seller’s COBRA
obligations rising in connection with the transactions contemplated herein. No Employee Benefit Plan provides medical, dental or other
benefits for or in respect of any current or former employees or other service providers of the Companies or Seller or their predecessors
after termination of employment or other service other than the rights that may be provided by Law.

() No “prohibited transaction”, within the meaning of ERISA or the Code, or breach of any duty imposed on “fiduciaries”
pursuant to ERISA has occurred with respect to any Employee Benefit Plan.

(k) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby,
including the Restructuring (in each case

23



either alone or in conjunction with any other event) will, with or without the passage of time or the giving of notice (i) result in any
payment becoming due to any service provider; (ii) increase any benefits otherwise payable to any service provider including under any
Employee Benefit Plan; or (iii) result in the acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any such benefits.

(1) No security issued by a Company or Seller forms or has formed any part of the assets of any Employee Benefit Plan.

(m) The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the Restructuring, will not give rise to
any Liability for termination of any agreements related to any Employee Benefit Plan.

(n) No amounts payable under any Employee Benefit Plan or any other agreement will fail to be deductible for federal income
tax purposes by virtue of Section 280G of the Code.

(o) Each Employee Benefit Plan that purports to provide benefits which qualify for tax-favored treatment under Sections 79,
105, 106, 117, 120, 125, 127, 129, and 132 of the Code satisfies the requirements of said Section(s).

(p) The Companies or Seller have taken such actions necessary with respect to each Employee Benefit Plan to ensure that no
service provider of the Companies or Seller is subject to taxes or penalties under Section 409A of the Code.

(q) Each Employee Benefit Plan, its related trust and insurance agreement may be unilaterally amended or terminated on no
more than ninety (90) days’ notice.

(r) There exists no Liability in connection with any former Employee Benefit Plan that has terminated and all procedures for
termination or any such former Employee Benefit Plan have been properly followed in accordance with the terms of such former Employee
Benefit Plan and Laws.

Section 3.14 Labor.

(a) Section 3.14(a) of the Disclosure Schedule contains a list of all persons who are employees, consultants or contractors of the
Companies or Seller as of the date hereof, and sets forth for each such individual the following: (i) name, (ii) title or position (including
whether full or part time), (iii) hire date, (iv) current annual base compensation rate, (vi) commission, bonus or other incentive-based
compensation, (vi) benefits, (vii) location of employment, and (viii) designation as either exempt or non-exempt from the overtime
requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act or other applicable employment standards legislation and sets forth for each consultant or
contractor the terms on which they are engaged. No employee is on a long-term disability leave, receiving benefits pursuant to applicable
workers compensation legislation or otherwise an inactive employee. Except as set out in Section 3.14(a) of the Disclosure Schedule,
neither the Seller nor any Company is a party to or bound by any Contract in respect of any employee or former employee, which provides
such employee or former employee with termination or severance entitlements in excess of those required by applicable Law.
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(b) The Companies and Seller are not, nor have they ever been, a party to or bound by, either directly or by operation of
applicable Law, any labor or collective bargaining agreement, letter of understanding, letter of intent, or other Contract with a labor
organization representing any of its employees, and there are no labor organizations representing, purporting to represent or, to Seller
Parties’ Knowledge, attempting to represent any employee. There has never been, nor has there been any threat of, any strike, slowdown,
work stoppage, lockout, concerted refusal to work overtime, arbitrations or other similar labor activity or dispute affecting the Companies
or Seller or any of their respective employees. There are no grievances, arbitrations, unfair labor practice charges, or other labor disputes
pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened against the Companies or Seller.

(c) No labor organization or group of employees of the Companies or Seller has made a pending demand for recognition, and
there are no representation proceedings or petitions seeking a representation proceeding presently pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller
Parties, threatened to be brought or filed, with the National Labor Relations Board or other labor relations tribunal or board. There is no
organizing activity involving the Companies or Seller pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened by any labor organization
or group of employees of the Companies or Seller.

(d) There are no Legal Proceedings against the Companies or Seller pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened
which would reasonably be expected to be brought or filed, with any public or Governmental Body based on, arising out of, in connection
with, or otherwise relating to the application or recruitment for employment, employment or termination of employment of any individual
or group by the Companies or Seller.

(e) To the Knowledge of Seller Parties, no executive or employee or independent contractor currently has any plans to resign,
retire or terminate his, her or its employment or engagement with the Companies or Seller independently of or as a result of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.

(f) The Companies and Seller are and have been in compliance with all applicable Laws pertaining to employment and
employment practices to the extent they relate to the employees of the Companies or Seller, including all Laws relating to labor relations,
equal employment opportunities, fair employment practices, employment discrimination, harassment, retaliation, reasonable
accommodation, disability rights or benefits, immigration, wage and hours, overtime compensation, child labor, health and safety, workers’
compensation, uniformed services employment, whistleblowers, leaves of absence, accessibility, pay equity, employment practices and
standards, and unemployment insurance. All individuals characterized and treated by the Companies or Seller as consultants or contractors
are properly treated as independent contractors under all applicable Laws and are not likely to be characterized by any Governmental Body
as employees. There are no Legal Proceedings pending against the Companies or Seller, or to Seller Parties’ Knowledge, threatened to be
brought or filed, by or with any Governmental Body or arbitrator in connection with the employment of any current or former employee,
consultant or independent contractor, including any claim relating to unfair labor practices, employment discrimination, harassment,
retaliation, equal pay or any other employment related matter arising under applicable Laws. There are no internal complaints or reports by
any current
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or former employee, consultant or independent contractor pursuant to the anti-harassment policy of the Companies or Seller that are
pending or under investigation.

(g) Proventiv has complied with WARN and it has no plans to undertake any action in the future that would trigger WARN.

(h) All employees of the Companies and Seller residing and/or working in the United States are doing so (i) free of any
restrictions or limitations on their ability to accept employment lawfully in the United States and (ii) in compliance with all applicable Laws
relating to immigration and naturalization. No Legal Proceeding has been filed or commenced against the Companies or Seller or, to Seller
Parties’ Knowledge, any employees thereof, that (a) alleges any failure so to comply or (b) seeks removal, exclusion or other restrictions on
(D) such employee’s ability to reside and/or accept employment lawfully in the United States and/or (II) the continued ability of the
Companies or Seller to sponsor employees for immigration benefits and, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, there is no reasonable basis for
any of the foregoing. To the Knowledge of Seller Parties, there is no reasonable basis to believe that any employee of the Companies or
Seller will not be able to continue to so reside and/or accept employment lawfully in the United States in accordance with all such Laws.
The Companies and Seller maintain adequate internal systems and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that all employee hiring is
conducted in compliance with all applicable Laws relating to immigration and naturalization. No audit, investigation or other Legal
Proceeding has been commenced against the Companies or Seller at any time with respect to its compliance with applicable Laws relating
to immigration and naturalization in connection with its hiring practices.

(1) The consummation of the Restructuring shall not impair or limit the ability of the Companies to employ or engage any
employee or consultant of Seller after the Restructuring or the Closing.

(j) Neither the Seller nor any of the Companies has paid or will be required to pay any bonus, fee, distribution, remuneration or
other compensation to any employee, consultant or independent contractor (other than salaries, wages or bonuses paid or payable in the
ordinary course of business in accordance with current compensation levels and practices as set out in Section 3.14(a) of the Disclosure
Schedule) as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 3.15 Litigation. Except as set forth in Section 3.15 of the Disclosure Schedule, there is no Legal Proceeding pending or, to the
Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened against the Companies or Seller (or pending or threatened against any of the officers, directors or
key employees of the Companies or Seller in relation to the Companies or Seller or the Business) before any court or other Governmental
Body or any arbitral tribunal, nor is there any basis for any such Legal Proceeding, and no such Legal Proceeding has been commenced by
any Person against the Companies or Seller at any time since January 1, 2010 that has previously been settled or finally determined. Neither
any Company or Seller has received any written memorandum or legal advice from legal counsel retained by the Companies or Seller to the
effect that it is exposed, from a legal standpoint, to any Liability. Neither any Company or Seller has engaged in any Legal Proceeding to
recover monies due it or for damages sustained by it. Neither any Company or Seller is subject to any Order of any Governmental Body.
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Section 3.16 Compliance with Laws; Permits.

(a) Each of the Companies and Seller is, and has at all times been, in compliance with all Laws applicable to it or the operation,
use, occupancy or ownership of its assets or properties or the conduct of the Business. No Company or Seller has received written notice
from any Governmental Body of, and Seller Parties have no Knowledge of, any failure to comply with any Law. There is no investigation
by a Governmental Body pending against or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened against any of the Companies or Seller.

(b) Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedule contains a complete and accurate list of each Permit that is held by the
Companies or Seller or that otherwise relates to the Business. Each Permit listed or required to be listed in Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure
Schedule is valid and in full force and effect. Except as set forth in Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedule:

(i) any Company or Seller, as applicable, is, and has been, in full compliance with all of the terms and requirements of each
Permit identified or required to be identified in Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedule;

(i) no event has occurred or circumstance exists that may (with or without notice or lapse of time) (A) constitute or result
directly or indirectly in a violation of or a failure to comply with any term or requirement of any Permit identified or required to
be identified in Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedule or (B) result directly or indirectly in the revocation, withdrawal,
suspension, cancellation or termination of, or any modification to, any Permit identified or required to be identified in
Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedule;

(iii) no Company or Seller has received any notice or other communication (whether oral or written) from any
Governmental Body or any other Person regarding (A) any actual, alleged, possible or potential violation of or failure to comply
with any term or requirement of any Permit or (B) any actual, proposed, possible or potential revocation, withdrawal, suspension,
cancellation, termination of or modification to any Permit; and

(iv) all applications required to have been filed for the renewal of the Permit identified or required to be identified in
Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedule have been duly filed on a timely basis with the appropriate Governmental Bodies, and
all other filings required to have been made with respect to such Permits have been duly made on a timely basis with the
appropriate Governmental Bodies.

The Permits identified in Section 3.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedule collectively constitute all of the Permits necessary to enable the
Companies or Seller to lawfully conduct and operate the Business and to own and use their assets in the manner in which they currently
own and use such assets, and all such Permits held by Seller shall be lawfully transferred to Cayman Newco in connection with the
Restructuring, free and clear of all Liens.

Section 3.17 Environmental Matters.

27



(a) The operations of the Companies and Seller are currently and have been in compliance with all applicable Environmental
Laws and all licenses, approvals and Permits issued pursuant to Environmental Laws or otherwise (“Environmental Permits”).

(b) The Companies and Seller have obtained and currently maintain all Environmental Permits required under all applicable
Environmental Laws necessary to operate the Business.

(c) None of the Companies or Seller is the subject of any outstanding written Order or Contract with any Governmental Body or
other Person respecting any Environmental Laws or any Release or threatened Release of a Hazardous Material.

(d) None of the Companies or Seller has received any written communication alleging either that it may be in violation of any
Environmental Law or Environmental Permit or that it may have any Liability under any Environmental Law.

(e) None of the Companies or Seller has incurred, retained, assumed or undertaken any contingent Liability in connection with
any Release of any Hazardous Materials into the indoor or outdoor environment (whether on-site or off-site) and there are no facts,
circumstances or conditions relating to, arising out of or attributable to it that could give rise to Liability under Environmental Laws.

(f) To the Knowledge of Seller Parties, there is not located at any of the properties of the Companies any (i) underground
storage tanks, (ii) asbestos or asbestos-containing material (iii) equipment containing polychlorinated biphenyls, (iv) lead-based paint, or
(v) mold; and

(g) Seller Parties have delivered to Purchaser all environmentally related audits, studies, reports, analyses, and results of
investigations that have been performed within the previous five years with respect to the currently or previously owned, leased or operated
properties of the Companies or Seller.

Section 3.18 Insurance. Section 3.18 of the Disclosure Schedule includes a correct and complete list and description, including policy
number, coverage and deductible, of all insurance policies owned by the Companies or Seller, complete copies of which policies have
previously been delivered to Purchaser and Opko Health by Seller Parties. Such policies are in full force and effect, all premiums due
thereon have been paid and no Company or Seller is in default thereunder. Such insurance policies are of the type and in the amounts
customarily carried by Persons conducting a business similar to the Business and are sufficient for compliance with all applicable Laws and
Contracts to which the Companies or Seller are a party or by which they are bound. No Company or Seller has received any notice of
cancellation or intent to cancel or increase or intent to increase premiums with respect to such insurance policies nor, to the Knowledge of
Seller Parties, is there any basis for any such action. Section 3.18 of the Disclosure Schedule also contains a list of all pending claims and
any claims in the past five (5) years with any insurance company by the Companies or Seller in excess of $10,000 and any instances within
the previous five (5) years of a denial of coverage of the Companies or Seller by any insurance company.
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Section 3.19 Payables. All accounts payable of the Companies or Seller reflected on the Balance Sheet and arising after the date
thereof are the result of bona fide transactions in the ordinary course of business and have been paid or are not yet due and payable, except
for accounts payable that are being disputed in good faith in an appropriate manner and for which there are adequate reserves on the
Balance Sheet, or, with respect to accounts payable arising after the Balance Sheet Date, on the accounting records of the Companies or
Seller.

Section 3.20 FDA and Related Matters.

(a) The Companies and Seller Parties are and have been in compliance in all respects with (i) all applicable Laws of the FDA
and other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities (including all rules, regulations, policies, guidance document and guidelines of such Healthcare
Regulatory Authorities which, although not necessarily having the force of law, are regarded by any Healthcare Regulatory Authority as
requiring compliance as if it had the force of law), and (ii) all Healthcare Regulatory Authorizations, including all requirements of the FDA
and all other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities, that are applicable to the Companies or Seller Parties, or by which any property, product,
or other asset of the Companies or Seller (including, without limitation, any Product Candidate (as defined below)) is bound or affected. No
Company or Seller Party has received any written notification of any pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened, claim, suit,
proceeding, hearing, enforcement, audit, investigation, arbitration or other action from the FDA or other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities,
and to Seller Parties’ Knowledge, there is no reasonable basis for any such claim, suit, proceeding, hearing, enforcement, audit,
investigation, arbitration or other action.

(b) The Companies and Seller have held all Healthcare Regulatory Authorizations required for the conduct of the Business as
currently conducted, and all such Healthcare Regulatory Authorizations are in full force and effect. No event has occurred which allows, or
after notice or lapse of time would allow or result in, and the Restructuring will not result in, revocation or termination thereof or results in
any other impairment of the rights of the holder of any such Healthcare Regulatory Authorization.

(c) Section 3.20 of the Disclosure Schedule contains a complete and accurate list of all of the Product Candidates of the
Companies or Seller, listing, where applicable, those Product Candidates for which the Companies or Seller have applied for or have
authorization to test the product in human subjects (“Human Testing Authorization”) according to applicable Laws and listing the type of
application made or currently in effect. For those Product Candidates listed in Section 3.20 of the Disclosure Schedule as having received
FDA and/or other Human Testing Authorization which are currently under development (including where such Human Testing
Authorization has been received as a result of the absence of a notice from a Health Regulatory Authority after a specified amount of time),
such Human Testing Authorization has not been revoked, suspended, cancelled or rescinded. No notification has been received by any
Company or Seller Party from any Governmental Body, a notified body or any other party that would reasonably be expected to preclude
the Companies or Seller from continuing to test such Product Candidates. No applications made or other materials submitted by the
Companies or Seller Parties to FDA and other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities contained an untrue statement of material fact, or omitted
to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements contained therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they were
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made, not misleading on a material matter. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Product Candidates” means biologics, compounds or other
products currently in research or under development by the Companies or Seller or any of their respective licensees, including without
limitation CTAP101 Capsules, Fermagate Tablets, CTA018 Injection, CTAP201 Injection, Phosphate Transport Inhibitors and CTA091.

(d) There are no facts or circumstances that the Companies or Seller Parties have concluded could reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect on the Business.

(e) Section 3.20 of the Disclosure Schedule contains a complete and accurate list of all of the Companies’ and Seller’s research
programs relating to any Product Candidates as of the date of this Agreement.

(f) No Company or Seller Party has received any material written notification from the FDA or other Healthcare Regulatory
Authorities with jurisdiction over the importing, exporting, marketing, sale, use, handling and control, safety, efficacy, reliability, or
manufacturing of Company Products which would reasonably be expected to lead to the revocation, withdrawal, or denial of any
application for marketing approval before the FDA or such other Healthcare Regulatory Authority. None of the Company or any of the
Seller Parties have received approval for or market any pharmaceutical products.

(g) Except as disclosed in Section 3.20(g) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Companies and Seller Parties have made available to
Purchaser and Opko Health all reports, documents, claims, notices, filings, notes, minutes, transcripts, recordings and other correspondence
between the Companies, Seller or any Affiliate thereof, on the one hand, and FDA and other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities, on the
other hand, that relate to Product Candidates. Except as disclosed in Section 3.20(g) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Companies and Seller
Parties have made available to Purchaser and Opko Health all regulatory audit reports by an outside auditor received by the Companies or
Seller Parties in respect of the Company Products and all response to such audits.

(h) All material reports, documents, claims, applications, applicable product registration files and dossiers, notices and similar
filings required to be filed, maintained, or furnished to FDA or other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities by the Companies or Seller have
been so filed, maintained or furnished and, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, were complete and correct in all material respects on the date
filed (or were corrected in or supplemented by a subsequent filing) and were not misleading in any material respect.

(1) Neither the Companies nor Seller have voluntarily or involuntarily initiated, conducted or issued, or caused to be initiated,
conducted or issued, any investigator notices, safety alerts or other notice of action relating to an alleged lack of safety, efficacy, or
regulatory compliance of any Product Candidate manufactured or distributed by or on behalf of the Companies or Seller. Neither the
Companies nor Seller Parties have received any written notice that the FDA or any other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities has
(1) commenced, or threatened to initiate, any action to request the recall of any Product Candidate, (ii) commenced, or threatened to initiate,
any action to enjoin the import, export, manufacture or distribution of any Product Candidate or (iii) commenced, or threatened to initiate,
any action to enjoin the import, export,
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manufacture or distribution of any Product Candidate produced at any facility where any Product Candidate is manufactured, tested,
processed, packaged or held for sale.

(j) All clinical and pre-clinical studies conducted by or on behalf of or sponsored by the Companies or Seller, or in which the
Companies or Seller or their products or Product Candidates have participated were and, if still pending, are being conducted in accordance
with any and all internal health, safety and environmental guidelines and standards of the Companies or Seller, as applicable, any and all
applicable trial protocols, standard medical and scientific research procedures and all applicable Laws, including, but not limited to with
respect to Product Candidates, compliance with the requirements of Good Laboratory Practice (21 C.F.R. Part 58) and FDA regulations
relating to Good Clinical Practice and Clinical Trials (including 21 C.F.R. Part 312 and all requirements relating to protection of human
subjects contained in 21 C.F.R. Parts 50, 54, and 56), any relevant current International Conference on Harmonization (ICH) guidance
documents, and all similar local, state, provincial, federal, and foreign Laws or Governmental Bodies’ requirements, and any adverse event
or adverse drug reaction reporting requirements of any of the foregoing. The Companies and Seller have obtained any necessary FDA or
other Healthcare Regulatory Authority approvals or authorizations to administer all applicable investigational products to humans, and is in
material compliance with all ongoing requirements under 21 C.F.R. Part 312 and the requirements of other similar Laws relating to clinical
trials and new drug candidates. None of the Companies or any Seller Parties has received any written notices, correspondence or other
written communication from any Governmental Body, data safety monitoring board or institutional review board requiring the termination,
suspension or material modification of any clinical trials conducted by, or on behalf of, the Companies or Seller, as applicable, with respect
to Product Candidates.

(k) All clinical trials conducted by or on behalf of the Companies or Seller and relied or for marketing authority conform to the
characteristics of “adequate and well-controlled studies” set forth in 21 C.F.R. § 314.126.

(1) All manufacturing operations conducted by or for the benefit of the Companies or Seller with respect to Product Candidates,
whether domestic or foreign, have been, and are being conducted in material compliance with the FDA’s current Good Manufacturing
Practice regulations for drug and biological products, including, without limitation, to the extent applicable the relevant current
International Conference on Harmonization (ICH) guidance documents (including, without limitation, the ICH Guidance Q7A Good
Manufacturing Practices Guidance for Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients), 21 C.F.R. Parts 210, 211, 606 and 610, and all Laws.

(m) No Company or Seller Party has received any FDA Form 483, notice of adverse finding, warning letters, untitled letters or
other similar notices from other Healthcare Regulatory Authorities.

(n) As to Product Candidates for which an investigational new drug application, clinical trial application, biologics license
application, new drug application or similar state, regulatory or foreign application has been filed or Human Testing Authorization has been
obtained, (including where such Human Testing Authorization has been received as a result of the absence of a notice from a Health
Regulatory Authority after a specified amount of time), the Companies or Seller, as applicable, are in material compliance with 21 U.S.C.
§§ 355, Section 262 of the Public Health Service Act or 21 C.F.R. Parts 312, 314, 600 and 601 et seq., respectively, and all material terms
and conditions of such licenses or applications. As to each such application, the relevant party has included any required debarment
certification described in 21 U.S.C. § 335a(k)(1), and each such certification was and continues to be true, complete and correct.

31



(o) No Company or Seller Party is the subject of any pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened investigation
regarding the Companies or Seller or their products by the FDA pursuant to its “Fraud, Untrue Statements of Material Facts, Bribery, and
Illegal Gratuities” Final Policy set forth in 56 Fed. Reg. 46191 (September 10, 1991) and any amendments thereto, or otherwise. No
Company or Seller Party, nor, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties (for purposes of this subsection only, excluding from the definition of
“Knowledge” any obligation of inquiry), any officer, employee or agent of the Companies or Seller (in its performance of services for the
Companies or Seller), has committed or been convicted of any crime or engaged in any conduct for which debarment is mandated by 21
U.S.C. § 335a(a) or any similar Law or authorized by 21 U.S.C. § 335a(b) or any similar Law. No Company or Seller Party, nor, to the
Knowledge of Seller Parties, any officer or employee of the Companies or Seller, has been convicted of any crime or engaged in any
conduct for which such Person could be excluded from participating in the U.S. federal health care programs under Section 1128 of the
Social Security Act of 1935, as amended, or any similar Law or could be excluded from participating in any health care programs outside
the United States. As of the date hereof, no claims, actions, proceedings or investigations that would reasonably be expected to result in a
material debarment or exclusion are pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, threatened, against the Companies or Seller Parties or,
to the Knowledge of Seller Parties, any of their respective directors, officers or employees.

(p) Except as disclosed in Section 3.20(p) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Companies and Seller Parties have made available to
Parent all information Known to Seller Parties with respect to the safety or efficacy of the Product Candidates.

(q) All animal studies or other preclinical tests performed in connection with or as the basis for any regulatory approval required
for the Product Candidates either (i) have been conducted in accordance, in all material respects, with applicable Good Laboratory Practice
requirements contained in 21 CFR Part 58, any relevant current International Conference on Harmonization (ICH) guidance documents and
all similar local, state, provincial, federal and foreign Laws or Governmental Bodies’ requirements, (ii) were pilot safety studies or
(iii) involved experimental research techniques that are not generally performed by registered Good Laboratory Practice (or foreign
equivalent) testing laboratories and have employed reasonable procedures and controls. Without limiting the foregoing, all animal studies
or other preclinical tests performed in connection with or as reasonably be expected to be submitted in support of any regulatory approval
required for the Product Candidates have been conducted in accordance with applicable Law.

(r) Except as disclosed in Section 3.20(r) of the Disclosure Schedule, no clinical hold, suspension, cancellation or termination of
a clinical study has been ordered by FDA under 21 C.F.R. § 312.42 or § 312.44, or by any other Healthcare Regulatory Authority on any
clinical
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trial of a product of the Companies or Seller, and no such clinical trial has otherwise has been suspended, cancelled or terminated by any
person (including the Companies or Seller) prior to completion.

Section 3.21 Suppliers. Section 3.21 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and correct list of the top ten (10) suppliers of
each of the Companies and Seller for the most recently ended fiscal year and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2012 and the
amount of purchases from each such supplier during such period. Except as set forth on Section 3.21 of the Disclosure Schedule, since the
Balance Sheet Date, no supplier has cancelled or otherwise terminated, reduced or, to the Knowledge of Seller Parties threatened, to cancel
or terminate or reduce, its relationship with any Company or Seller, nor is there any dispute therewith.

Section 3.22 Related Party Transactions. Except as described in Section 3.22 of the Disclosure Schedule, since the Balance Sheet
Date, no Company or Seller has loaned or borrowed any amounts to or from, and does not have outstanding any Indebtedness or other
similar obligations to or from, any Affiliate of the Companies or any Seller Party. Except as described in Section 3.22 of the Disclosure
Schedule, since the Balance Sheet Date, no Company or Seller, nor any Affiliate of any Company or Seller, nor any officer or employee of
any of them (i) has owned any direct or indirect interest of any kind in, or controls or is a director, officer, employee or partner of, or
consultant to, or lender to or borrower from or has the right to participate in the profits of, any Person which is (A) a competitor, supplier,
distributor, customer, landlord, tenant, creditor or debtor of any Company or Seller, (B) engaged in a business related to the businesses of
the Companies or Seller, or (C) a participant in any material transaction to which Companies or Seller have been a party or (ii) has been a
party to any Contract with the Companies or Seller or engaged in any transaction or business with the Companies or Seller. No Company or
Seller has any Contract or understanding with any officer, director, employee or shareholder of the Companies or Seller, or any Affiliate of
any such Person, that relates, directly or indirectly, to the subject matter of any Transaction Document or the consideration payable
thereunder or that contains any terms, provisions or conditions relating to the entry into or performance of any Transaction Document by
the Companies or Seller.

Section 3.23 Brokers Fees. No Company or Seller has any Liability to pay any fees or commissions to any investment banker, broker,
finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 3.24 Absence of Certain Business Practices. Except as set forth in Section 3.24 of the Disclosure Schedule, neither the
Companies nor Seller has, and no Seller Party, no Affiliate or to the Knowledge of Seller Parties (for purposes of this subsection only,
excluding from the definition of “Knowledge” any obligation of inquiry) agent of the Companies or any Seller Party, and no other Person
acting on behalf of or associated with any Seller Parties or the Companies, acting alone or together, has (a) received, directly or indirectly,
any rebates, payments, commissions, promotional allowances or any other economic benefits, regardless of their nature or type, from any
customer, supplier or employee or agent of any customer or supplier; or (b) directly or indirectly given or agreed to give any money, gift or
similar benefit to any customer, supplier or employee or agent of any customer or supplier, any official or employee of any government
(domestic or foreign), or any political party or candidate for office
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(domestic or foreign), or other Person who was, is or may be in a position to help or hinder the business of the Companies or Seller (or
assist the Companies or Seller in connection with any actual or proposed transaction), in each case which (i) may reasonably be expected to
subject Companies or Seller to any damage or penalty in any civil, criminal or governmental litigation or proceeding, (ii) if not given in the
past, may have had an adverse effect on the assets, Business, or operations of the Companies or Seller, or (iii) if not continued in the future,
may adversely affect the assets, business or operations of the Companies or Seller.

Section 3.25 Business Continuity. None of the computer software, computer hardware (whether general or special purpose),
telecommunications capabilities (including all voice, data and video networks) and other similar or related items of automated,
computerized, and/or software systems and any other networks or systems and related services that are used by or relied on by the
Companies or Seller in the conduct of the Business (collectively, the “Systems”) have experienced bugs, failures, breakdowns, or
continued substandard performance in the past twelve (12) months that has caused any material disruption or interruption in or to the use of
any such Systems by the Companies or Seller. The Companies, Seller and their Affiliates are covered by business interruption insurance in
scope and amount customary and reasonable to ensure the ongoing business operations of the Business.

Section 3.26 Bank Accounts; Powers of Attorney. Section 3.26 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth:

(a) with respect to any borrowing or investment arrangements, deposit or checking accounts or safety deposit boxes of the
Companies or Seller, the name of the financial institution, the type of account and the account number; and

(b) the name of each Person holding a general or special power of attorney from or with respect to the Companies or Seller and a
description of the terms of each such power.

Section 3.27 Restructuring. Without limiting any representation or warranty made elsewhere herein, the Cayman Newco Transfer, the
Conversion, the Proventiv Contribution and the Restructuring taken as a whole (a) will be sufficient to vest in the Companies all right, title
and interest in and to the rights and assets of Seller and Holdings prior to Closing and all asset rights and interests reasonably necessary for
the conduct of the Business by Purchaser after the Closing, (b) shall not impair title to any right or asset of Seller, Holdings or any
Company or result in the imposition of any Lien thereon, (c) shall not subject any Company to any Liability other than GST/HST or
increase any existing Liability of Seller or any Company other than GST/HST and (d) will not cause any representation or warranty set
forth herein to not be true and correct in any respect.

Section 3.28 No Misrepresentation. No representation or warranty of the Seller Parties contained in this Agreement, the Disclosure
Schedule, any other Transaction Document or in any certificate or other instrument furnished to Purchaser or Opko Health in connection
with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement herewith contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading.
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Section 3.29 Privacy Laws.

(a) Except as set forth in Section 3.29 of the Disclosure Schedule, the Companies and Seller have complied in all material
respects with all Privacy Laws in connection with the Companies’ and Seller’s collection, use and disclosure of Personal Information; and
all Personal Information has been collected, used and disclosed with the consent of each individual to whom such Personal Information
relates and has been used only for the purposes for which it was initially collected.

(b) The Companies and Seller have had in place since 2004 a privacy policy governing the collection, use and disclosure of
Personal Information by the Companies and Seller, and have collected, used and disclosed Personal Information in accordance with such
policy.

(c) All consents required to be obtained in connection with the provision by the Seller Parties or Companies to the Purchaser of
Transaction Personal Information in connection with the Purchaser evaluating or proceeding with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement have been obtained.

(d) The Seller Parties and the Companies have advised the Purchaser of all of the purposes for which Transaction Personal
Information was initially collected and, where any such Transaction Personal Information has been used for additional purposes, of such
additional purposes that are material to the conduct of the Business as currently conducted by the Companies and Seller. Each individual to
whom such Transaction Personal Information relates has been notified of, and their consent obtained for, its use for such additional
purposes.

ARTICLE 1V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER AND OPKO HEALTH

Except as otherwise set forth on the Purchaser Disclosure Schedule or in the SEC Reports, Purchaser and Opko Health represent and
warrant, jointly and severally, to Seller Parties as follows:

Section 4.1 Organization. Opko Health is a corporation, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the
State of Delaware. Purchaser is a company duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Each of Purchaser and Opko Health has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on
its business.

Section 4.2 Authorization and Enforceability. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and Transaction
Documents to which Purchaser or Opko Health is a party have been duly authorized by all necessary action by or on behalf of Purchaser or
Opko Health, as applicable. Each of Purchaser and Opko Health has full power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and
each other Transaction Document to which it is a party, and to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder including, without
limitation, the issuance and delivery of the Opko Shares. This Agreement and each Transaction Document to which Purchaser or
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Opko Health is or will be a party has been or will be duly and validly executed and delivered and constitutes the valid and legally binding
obligation of Purchaser or Opko Health, as applicable, enforceable against such Person in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar Laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally and subject, as to
enforceability, to general principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at Law or in equity).

Section 4.3 Conflicts; Consent of Third Parties. Neither the execution and the delivery by Purchaser or Opko Health of this
Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby on the part of Purchaser or Opko Health including, without limitation, the issuance and delivery of the Opko Shares, will, with or
without the passage of time or the giving of notice (a) conflict with, or result in the breach of, any provision of the Governing Documents
of Purchaser or Opko Health, (b) conflict with, violate, result in the breach or termination of, or constitute a default under, result in an
acceleration of, or create in any party the right to accelerate, terminate, modify or cancel, any Contract to which Purchaser or Opko Health
is a party or by which Purchaser or Opko Health or their respective properties or assets are bound, or (c) violate any Law or any Order by
which Opko Health or Purchaser is bound or which is applicable to its business. No Consent, Order, waiver, declaration or filing with, or
notification to any Person, including the New York Stock Exchange or any Governmental Body, is required to be obtained by or made on
the part of Purchaser or Opko Health in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the consummation of
the transaction contemplated hereby including, without limitation, the issuance and delivery of the Opko Shares, or the other Transaction
Documents, or the compliance by any of them with any of the provisions hereof or thereof.

Section 4.4 Brokers Fees. Neither Purchaser nor Opko Health has any Liability to pay any fees or commissions to any broker, finder
or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.5 No Proceedings. No suit, action or other proceeding is pending before any Governmental Body seeking to restrain or
prohibit Purchaser or Opko Health from entering into this Agreement or to prohibit the Closing or the performance of any other obligation
hereunder. There is no investigation by a Governmental Body pending against or, to the Knowledge of Opko Health, threatened against
Opko Health or any of its direct or indirect subsidiaries.

Section 4.6 Investment Purpose. Purchaser is acquiring the Shares solely for the purpose of investment and not with a view to, or for
offer or sale in connection with, any distribution thereof. Purchaser acknowledges that the Shares are not registered under the Securities
Act, and that the Shares may not be transferred or sold except pursuant to the registration provisions of the Securities Act or pursuant to an
applicable exemption therefrom and subject to Applicable Securities Laws.

Section 4.7 SEC Reports; Financial Statements. Opko Health has, for the twelve months preceding the date hereof, timely filed all
reports, registrations, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it under the Securities Act and the Securities
Exchange Act, including pursuant to Section 13 or 15 thereof (the foregoing materials being collectively referred to herein as the “SEC
Reports”). As of their respective dates, the SEC Reports complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and
the Securities Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities & Exchange
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Commission (the “Commission”) promulgated thereunder, and the rules and regulations of any other governmental authority with which
the SEC Reports were made or should have been made, and none of the SEC Reports, when filed, contained any untrue statement of a
material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The financial statements and related disclosures of Opko Health included
in the SEC Reports comply in all material respects with the rules and regulations of the Commission with respect thereto as in effect at the
time of filing. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, except as may be otherwise specified in such
financial statements or the notes thereto and except that unaudited financial statements may not contain all footnotes required by GAAP,
and fairly present in all material respects the financial position of Opko Health and its consolidated subsidiaries as of and for the dates
thereof and the results of operations and cash flows for the periods then ended, subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal,
immaterial, year-end audit adjustments.

Section 4.8 Issuance of Opko Shares. When issued and delivered in accordance with this Agreement, the Opko Shares shall be
(a) duly and validly authorized, issued and outstanding, fully paid and non-assessable, (b) listed for trading on the New York Stock
Exchange, and (c) free and clear of any Liens, other than restrictions imposed by Applicable Securities Laws.

Section 4.9 Canadian Ownership of Opko Shares. On the Closing Date and on each date on which Earn-Out Shares are issued, Opko
Health shall deliver to the Seller a certificate stating: (i) the percentage of the outstanding shares of Opko Common Stock that are directly
or indirectly owned by residents of Canada; and (ii) the percentage of the total number of owners directly or indirectly of the outstanding
shares of Opko Common Stock that are residents of Canada. Such percentages shall give effect to the issuance of Opko Common Stock
being effected on the date of the certificate (based on the information regarding residency of the recipients of Closing Shares or Earn-Out
Shares, as the case may be, as provided to Opko Health by Seller Parties or any trustee or third party agent acting on their behalf), and shall
be determined based on reasonable efforts (within the meaning of Section 1.15 of the Companion Policy to National Instrument 45-102).
The Closing Shares and the Earn-Out Shares shall not bear any legend regarding resale restrictions pertaining to such shares under
Canadian Securities Laws.

ARTICLE V
COVENANTS

Section 5.1 Commercially Reasonable Efforts; Notices and Consents.

(a) Each of the Parties shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to take all action required of it and to do all things necessary,
proper or advisable on its part in order to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and each of the
Transaction Documents (including satisfaction, but not waiver, of the conditions set forth in ARTICLE VI). Each of the Parties shall cause
their respective Affiliates to comply and be responsible for each covenant and undertaking made by it hereunder.
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(b) Each of the Parties shall give any notices to, make any filings with, and use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain any
Consents which are required to be given, made or obtained by it in connection with consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

(c) From the date hereof until the Closing (or earlier termination of this Agreement), Seller Parties and the Companies shall
promptly notify Purchaser in writing of:

(i) any fact, circumstance, event or action the existence, occurrence or taking of which (A) has had, or which could
reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect, (B) has resulted in, or
could reasonably be expected to result in, any representation or warranty made by Seller Parties hereunder not being true and
correct or (C) has resulted in, or could reasonably be expected to result in, the failure of any of the conditions set forth in
Section 6.1 to be satisfied;

(i) any written notice or other communication from any Person alleging that the consent of such Person is or may be
required in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

(iii) any written notice or other communication from any Governmental Body in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement; and

(iv) any Legal Proceedings commenced or, to Seller’s Knowledge, threatened against, relating to or involving or otherwise
affecting any Seller Party or any Company that, if pending on the date of this Agreement, would have been required to have been
disclosed pursuant to Section 3.15 or that relates to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Purchaser’s receipt of information pursuant to this Section 5.1(c) shall not operate as a waiver or otherwise affect any representation,
warranty or agreement given or made by Seller Parties in this Agreement (including Section 7.1 and Section 8.1(b)) and shall not be
deemed to amend or supplement the Disclosure Schedule.

Section 5.2 Access to Information; Financial Statements.

(a) From the date hereof until the Closing (or earlier termination of this Agreement), Seller Parties and the Companies shall
(i) afford Purchaser and its employees, agents, accountants and legal and financial advisors (collectively, the “Purchaser’s Agents”) with
access, during normal business hours, to the offices, plants, warehouses, properties, Books and Records of the Companies and the Seller
Parties relating to the Business, and (ii) furnish to Purchaser’s Agents such additional financial and operating data and other information
regarding the operations of the Companies as Purchaser may from time to time request to the extent that such data or other information is
maintained or reasonably available. Seller Parties and the Companies shall facilitate Purchaser’s contact and communication with the
employees and personnel of the Companies and its customers, suppliers, vendors and distributors of the Business, all as requested upon
reasonable notice by Purchaser to the Seller Parties or the Companies and during normal business hours after the date hereof. Seller Parties
and the Companies shall direct the employees and personnel of the Companies to cooperate with Purchaser in connection with the
foregoing. From the date hereof through the Closing, Seller Parties and the
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Companies shall use good faith efforts to operate the Business in such a manner as to achieve a smooth transition consistent with the mutual
business interests of Seller Parties and Purchaser. In this regard, the Parties agree that they will enter into and continue good faith
discussions concerning the Companies, including personnel policies and procedures, and other operational matters relating to the
Companies.

(b) From the date hereof until the Closing (or earlier termination of this Agreement), the Seller Parties shall, as soon as
practicable and in any event within fifteen (15) days after the end of each fiscal month of the Companies, deliver to Purchaser the internally
prepared consolidated financial statements of the Companies as of the end of such fiscal month, for such fiscal month and for the period
from the beginning of the then-current fiscal year to the end of such fiscal month.

Section 5.3 Operation of Business. Except as contemplated by this Agreement and as may be required for the Restructuring in
accordance with Section 5.13 hereof, during the period from the date of this Agreement to the Closing (or earlier termination of this
Agreement), each of the Seller and the Companies shall conduct its operations in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice and in compliance with all applicable Laws, to the extent consistent therewith, use its commercially reasonable efforts to preserve
intact its current business organization, keep its physical assets in good working condition, keep available the services of its current officers
and employees and preserve its relationships with Governmental Bodies, customers, suppliers and others having business dealings with it to
the end that its goodwill and ongoing business shall not be impaired in any material respect. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, prior to the Closing, none of Seller or any Company shall, without the written consent of Purchaser, take any of the following
actions except to the extent that such actions are required as part of the Restructuring or contemplated by the Transaction Documents:

(a) declare or pay any dividends or distributions on or in respect of any of the capital stock or other securities of Seller or any
Company, or redeem, purchase or acquire any capital stock or other securities of Seller or any Company or make any other payment to or
on behalf of any shareholder or other equity holder of Seller or any Company or any Affiliate thereof;

(b) except as disclosed in Section 5.3(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, make any change in the rate of compensation, commission,
bonus or other direct or indirect remuneration payable, or pay or agree or orally promise to pay, conditionally or otherwise, any bonus,
incentive, retention or other compensation, retirement, welfare, fringe or severance benefit or vacation pay, to or in respect of any director,
officer, employee, distributor or agent of Seller or any Company, other than increases in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practice in the base wages or salaries of employees of Seller or such Company;

(c) enter into or amend any employment, deferred compensation, severance or similar contract;
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(d) materially change any of its accounting or Tax reporting principles, methods or policies, settle any Tax controversy, amend
any Tax Return, or make any material Tax election by or with respect to Seller or any Company;

(e) except for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, enter into or amend any other transaction or Contract other than
in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(f) hire any employees or engage any independent contractors other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with, and
at a level consistent with, past practice;

(g) breach any Contract;
(h) make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any Person;

(i) mortgage, pledge or subject to any Lien any of its assets, or acquire any assets or sell, assign, transfer, convey, lease or
otherwise dispose of any assets of Seller or any Company except for assets acquired or sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed, leased or
otherwise disposed of in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(j) cancel or compromise any debt or claim or amend, cancel, terminate, relinquish, waive or release any Contract or right except
in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and which, in the aggregate, are not material to Seller or any Company;

(k) enter into or amend any Contract or transaction with any of its Affiliates or pay any fees, expenses or other amounts to any
Affiliate of Seller or any Company;

(1) make or commit to make any capital expenditures, capital additions or improvements or any other expense (i) in excess of
$100,000 individually or $250,000 in the aggregate or (ii) outside the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices;

(m) enter into any prepaid services transactions with any of its customers or otherwise accelerate revenue recognition or the
sales of its services for periods prior to the Closing;

(n) change its policies or practices with respect to the payment of accounts payable or other current liabilities or the collection of
accounts receivable (including any acceleration or deferral of the payment or collection thereof);

(o) amend any of its Governing Documents;

(p) adopt any plan of merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation or dissolution or file a petition in bankruptcy under any
provisions of federal or state bankruptcy Law or consent to the filing of any bankruptcy petition against it under any similar Law or other
agreement with respect to the sale of its assets, securities or Business;
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(q) except as disclosed in Section 5.3(q) of the Disclosure Schedule, issue any equity or debt securities or any security
exercisable or exchangeable for or convertible into equity securities of Seller or any Company, or incur any Indebtedness or other
Liabilities (other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices);

(r) enter into any compromise or settlement of any Legal Proceeding or investigation by any Governmental Body;
(s) transfer, assign or grant any license or sublicense of any material rights under or with respect to any Intellectual Property;

(t) fail (i) to file any material reports or take steps necessary to comply with applicable Laws and (ii) to maintain in good
standing all Permits; and

(u) take any action or omit to take any action that is reasonably likely to result in any of the conditions set forth in ARTICLE VI
not being satisfied; or

(v) give or agree to give or becomes a party to or bound by any guarantee, surety or indemnity in respect of Indebtedness or
other obligations or Liabilities of any other Person or becomes a party to any other commitment by which Seller or a Company, as the case
may be, is, or is contingently, responsible for such indebtedness or other liability or obligation; or

(W) enter into any contracts or commitments to do or perform in the future any actions referred to in this Section 5.3.

Section 5.4 Further Assurances; Litigation Support.

(a) If any further action is necessary or reasonably required to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, each of the Parties will
take such further action (including the execution and delivery of such further instruments and documents) as any other Party may request;
provided, however, that Purchaser shall not be required to incur any out-of-pocket expense in connection therewith. Seller Parties and the
Companies shall cooperate with Purchaser to encourage each lessor, licensor, customer, supplier, or other business associate of Seller or the
Companies to maintain the same business relationships with Seller or the Companies after the Closing as it maintained with Seller or the
Companies prior to the Closing, at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense.

(b) Following the Closing, in the event and for so long as Purchaser actively is involved in, contesting or defending against any
Legal Proceeding in connection with any fact, situation, circumstances, status, condition, activity, practice, plan, occurrence, event,
incident, action, Tax matter, failure to act, or transaction involving Seller or any Company, each Seller Party shall cooperate reasonably
with Purchaser and Purchaser’s counsel in such involvement, contest or defense, and provide such testimony and access to their books and
records as shall be reasonably necessary in connection with such contest or defense, all at the sole reasonable cost and expense of Purchaser
(unless Purchaser is entitled to indemnification therefor hereunder).
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Section 5.5 Names and Logos. From and after the Closing, Seller Parties will not, and will cause their respective Affiliates not to, use
any names or logos incorporating or similar to “Cytochroma,” “Proventiv” or any derivatives thereof or any other trade name used in the
Business, and shall, provide Purchaser with copies of articles of amendment effective on the Closing Date evidencing the change of Seller
Parties’ names to names which do not include “Cytochroma,” “Proventiv” or any derivative thereof or any other trade name used in the
Business.

Section 5.6 Mail; Payments: Receivables. From and after the Closing, each Seller Party agrees to refer to Purchaser all customer,
supplier, employee or other inquiries or correspondence relating to any Company and the conduct of the Business after the Closing Date.
From and after the Closing, each Seller Party further agrees to remit to Purchaser all payments and invoices received by it or its Affiliates
that relate to any Company (including accounts receivable) or the conduct of the Business after the Closing Date within five (5) Business
Days after its receipt thereof.

Section 5.7 Public Announcements; Confidentiality.

(a) Unless otherwise required by applicable Law, no Seller Party shall, and each Seller Party shall cause its Affiliates, agents,
representatives and professionals not to, and, prior to the Closing, the Companies shall not, make any disclosure or public announcements in
respect of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby (including price and terms) or otherwise communicate with any news
media without the prior written consent of Purchaser.

(b) From and after the Closing, each Seller Party shall, and shall cause its respective Affiliates to, hold, and shall use its best
efforts to cause its or their respective representatives to hold, in confidence (and not disclose or provide access to any other Person) any and
all information, whether written or oral, concerning any Company or the Business, except to the extent that such Seller Party can show that
such information (i) is generally available to and known by the public through no fault of any Seller Party or any of their respective
Affiliates or representatives; or (ii) is lawfully acquired by such Seller Party or any of their respective Affiliates or representatives from and
after the Closing from sources unrelated to Purchaser, the Companies, or any Seller Party which are not prohibited from disclosing such
information by a legal, contractual or fiduciary obligation. If any Seller Party or any of its respective Affiliates or representatives are
compelled to disclose any information by judicial or administrative process or by other requirements of Law, such Seller Party shall
promptly notify Purchaser in writing and shall disclose only that portion of such information which such Seller Party is legally required to
be disclosed as advised by counsel in writing; provided, however, that each Seller Party shall use best efforts to obtain an appropriate
protective order or other reasonable assurance that confidential treatment will be afforded such information.

Section 5.8 Tax Covenants.

(a) Purchaser, on the one hand, and each Seller Party, on the other, agree, for all Tax purposes, to report the transactions effected
pursuant to the Transaction Documents in a manner consistent with the terms of this Agreement, and none of them shall take a position on

42



any Tax return, before any Tax authority or in any judicial proceeding that is, in any manner, inconsistent with such treatment without the
consent of the others or unless specifically required pursuant to a determination by an applicable Tax authority. The Parties shall promptly
advise one another of the existence of any Tax audit, controversy or litigation related to the Tax treatment of the transactions effected
pursuant to the Transaction Documents.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, any sales Tax attributable to the sale or transfer of the Shares, or
any other transaction contemplated in the Transaction Documents, shall be paid or funded by Purchaser, provided that Seller Parties shall
otherwise be responsible for any other Taxes relating to the transactions contemplated hereby or in the other Transaction Documents.

(c) For purposes of determining the Taxes of the Companies through a particular date under all provisions of this Agreement, in
the case of any Tax period that includes (but does not end on) the Closing Date (a “Straddle Period”), the amount of any Taxes based on or
measured by income or receipts for the portion of the period ending on the Closing Date shall be determined based on an interim closing of
the books as of the close of business on the Closing Date (and for such purpose, the Taxable period of any partnership or other pass-
through entity in which any Company holds a beneficial interest shall be deemed to terminate at such time) and the amount of other Taxes
for a Straddle Period which relates to the portion of the period ending on the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the amount of such Tax
for the entire Taxable period multiplied by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of days in the Taxable period ending on the
Closing Date and the denominator of which is the total number of days in such Straddle Period.

(d) The Purchaser shall cause to be prepared and filed on a timely basis all Tax Returns for each Company for the period prior to
Closing which are due after Closing provided that such Tax Returns are prepared on a consistent basis with past practices.

(e) The Parties will provide each other with such reasonable cooperation and information as any of them reasonably may
request of another in filing any Tax Return or conducting any audit, investigation or other proceeding in respect of Taxes. Each such Party
will make its employees and representatives available on a mutually convenient basis to provide explanations of any documents or
information provided hereunder. Each such Party will make available all Tax Returns, schedules and work papers and all other records or
documents relating to Tax matters of the relevant entity in their possession or control, including audit reports received from any Tax
authority relating to any Tax Return of the relevant entity, until the expiration of the statute of limitations of the respective Tax periods to
which such Tax Returns and other documents relate. Any non-public information obtained from the Parties under this Section 5.8(d) will be
kept confidential, except as otherwise required by applicable Law.

(f) The Parties intend that the acquisition by Purchaser of equity interests in Proventiv and Cayman Newco will not be treated
for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a reorganization under Code Section 368. The preceding sentence does not apply to the pre-Closing
transactions provided for in Section 5.13 hereof.

Section 5.9 Exclusive Dealing. During the period from the date hereof through the Closing Date or the earlier termination of this
Agreement, Seller Parties and the Companies shall
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not, directly or indirectly, and shall cause their respective officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants, representatives, advisors and
Affiliates to not, directly or indirectly:

(a) solicit, facilitate or encourage the initiation of any inquiry, proposal or offer from any Person (other than Purchaser or its
Affiliates) relating to a possible Acquisition Transaction;

(b) participate in any discussions or negotiations or enter into any agreement with, or provide any non-public information to, any
Person (other than Purchaser or its Affiliates) relating to or in connection with a possible Acquisition Transaction; or

(c) accept any proposal or offer from any Person (other than Purchaser or its Affiliates) relating to a possible Acquisition
Transaction.

Seller Parties and the Companies further agree that they shall, prior to the earlier of the Closing or the earlier termination of this
Agreement in accordance with its terms, promptly (and in no event later than 24 hours after receipt thereof) notify Purchaser orally and in
writing of any inquiry, proposal or offer relating to a possible Acquisition Transaction, including the identity of the Person making or
submitting such inquiry, proposal or offer, and the terms thereof (including a copy of any written inquiry, proposal or offer) that is received
by any Company or any Seller Party or any representative thereof.

Section 5.10 Resignations; Employment Arrangements.

(a) At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser written resignations, effective as of the Closing Date, of the officers,
directors and managers of the Companies requested by Purchaser, and a release of all claims against the Companies and Seller Parties by
each such director, officer and manager, at least one (1) Business Day prior to the Closing provided that the releases shall not extend to any
employment arrangements which shall remain in force after Closing as contemplated in Section 5.10(b).

(b) Purchaser and Opko Health (i) acknowledge and agree that all of the employees of the Companies shall continue to be
employed by the respective Companies as at the Closing; and (ii) shall not, or allow any of the Companies to, terminate any of such
employees or adversely amend any material employment term of any such employee (other than terms relating to equity grants or sale
bonuses) for a period of one (1) year from the Closing (provided, however, that Purchaser or the applicable Company may terminate any
such employee if it determines in its discretion that grounds for termination for cause exist).

(c) Effective immediately prior to the Closing, Proventiv shall terminate the Proventiv Therapeutics, LLC 401(k) Plan or any
successor plan, unless Purchaser provides written notice to Proventiv that such plan shall not be terminated. Proventiv shall provide
Purchaser with evidence of such termination that is satisfactory to Purchaser prior to the Closing.

Section 5.11 Tangible Property. On or prior to the Closing Date, Seller shall deliver to the Companies all tangible property belonging
to any Company that is in its possession or under its control.
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Section 5.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents. As of the Closing, the Companies shall have an aggregate of at least US$*** in unrestricted
cash.

Section 5.13 Pre-Closing Restructuring.

(a) Prior to the Closing, Seller shall (i) sell, transfer and assign all right, title and interest in and to all of its assets, liabilities and
the Business (including all Canadian federal and provincial refundable investment tax credits receivable and the Development Shares and
all of its owned and licensed Intellectual Property) to Cayman Newco in exchange for the assumption by Cayman Newco of such assigned
liabilities and issuance to Seller of additional common shares of Cayman Newco, which together with the common shares of Cayman
Newco owned by Seller as of the date hereof, shall constitute 100% of the Cayman Newco Interests, and Cayman Newco shall assume all
such liabilities and (ii) as part of such transfer of Seller’s business, Cayman Newco shall hire or otherwise engage, all employees,
consultants and independent contractors of Seller, such employees (which, for purposes hereof, shall be deemed to include ***) to be so
hired for a minimum period of one (1) year after Closing (provided, however, that Cayman Newco may terminate any such employee if it
determines in its discretion that grounds for termination for cause exist) ((i) and (ii) collectively, the “Cayman Newco Transfer”).

(b) Seller and Cayman Newco shall execute jointly an election under section 167 of the Excise Tax Act (Canada), and the
Quebec equivalent if applicable, to have the Cayman Newco Transfer take place free of goods and services tax/harmonized sales tax
(“GST/HST”) and Quebec sales tax (“QST”). Cayman Newco shall file such election(s) with the appropriate governmental authorities not
later than the day on which it is required to file its GST/HST and QST returns for the reporting period in which the Cayman Newco
Transfer takes place.

(c) At least one (1) day after the Cayman Newco Transfer, Seller shall convert into an unlimited liability company, wholly
owned by Holdings, under the laws of Alberta (the “Conversion™). Seller agrees, within 15 days after the Conversion and in all events prior
to the Closing, to file an initial entity classification election under Treasury Regulations Section 301.7701-3 to be classified as a disregarded
entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

(d) At least one (1) day after the Conversion and at least one (1) Business Day prior to the Closing, Holdings shall contribute, on
a Canadian income tax deferred basis pursuant subsection 85(1) of the ITA, all right, title and interest in and to the Proventiv Interests to
Seller (the “Proventiv Contribution,” and together with the Cayman Newco Transfer and the Conversion, the “Restructuring”).

(e) Except as otherwise provided herein, Seller Parties shall not make a “check the box” election under Treasury Regulations
Section 301.7701-3 with respect to Cayman Newco, Proventiv, Seller or Development. Furthermore, from January 1, 2013 through the
Closing, none of the Seller Parties or Companies will enter into any transaction or arrangement which would give rise to any type of
income described in Subpart F of the Internal Revenue Code.
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(f) All Canadian federal and provincial SR&ED refundable investment tax credits receivable to which Seller is entitled shall be
assigned to Cayman Newco as part of the Cayman Newco Transfer. If any such refund is paid by the relevant tax authority to Seller after
Closing, such refund amount shall be held by Seller in trust for Cayman Newco as assignee and immediately paid over by Seller to Cayman
Newco. Seller shall enter into such further documentation and arrangements as shall be requested by Purchaser to provide for such
assignments, the claiming of credits by Seller to the extent it is entitled thereto, the handling of any audits or disputes with the tax
authorities relating to the credits, and the handling of cash refunds, all with the intent of ensuring that Cayman Newco obtains the benefit of
the credits.

(g) If there are any accounts receivable included in the assets transferred pursuant to the Cayman Newco Transfer, Cayman
Newco and Seller shall elect jointly in the prescribed form under section 22 of the ITA, section 184 of the Taxation Act (Québec), if
applicable, and the corresponding provisions of any other applicable Tax statute, provided such election is properly applicable, as to the
sale of such receivables and designate in such election an amount equal to the portion of the purchase price allocated to the receivables as
part of the Cayman Newco Transfer. This election, or these elections, shall be made within the time prescribed for such elections.

(h) Cayman Newco and Seller shall, if applicable, jointly execute and file an election under subsection 20(24) of the ITA in the
manner required by subsection 20(25) of the ITA and under the equivalent or corresponding provisions of any other applicable provincial
or territorial statute, in the prescribed forms and within the time period permitted under the ITA and under any other applicable provincial
or territorial statute, as to such amount paid by the Seller to Cayman Newco for assuming future obligations. In this regard, Cayman Newco
and Seller acknowledge that a portion of the assets to be transferred by Seller as part of the Cayman Newco Transfer and having a value
equal to the amount elected under subsection 20(24) of the ITA and the equivalent provisions of any applicable provincial or territorial
statute, will be transferred by Seller as a payment for the assumption of such future obligations by Cayman Newco.

(1) Cayman Newco and Seller agree not to make an election pursuant to subsection 85(1) of the ITA or under the equivalent or
corresponding provisions of any other applicable provincial or territorial statute in connection with the Cayman Newco Transfer.

(j) The Seller Parties understand and agree that the completion of the Restructuring is a substantial inducement to Purchaser and
Opko Health to enter into this Agreement and that full, strict and timely compliance with each step of the Restructuring as set forth in this
Section is a condition precedent to Purchaser’s and Opko Health’s obligations to close the transactions contemplated hereby. All
agreements and other documents relating to the Restructuring or any portion thereof shall be presented to Purchaser and Opko Health for
approval at least five (5) Business Days prior to the effectiveness of each such document or agreement, such approval not to be
unreasonably withheld. The Seller Parties (i) shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all consents and approvals of, and give all
notices to, any third party or Governmental Body (“Restructuring Consents”) that may be required in order to effectuate the Restructuring
or any portion thereof, including consents required to transfer or assign any contracts or other assets, and (ii) in connection therewith, shall
use commercially reasonable efforts to procure any related consents from such third parties as may be requested by Purchaser in connection
with any planned post-Closing restructuring of the Companies.
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Section 5.14 Discharge of Indebtedness and Release of Liens. Prior to the Closing, the Seller shall cause all Indebtedness, notes or
other obligations of any Company (other than trade or other accounts payables incurred in the ordinary course of business, consistent with
past practices, which are not overdue and which do not relate to any breach of any obligation, each of which is listed (or of the same type
listed) on Schedule 5.14 of the Disclosure Schedule (the “Payables”), which Purchaser acknowledges shall remain obligations of the
Companies after Closing) to be satisfied or cancelled, and shall cause all Liens on any assets or equity interests of any Company to be
released.

Section 5.15 Opko Health Reporting Obligations. At any and all times until the earlier of the date that all of the Milestones have been
achieved and the Final Milestone Date, Opko Health shall make and keep adequate current public information with respect to it in
accordance with Rule 144 under the Securities Act, at all times and to use commercially reasonable efforts to file with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission in a timely manner all reports and other documents required of Opko Health under the Securities Act and the
Exchange Act at any time and from time to time.

Section 5.16 Continued Listing. At any and all times until the earlier of the date that all of the Milestones have been achieved and the
Final Milestone Date, Opko Health shall use commercially reasonable efforts to make any other filings necessary to meet the quantitative
listing and maintenance standards for continued listing on the New York Stock Exchange (or equivalent filings and standards of any other
U.S. national exchange system (excluding the OTCBB) or market quotation system (including NASDAQ) upon which Opko Health is then
listed), including timely filing of an additional listing application for the Opko Shares.

Section 5.17 Opko Health Guarantee.

(a) In consideration for the Seller Parties entering into this Agreement, Opko Health (as principal obligor and not merely as
surety) unconditionally and irrevocable, as a continuing obligation, guarantees to Seller Parties the proper and punctual performance by
Purchaser of all its obligations, commitments and undertakings under or pursuant to this Agreement and agrees to indemnify the Seller
Parties against all Losses which the Seller Parties may suffer through or arising from any failure by Purchaser so to perform or observe any
of its obligations, commitments and undertakings under or pursuant to this Agreement, subject to the limitations set forth herein.

(b) If and each time that Purchaser fails for any reason whatsoever to perform or observe any of its obligations, commitments or
undertakings under or pursuant to this Agreement, Opko Health shall forthwith unconditionally perform (or procure the performance or
observance of the obligation, commitment or undertaking in relation to which such failure has occurred in the manner prescribed in this
Agreement) so that the same benefits shall be received by, or conferred on, the Seller Parties as would have been so received or conferred
if such obligation, commitment or undertaking had been duly performed and/or observed by Purchaser.
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Section 5.18 Parent Shareholder Approval. Seller Parties shall use all commercially reasonable efforts in accordance with and subject
to applicable Law and the Governing Documents of Parent in effect to cause a meeting of Parent’s shareholders (the “Shareholder
Meeting”) to be duly called and held as soon as reasonably practicable (but no later than January 31, 2013) for the purpose of securing the
approval of the shareholders or other equity interest holders of Parent required to approve and adopt this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby (the “Parent Shareholder Approval”), including the mailing of any required notices and other required information. In
connection with the Shareholder Meeting, Parent will use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the Parent Shareholder Approval and
will otherwise comply with all Laws applicable to the Shareholder Meeting. In the event the Parent Shareholder Approval is not obtained at
the Shareholder Meeting, Parent shall adjourn such meeting and use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the Parent Shareholder
Approval as promptly as practicable thereafter.

ARTICLE VI
CLOSING CONDITIONS

Section 6.1 Conditions to Obligation of Purchaser and Opko Health. The obligation of each of Purchaser and Opko Health to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment on or prior to the Closing Date of each of the
following conditions, any one or more of which (to the extent permitted by applicable Law) may be waived by Purchaser (provided that no
such waiver shall be deemed to have cured any breach of any representation, warranty or covenant made in this Agreement):

(a) The representations and warranties of the Seller Parties contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct in all material
respects (other than those representations and warranties that are qualified by materiality or Material Adverse Effect or similar
qualification, which shall be true and correct in all respects) both as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing, other than such
representations and warranties that are made as of a specified date, which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in such
respects as of such date. The covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement to be complied with by the Companies and Seller
Parties at or before the Closing shall have been complied with in all material respects, except for the covenants set forth in Section 5.13
relating to the Restructuring, which shall have been complied with in all respects.

(b) There shall not have occurred a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(c) No temporary restraining order, preliminary or permanent injunction, cease and desist Order or other Order of a similar
nature issued by any Governmental Body, shall be in effect or pending prohibiting or preventing the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

(d) Any approval of the shareholders or other equity interest holders of any Seller Party required pursuant to the Governing
Documents of such entity or pursuant to applicable Law (including the Parent Shareholder Approval) to approve and adopt this Agreement
and the transactions contemplated hereby (the “Shareholder Approval”) shall have been obtained.
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(e) All Indebtedness of the Companies (including prepayment penalties, fees and similar amounts payable in connection with the
repayment thereof but excluding Payables which Purchaser acknowledges shall remain obligations of the Companies after Closing) shall
have been repaid and Seller shall have delivered evidence satisfactory to Purchaser and Opko Health of such repayment and the release or
discharge of any and all Liens on any assets or equity interests of any Company.

(f) The Seller Parties shall have delivered the following to Purchaser:

(i) a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, executed by a duly authorized officer of each of the Seller Parties to the effect
that the conditions set forth in Section 6.1(a) and Section 6.1(b) have been satisfied;

(ii) stock certificates representing the Shares, free and clear of all Liens (other than any restrictions under Applicable
Securities Laws), each duly endorsed in blank or with duly executed stock powers attached, with all required stock transfer tax stamps
affixed thereto;

(iii) a certificate of the secretary of each Company and each Seller Party certifying to (A) the certificate of incorporation, as
amended (or similar incorporation or formation documents), of such entity, certified by the Secretary of State (or equivalent officer) of
the jurisdiction in which each such entity is incorporated or organized, as of a recent date, and stating that no amendments have been
made to such certificate of incorporation (or similar incorporation or formation documents) since such date, (B) all other Governing
Documents of such entity, (C) the adoption of resolutions by the board of directors or other governing body of such entity approving
the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents, (D) the Shareholder Approval and (E) the incumbency of the officers
signing the Transaction Documents on behalf of such entity (together with their specimen signatures);

(iv) a statement issued by Proventiv to Purchaser that Proventiv is not a U.S. real property holding corporation, which
satisfies the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2(c)(3), and a notice thereof shall be sent to the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service as provided for in Treasury Regulations Section 1.897-2(h); said statement shall be in form reasonably satisfactory to
the Purchaser;

(v) a good standing certificate (or its equivalent), as of a recent date, for each Company and Seller Party certified by the
Secretary of State (or equivalent officer) of (A) the jurisdiction of organization of such entity, and (B) each other jurisdiction in which
such entity is qualified to do business as a foreign entity;

(vi) all Consents set forth (or required to be set forth) in Sections 2.4 and 3.4 of the Disclosure Schedule in form and
substance satisfactory to Purchaser and the Restructuring Consents;

(vii) evidence reasonably satisfactory to Purchaser of the completion of the Restructuring in accordance with Section 5.13;
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(viii) the Non-Competition Agreements, duly executed and delivered by ***, *** *** apd ***;

(ix) the General Release, duly executed and delivered by each Seller Party;

(x) resignations of the directors, officers and managers of the Companies pursuant to Section 5.10;
(xi) evidence that the Companies have an aggregate of at least US$*** in unrestricted cash at Closing;

(xii) evidence of termination of any obligations, Liabilities and agreements between Seller or a Company on the one hand
and any Affiliate of any Seller Party or the Company on the other hand; and

(xiii) such other documents, instruments or certificates as shall be reasonably requested by Purchaser or its counsel.

Section 6.2 Conditions to Obligation of Seller. The obligation of Seller to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement is subject to the fulfillment on or prior to the Closing Date of each of the following conditions, any one or more of which (to the
extent permitted by applicable Law) may be waived by the Seller (provided that no such waiver shall be deemed to have cured any breach
of any representation, warranty or covenant made in this Agreement):

(a) The representations and warranties of Purchaser and Opko Health contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct in all
material respects (other than those representations and warranties that are qualified by materiality or Material Adverse Effect or similar
qualification, which shall be true and correct in all respects) both as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing, other than such
representations and warranties that are made as of a specified date, which representations and warranties shall be true and correct in such
respects as of such date. The covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement to be complied with by Purchaser or Opko Health at or
before the Closing shall have been complied with in all material respects.

(b) There shall not have occurred a Material Adverse Effect with respect to Opko Health or Purchaser.

(c) No temporary restraining order, preliminary or permanent injunction, cease and desist Order or other order issued by any
Governmental Body shall be in effect prohibiting or preventing the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(d) The Parent Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained.
(e) Purchaser and/or Opko Health shall have delivered the following to the Seller:
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(i) certificates representing the Closing Shares;

(ii) a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, executed by a duly authorized officer of Purchaser and Opko Health to the effect
that the conditions set forth in Section 6.2(a) and Section 6.2(b) have been satisfied;

(ii1) a certificate of the secretary of Purchaser and Opko Health certifying to (A) Purchaser’s and Opko Health’s Governing
Documents, respectively, (B) the adoption of resolutions of the board of directors of each of Purchaser and Opko Health approving the
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents, and (C) the incumbency of the officers signing the Transaction Documents
on behalf of Purchaser and Opko Health (together with their specimen signatures);

(iv) a good standing certificate, as of a recent date, of each of Purchaser and Opko Health certified by the Secretary of State of the
state of its organization; and

(v) such other documents, instruments or certificates as shall be reasonably requested by Seller or its counsel.

ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 7.1 Indemnity Obligations of Seller Parties. Subject to the limitations set forth herein, each Seller Party, jointly and severally,
covenants and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser, Opko Health and their Affiliates (including, after the Closing, the
Companies) and the respective officers, directors, employees, agents, advisers and representatives of the foregoing (collectively, and for the
avoidance of doubt excluding any Seller Party or Affiliate thereof, the “Purchaser Indemnitees”), from and against, and to pay or reimburse
Purchaser Indemnitees for, any and all claims, Liabilities, obligations, losses, fines, costs, diminution in value, proceedings or damages,
including all reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel incurred in the investigation or defense of any of the same or in asserting any of
their respective rights hereunder (collectively, “Losses”), based on, resulting from, arising out of or relating to:

(a) any misrepresentation or breach of any warranty of any Seller Party contained in this Agreement, any Transaction Document
or in any certificate or agreement delivered in connection herewith, it being understood that, in determining the existence of, and amount of
any Losses in connection with a claim under this Section 7.1(a), all representations and warranties shall be read without regard and without
giving effect to any materiality or Material Adverse Effect or similar qualification contained therein (as if such qualification were deleted
from such representation or warranty);

(b) any failure of any Seller Party or any Company to perform any covenant or agreement made or contained in this Agreement,
or fulfill any obligation in respect thereof;

(c) any Taxes of any Company with respect to any tax year or period or portion thereof ending on or before the Closing Date (or
for any tax year or period beginning before and ending after the Closing Date to the extent allocable to the portion of the period beginning
before and ending on the Closing Date);
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(d) any Legal Proceeding brought by a third party based upon, arising out of or relating to the operations, properties, assets or
obligations of any Seller Party or any Company or any of their respective Affiliates conducted, existing or arising on or prior to the Closing
Date;

(e) any Indebtedness (other than Payables which Purchaser acknowledges shall remain obligations of the Companies after
Closing) of, applicable to or binding upon any Company or any of its assets;

(f) Seller Transaction Expenses or Change of Control Payments;

(g) any claim by any shareholder or other equity interest holder of any Seller Party or any creditor of any Seller Party relating to
this Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby, the Restructuring or any distribution of any Transaction Consideration by the Seller
Parties; and

(h) any other claim, matter or Liability arising in connection with the Restructuring.

Section 7.2 Indemnity Obligations of Purchaser. Subject to the limitations set forth herein, Purchaser covenants and agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Seller Parties from and against any and all Losses based on, resulting from, arising out of or relating to:

(a) any misrepresentation or breach of any warranty of Purchaser and Opko Health contained in this Agreement or in any
certificate or agreement delivered in connection herewith, it being understood that, in determining the existence of, and amount of any
Losses in connection with a claim under this Section 7.2(a), all representations and warranties shall be read without regard and without
giving effect to any materiality or Material Adverse Effect or similar qualification contained therein (as if such qualification were deleted
from such representation or warranty); and/or

(b) any failure of Purchaser or Opko Health to perform any covenant or agreement made or contained in this Agreement, or
fulfill any other obligation in respect thereof.

Section 7.3 Indemnification Procedures.

(a) Third Party Claims. In the case of any claim asserted by a third party (a “Third Party Claim”) against a party entitled to
indemnification under this Agreement (the “Indemnified Party”), notice shall be given by the Indemnified Party to the party(ies) required to
provide indemnification (the “Indemnifying Party”) promptly after such Indemnified Party has actual knowledge of any claim as to which
indemnity may be sought. If the Indemnifying Party provides a written notice to the Indemnified Party within fifteen (15) days after its
receipt of notice of such claim that it will indemnify and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless from all Losses related to such Third Party
Claim, the Indemnified Party shall permit the Indemnifying Party (at the expense of such Indemnifying Party) to assume the defense of
such Third Party Claim or any litigation with a third party resulting therefrom; provided, however, that (i) the
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counsel for the Indemnifying Party who shall conduct the defense of such claim or litigation shall be subject to the approval of the
Indemnified Party, (ii) the Indemnified Party may participate in such defense at such Indemnified Party’s expense, (iii) the failure by any
Indemnified Party to give notice of a Third Party Claim to the Indemnifying Party as provided herein shall not relieve the Indemnifying
Party of its indemnification obligation under this Agreement except and only to the extent that, as a result of such failure to give notice, the
defense against such claim is materially impaired, and (iv) the fees and expenses incurred by the Indemnified Party prior to the assumption
of a Third Party Claim hereunder by the Indemnifying Party shall be borne by the Indemnifying Party. Except with the prior written consent
of the Indemnified Party, no Indemnifying Party, in the defense of any Third Party Claim, shall consent to entry of any judgment or enter
into any settlement that provides for injunctive or other nonmonetary relief affecting the Indemnified Party or that does not include as an
unconditional term thereof the giving by each claimant or plaintiff to such Indemnified Party of a general release from any and all liability
with respect to such Third Party Claim. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Indemnifying Party shall not be entitled to
assume control of the defense against a Third Party Claim if (1) the claim for indemnification relates to or arises in connection with any
criminal or quasi criminal proceeding, action, indictment, allegation or investigation; (2) the claim seeks an injunction, specific
performance or any other equitable or non-monetary relief against the Indemnified Party; (3) the Indemnified Party reasonably believes an
adverse determination with respect to the Third Party Claim would be materially detrimental to or materially injure the Indemnified Party’s
reputation or future business prospects; (4) the Indemnified Party has been advised by counsel that a reasonable likelihood exists of a
conflict of interest between the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party; or (5) the Indemnifying Party fails to vigorously prosecute
or defend such claim. If the Indemnifying Party does not accept the defense of a Third Party Claim within thirty (30) days after receipt of
the written notice thereof from the Indemnified Party described above, the Indemnified Party shall have the full right to defend against any
such claim or demand at the expense of the Indemnifying Party. In any event, the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall
reasonably cooperate in the defense of any Third Party Claim and the records of each shall be reasonably available to the other with respect
to such defense.

(b) Non-Third Party Claims. With respect to any claim for indemnification hereunder which does not involve a Third Party
Claim, the Indemnified Party will give the Indemnifying Party written notice of such claim. The Indemnifying Party may acknowledge and
agree by notice to the Indemnified Party in writing to satisfy such claim within fifteen (15) days of receipt of notice of such claim from the
Indemnified Party. If the Indemnifying Party intends to dispute such claim, the Indemnifying Party shall provide written notice of such
dispute to the Indemnified Party within such fifteen (15) day period. If the Indemnifying Party shall fail to provide written notice to the
Indemnified Party within fifteen (15) days of receipt of notice from the Indemnified Party that the Indemnifying Party either acknowledges
and agrees to pay such claim or disputes such claim, the Indemnifying Party shall be deemed to have acknowledged and agreed to pay such
claim in full and to have waived any right to dispute such claim.

Section 7.4 Expiration of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall
survive the Closing until the date which is *** months after the Closing Date; provided, however, that (a) the representations and
warranties stated in Section 3.8, Section 3.13 and Section 3.17 shall survive the Closing for the period ending on
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the date that is sixty (60) days after the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations period and (b) the representations and warranties
stated in Section 2.1, Section 2.2, Section 2.4, Section 2.5, Section 3.1, Section 3.3, Section 3.10(c), Section 3.23, Section 4.1, Section 4.2
and Section 4.4 shall survive indefinitely (each of the sections referred to in (a) and (b), a “Transactional Representation”). All
indemnification obligations under Section 7.1 and Section 7.2 (other than Section 7.1(a) and Section 7.2(a) which shall survive as set forth
in the previous sentence) shall survive the Closing indefinitely. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all claims (and matters relating thereto)
made in writing prior to the expiration of the applicable survival period shall not thereafter be barred by the expiration of such survival
period and shall survive until finally resolved.

Section 7.5 Certain Limitations. The indemnification provided for in Section 7.1 and Section 7.2 shall be subject to the following
limitations:

(a) Seller Parties shall not be liable to Purchaser Indemnitees for indemnification under Section 7.1(a) until the aggregate
amount of all Losses in respect of indemnification under Section 7.1(a) exceeds US$*** (the “Basket”), in which event Seller Parties shall

be required to pay or be liable for all such Losses (as opposed to Losses solely in excess of the amount of the Basket), subject to the other
limitations set forth herein.

(b) Purchaser shall not be liable to Seller Parties for indemnification under Section 7.2(a) until the aggregate amount of all
Losses in respect of indemnification under Section 7.2(a) exceeds the Basket, in which event Purchaser shall be required to pay or be liable
for all such Losses (as opposed to Losses solely in excess of the amount of the Basket), subject to the other limitations set forth herein.
Seller Parties shall not be indemnified pursuant to Section 7.2(a) with respect to any Loss if the aggregate amount of all Losses for which
Seller Parties have already received indemnification pursuant to Section 7.2(a) has exceeded US$***; provided however that such
limitation shall not apply for indemnification for a breach of the representations and warranties set forth in Section 4.8(a) and (c).

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, the limitations set forth in Section 7.5(a) and Section 7.5(b) shall
not limit Liability of any Indemnifying Party for breaches of Transactional Representations, intentional breach or intentional
misrepresentation or fraud.

Section 7.6 Indemnification Payments to Purchaser Indemnitees: Right of Set-Off. Except in the case of fraud, any indemnification to
which Purchaser Indemnitees are entitled under this ARTICLE VII as a consequence of any Losses they may suffer shall be made
exclusively by set-off or cancellation against any Earn-Out Payment due hereunder by deducting such Losses from the Earn-Out Value
applicable to such Earn-Out Payment; provided that Seller Parties may elect to pay such indemnification payments in cash in lieu of such
set-off by written notice to Purchaser and Opko Health. To the extent that a claim for indemnification hereunder is made by a Purchaser
Indemnitee prior to the delivery of any Earn-Out Payment, such payment shall not be made in an amount up to the claimed amount until
final resolution of any such indemnification claim and any applicable set-off is made against such payment.
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Section 7.7 Treatment of Indemnification Payments. All indemnification payments made under this Agreement shall be treated
by the Parties as an adjustment to the Transaction Consideration to the extent permitted by applicable Law.

Section 7.8 Mitigation. In the event of any breach of representation or warranty of a Party that may result in indemnification
pursuant to this Article VII, the Indemnified Party shall take all commercially reasonable steps to mitigate the Losses that may result from
such breach.

Section 7.9 Right to Indemnification Not Affected by Knowledge or Waiver. The right to indemnification, payment of Losses or
other remedy based upon breach of representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or obligations will not be affected by any
investigation conducted with respect to, or knowledge acquired (or capable of being acquired) at any time, whether before or after the
Closing Date, with respect to the accuracy or inaccuracy of or compliance with any such representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or
obligation. The waiver of any condition based on the accuracy of any representation or warranty, or on the performance of or compliance
with any covenant, agreement or obligation, will not affect the right to indemnification, payment of Losses or other remedy based on such
representations, warranties, covenants, agreements and obligations

Section 7.10 No Claims Against the Companies. No Seller Party shall, after the Closing, be entitled to seek or recover by
contribution or otherwise any amounts from the Companies on account of any breach of any representation or warranty or covenant or
other agreement contained in this Agreement prior to the Closing or otherwise.

ARTICLE VIII
TERMINATION

Section 8.1 Termination of Agreement. Certain of the Parties may terminate this Agreement as provided below:

(a) Purchaser, Opko Health and the Seller Parties may terminate this Agreement by mutual written consent at any time prior to
the Closing;

(b) Purchaser and Opko Health may terminate this Agreement (so long as neither Purchaser nor Opko Health is in material
breach of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement) by giving written notice to the Seller
Parties at any time prior to the Closing (i) in the event that any Seller Party or any Company has breached any representation, warranty,
covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement, which breach would cause the failure of any condition set forth in Section 6.1 not
otherwise waived in writing, and Purchaser has notified in writing the Seller Parties and the Companies of the breach, and such breach has
continued without cure for a period of ten (10) Business Days after the notice of breach, (ii) in the event that any Seller Party or any
Company has materially breached any covenant contained in this Agreement and Purchaser has notified in writing the Seller Parties and the
Companies of the breach, and such breach has continued without cure for a period of ten (10) Business Days after the notice of breach, or
(iii) if the Closing shall not have occurred on or before the Termination Date; and
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(c) the Seller Parties may terminate this Agreement (so long as none of the Companies or any Seller Party is in material breach
of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement) by giving written notice to Purchaser and
Opko Health at any time prior to the Closing (i) in the event Purchaser or Opko Health has breached any representation, warranty, covenant
or agreement contained in this Agreement, which breach would cause the failure of any condition set forth in Section 6.2 not otherwise
waived in writing, and the Seller Parties have notified Purchaser and Opko Health in writing of the breach, and such breach has continued
without cure for a period of ten (10) Business Days after the notice of breach; (ii) in the event that Purchaser or Opko Health has materially
breached any covenant contained in this Agreement and Seller Parties have notified in writing Purchaser and Opko Health of the breach,
and such breach has continued without cure for a period of ten (10) Business Days after the notice of breach, or (iii) if the Closing shall not
have occurred on or before the Termination Date.

Section 8.2 Effect of Termination. If any Party terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1, all rights and obligations of the
Parties hereunder shall terminate without any liability of any Party to any other Party except for (a) the liabilities of any Party then in breach
and (b) as otherwise provided in Section 9.15. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 8.2 and Section 5.7(a), and ARTICLE IX shall
survive any termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.1 Certain Definitions.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, and in addition to certain other terms defined in this Agreement, the following terms shall
have the meanings specified in this Section 9.1(a):

“Acquisition Transaction” means any transaction involving: (i) the sale, license, disposition or acquisition of all or a substantial
portion of the assets of any Company or any Seller Party or any Intellectual Property of any Company or any Seller Party; (ii) the issuance,
disposition or acquisition of (A) any shares or other equity security of any Company or any Seller Party, (B) any option, call, warrant, right,
subscriptions, conversion rights, commitments or plans or agreements of any kind (whether or not immediately exercisable) which would
enable any Person to purchase or otherwise acquire any shares or other equity security of any Company or any Seller Party, or (C) any
security, instrument or obligation that is or may become convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any shares or other equity
security of any Company or any Seller Party; or (iii) any merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, reorganization,
recapitalization or similar transaction involving any Company or any Seller Party.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common
control with such Person, and in the case of any natural Person shall include all relatives and family members of such Person. For purposes
of this definition, “control” (including the correlative terms “controlled by” and “under common control with”), as used with respect to any
Person, means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such
Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by Contract or otherwise.
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“Applicable Securities Laws” means, as applicable, the Securities Act, Securities Exchange Act, Blue Sky Laws and Canadian
Securities Laws.

“Books and Records” means all books and records of the Companies and Seller Parties, including files, manuals, price lists, mailing
lists, distributor lists, customer lists, sales and promotional materials, sales and purchase correspondence, purchasing materials, trade
association files, research and development records, documents evidencing intangible rights or obligations, personnel records, accounting
records and litigation files (regardless of the media in which stored).

“Business” means the research, development and commercialization of products, technologies and therapies to treat (i) vitamin D
insufficiency, secondary hyperparathyroidism, and hyperphosphatemia associated with chronic kidney disease and (ii) metabolic bone
diseases, such as renal osteodystrophy and osteoporosis, including, without limitation, the Company Products.

“Business Day” means any day of the year on which national banking institutions in the City of New York are open to the public for
conducting business and are not required or authorized to close.

“Canadian Securities Laws” means, collectively, the applicable securities Laws of each of the provinces and territories of Canada and
the respective regulations and rules made under those securities Laws, together with all published policy statements, instruments, blanket
Orders and rulings of Canadian securities commissions and all discretionary Orders or rulings, if any, of Canadian securities commissions.

“Change of Control Payments” means any and all (i) bonuses or similar payments payable as a result of the transactions contemplated
hereby (including the Restructuring), (ii) investment banking, agent, brokers’ and finders’ and other similar fees payable as a result of the
transactions contemplated hereby and (iii) amounts payable to obtain any Consents required to be listed in Section 3.4 of the Disclosure
Schedule.

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Company Material Adverse Change” or “Company Material Adverse Effect” means a Material Adverse Change or a Material
Adverse Effect with respect to any Company or Seller.

“Company Products” means all marketed products, and all compounds and Product Candidates that are being evaluated by any
Company or any Seller Party, whether in clinical trials as to which any Company or any Seller Party holds the applicable Health Regulatory
Authorizations or applications or in earlier stages of development.

“Consent” means any consent, approval, authorization, acknowledgment, waiver, permit, grant, franchise, concession, agreement,
license, exemption or order of, registration, certificate, declaration or filing with, or report or notice to, any Person, including any
Governmental Body.
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“Contract” means any contract, agreement, indenture, note, bond, loan, mortgage, license, instrument, lease, understanding,
commitment or other arrangement or agreement, whether written or oral.

“CTAP101 Capsules” means the oral formulation of 25-Hydroxyvitamin D3 or 25-Hydroxyvitamin D; monohydrate commonly
referred to as CTAP101 capsules and any improvement, modification or derivation thereof.

“DOL” means the United States Department of Labor.

“Environmental Law(s)” means any foreign, federal, state or local statute, regulation, ordinance, by-law or rule of common law as
now or hereafter in effect in any way or any other legally binding requirement relating to the environment, natural resources or protection
of human health and safety including without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42
U.S.C. § 9601 et seq.), the Emergency Planning and Right-To-Know Act (42 U.S.C. § 11101 et seq.), the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. App. § 1801 et seq.), the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.) (including the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act), the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.), the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.), the Toxic
Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq.), the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (7 U.S.C. § 136 et seq.), the
Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. § 300(f) et seq.), the Lead-Based Paint Exposure Reduction Act (42 U.S.C. § 2681 et seq.), and the
Occupational Safety and Health Act (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.), the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999, S.C. 1999 ¢.33, the
Transportation of Dangerous Goods Act, S.C. 1992 ¢.34, the Hazardous Products Act, R.S.C. 1985 c¢.H-3 and the Environmental
Protection Act (Ontario), R.S.0. 1990 c.E-19, and all Laws of a similar nature, and the rules and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto,
each as amended.

“FDA” means the United States Food and Drug Administration.
“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time.
“General Release” means a General Release in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto.

“Governing Documents” means, with respect to any particular entity: (i) if a corporation, the articles or certificate of incorporation
and the bylaws (or equivalent charter document); (ii) if a general partnership, the partnership agreement and any statement of partnership;
(iii) if a limited partnership, the limited partnership agreement and the certificate of limited partnership; (iv) if a limited liability company,
the articles of organization and operating agreement (or equivalent organizational document); (v) if another type of Person, any other
charter or similar document adopted or filed in connection with the creation, formation or organization of the Person; (vi) all equityholders’
agreements, voting agreements, voting trust agreements, joint venture agreements, registration rights agreements or other agreements or
documents relating to the organization, management or operation of any Person or relating to the rights, duties and obligations of the
equityholders of any Person; and (vii) any amendment or supplement to any of the foregoing.
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“Governmental Body” means any government or governmental or regulatory authority or body thereof, or political subdivision
thereof, whether federal, state, provincial, territorial, local or foreign (whether administrative, legislative, executive or otherwise) or any
agency, ministry, department, regulatory body, bureau, instrumentality or authority thereof, or any court or arbitrator (public or private) or
tribunal, commission or other body of competent jurisdiction having adjudicative, regulatory, judicial, quasi-judicial, administrative or
similar functions, and includes, for greater certainty, any other body or entity created under the authority of or otherwise subject to the
jurisdiction of any of the foregoing, including any stock or other securities exchange or professional association.

“Hazardous Material(s)” means any substance, material or waste which is regulated by the United States, Canada, and other the
foreign jurisdictions in which any Company conducts business, or any state, provincial, local or foreign Governmental Body, including
petroleum and its by-products, asbestos or asbestos-containing material, polychlorinated biphenyls, lead-based paint, and any material or
substance which is defined as a “hazardous waste,” “hazardous substance,” “hazardous material,” “restricted hazardous waste,” “industrial
waste,” “solid waste,” “contaminant,” “pollutant,” “special waste,” “toxic material,” “toxic waste” or “toxic substance”, or any substance

the presence, use, handling, storage or disposal is regulated or prohibited under any provision of Environmental Law.

EER13 99 ¢ 99 ¢, 99 ¢c

“Healthcare Regulatory Authority” means any federal, state, provincial, local or foreign Governmental Body, including such entities
that are concerned with or regulate the import, export, marketing, advertising, sale, use, handling and control, safety, efficacy, reliability or
manufacturing of drug or biological products or medical devices or is concerned with or regulates public health care programs.

“Healthcare Regulatory Authorizations” means all approvals, clearances, authorizations, registrations, certifications, licenses and
permits granted by any Healthcare Regulatory Authority, including all investigational new drug applications, clinical trial applications and
new drug applications (and including where such approvals, clearances, authorizations, registrations, certifications, licenses, applications or
permits are received as a result of an absence of notice from a Healthcare Regulatory Authority after a specified amount of time).

“Indebtedness” means, with respect to the Companies or Seller at any applicable time of determination, without duplication: (i) all
obligations for borrowed money; (ii) all obligations evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments or debt securities;
(iii) all obligations under swaps, hedges or similar instruments; (iv) all obligations in respect of letters of credit or bankers’ acceptances;
(v) all obligations, contingent or otherwise, arising from deferred compensation arrangements, severance or bonus plans or arrangements,
Employee Benefit Plans, employment agreements or similar arrangements payable as a result of the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby (regardless of whether any additional event, in addition to the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby,
is required to give rise to such obligations); (vi) all obligations secured by a Lien; (vii) all guaranties in connection with any of the
foregoing; (viii) all obligations recorded or required to be recorded as capital leases in accordance with GAAP as of the date of
determination of such Indebtedness; (ix) all obligations for the deferred purchase price of property or services or the acquisition of a
business or portion thereof, whether contingent or otherwise, as obligor or otherwise, at the maximum amount
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payable in respect thereof, regardless of whether such amount is contingent on future performance; (x) all obligations created or arising
under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement with respect to acquired property; (xi) all deferred rent obligations; (xii) all
obligations arising from cash or book overdrafts; (xiii) all liabilities classified as non-current liabilities in accordance with GAAP as of the
date of determination of such Indebtedness (other than any “deferred revenue” incurred in the ordinary course of business); (xiv) all checks
in transit; and (xv) all accrued interest, prepayment premiums, fees, penalties, expenses or other amounts payable in respect of any of the
foregoing.

“Intellectual Property” means: (i) all inventions (whether patentable or unpatentable and whether or not reduced to practice), all
improvements thereto, and all patents, patent applications, and patent disclosures, together with all reissuances, continuations,
continuations-in-part, revisions, extensions, and reexaminations thereof; (ii) all trademarks, service marks, trade dress, logos, trade names,
and corporate names, together with all translations, adaptations, derivations, and combinations thereof and including all goodwill associated
therewith, and all applications, registrations and renewals in connection therewith; (iii) all copyrightable works, all copyrights, and all
applications, registrations and renewals in connection therewith; (iv) all trade secrets and confidential information (including ideas,
research and development, know-how, formulas, compositions, manufacturing and production processes and techniques, technical data,
designs, drawings, specifications, customer and supplier lists, pricing and cost information, and business and marketing plans and
proposals); (v) all computer software (including data and related documentation); (vi) all other proprietary rights; and (vii) all copies and
tangible embodiments thereof (in whatever form or medium).

“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service.
“ITA” means the Income Tax Act, R.S.C. 1985, c.1 (5t Supplement).

“Knowledge” or words of similar effect, regardless of case, means, (a) with respect to any Seller Party, the actual knowledge,
information or belief, following reasonable inquiry, of (i) each officer, director, member and manager of each Seller Party, (ii) each officer,
director or manager of any Company (whether such person serves in such capacity as an employee or independent contractor) and (b) with
respect to Purchaser, the actual knowledge, information or belief, following reasonable inquiry, of Dr. Phillip Frost, Jane Hsiao, Steve
Rubin, Adam Logal and Juan Rodriguez.

“Law” means any federal, state, provincial, territorial, municipal, local or foreign law (including common law or equity), statute, code,
ordinance, rule, regulation, municipal by-law, Order or other requirement or rule of law of any Governmental Body.

“Lease” means a lease, an agreement to lease, a sublease, a license agreement and an occupancy or other similar agreement, whether
written or oral.

“Legal Proceeding” means any judicial, administrative or arbitral actions, suits, proceedings (public or private), claims, hearings,
investigations, charges, complaints, demands or governmental proceedings, and includes any litigation, application, investigation, deemed
complaint, grievance, civil, administrative, regulatory or criminal, arbitration proceeding or other similar proceeding, before or by any
court, tribunal or Governmental Body, and includes any appeal or review thereof and any application for leave for appeal or review.
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Liability” means any liability, cost, obligation or commitment of any nature whatsoever (whether known or unknown, asserted or
unasserted, absolute or contingent, accrued or unaccrued, disputed or undisputed, secured or unsecured, joint or several, vested or
unvested, executor, liquidated or unliquidated, matured or unmatured, or due or to become due, or otherwise), including any liability for
Taxes.

“Lien” means any lien (including any Tax lien), pledge, mortgage, hypothec, deed of trust, security interest, prior assignment, claim,
demand, lease, sublease, right to possession, charge, option, warrant, call, right of first refusal, easement, servitude, transfer restriction or
any other encumbrance, restriction or limitation whatsoever.

“Material Adverse Effect” or “Material Adverse Change” with respect to a Person means any state of facts, event, occurrence, fact,
condition, change, development or effect that is, or could reasonably be expected to become, individually or in the aggregate, materially
adverse to the business, properties, results of operations, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of such Person or to the ability of
such Person to consummate timely the transactions contemplated hereby other than changes in the following: (i) general market, economic
or political conditions; (ii)) GAAP or statutory accounting principles; (iii) acts of terrorism or war (whether or not declared); or (iv) as a
result of any action taken as a result of or with such Person’s written consent, except, in each case, to the extent such changes cause a
disproportionate and negative effect on or change to such Person as compared to the industry in which such Person operates as a whole.

“Milestones” means each of the milestones set forth in Subsections 1.3(a) through (d) triggering the right of Seller to receive the
applicable Earn-Out Consideration as set forth in such subsections.

“Net Sales” means the gross amount invoiced on sales by Purchaser, Opko Health, the Companies, their Affiliates or licensees of
CTAPI101 Capsules, less the following deductions with respect to the sale of such Company Products: (i) normal trade, cash and quantity
discounts and other customary discounts actually given to customers in the ordinary course of business; (ii) rebates, credits and allowances
given by reason of rejections, returns, damaged or defective product or recalls; (iii) government-mandated rebates and any other
compulsory payments, credits, adjustments and rebates actually paid or deducted; (iv) price adjustments, allowances, credits, chargeback
payments, discounts, rebates, fees, reimbursements or similar payments granted to managed care organizations, group purchasing
organizations or other buying groups, pharmacy benefit management companies, health maintenance organizations and any other providers
of health insurance coverage, health care organizations or other health care institutions (including hospitals), health care administrators or
patient assistance or other similar programs, or to federal, state/provincial, local and other governments, including their agencies, or to
wholesalers, distributors or other trade customers; (v) reasonable and customary freight, shipping, insurance and other transportation
expenses, if actually borne by the Companies, their Affiliates or licensees without reimbursement from any third party; (vi) sales, value-
added, excise Taxes, tariffs and duties, and other Taxes and government charges directly related to the
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sale, delivery or use of Company Products (but not including Taxes assessed directly against the income derived from such sale) net of any
credits or allowances received by the Companies, their Affiliates or licensees with respect to such Taxes or charges; and (vii) amounts
previously included in Net Sales of Company Products that are written off as uncollectible after reasonable collection efforts, in accordance
with standard practices of the applicable party.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, for purposes of calculating Net Sales, the transfer of Company Products
between or among the Companies, their Affiliates and licensees will not be considered a sale. “Net Sales” will include the cash
consideration received on a sale and the fair market value of all non-cash consideration. Disposition of Company Products for, or use of the
Company Products in, clinical trials or other scientific testing, as free samples, or under compassionate use, patient assistance, or test
marketing programs or other similar programs or studies where Company Products are supplied, without charge shall not result in any Net
Sales, provided, however, that if the Companies, their Affiliates or licensees charge for such Company Products, the amount billed will be
included in the calculation of Net Sales.

“Non-Competition Agreements” means non-competition agreements in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto.

“Opko Shares” means the Closing Shares and the Earn-Out Shares.

“Opko Milestone Trading Value” means the volume-weighted average price per share of Opko Common Stock as reported by the
New York Stock Exchange (or such other U.S. national exchange system or market quotation system (including NASDAQ) on which Opko
is then listed) for the ten (10) trading days immediately preceding (i) the achievement of such Milestone (in the case of the Milestones set
forth in Section 1.3(a)-(c)) or (ii) the earlier of the completion of the audit of Opko Health’s annual financial statements for the applicable
calendar year and the 105t day after the end of such calendar year (in the case of the Milestones set forth in Section 1.3(d)).

“Order” means any order, directive, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling, writ, assessment or award, including any arbitration award
issued or granted by a Governmental Body.

“Permit” means any approval, consent, license, certificate, accreditation, permit, waiver, or other authorization issued, granted, given,
or otherwise made available by or under the authority of any Governmental Body or pursuant to Law.

“Permitted Liens” means (i) liens for real estate Taxes not yet due and payable or being contested in good faith by appropriate
procedures as disclosed herein and for which there are adequate accruals or reserves on the Balance Sheet, and (ii) liens arising under
equipment leases with third parties set forth in Section 3.10(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, which were entered into in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practices which are not, individually or in the aggregate, material to the Business or the assets of the
Companies or Seller.
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“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, firm, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated
organization, Governmental Body or other entity, and the executors, administrators or other legal representatives of an individual in such
capacity.

“Personal Information” means information about an identifiable individual as defined in Privacy Law.

“Privacy Law” means the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act (Canada), the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) and any comparable Law of any other jurisdiction.

“Release” means any actual or threatened release, spill, emission, leaking, pumping, injection, deposit, disposal, discharge, dispersal,
migration or leaching into the indoor or outdoor environment, or into or out of any property.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Securities Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Seller Transaction Expenses” means any and all legal, accounting, consulting, investment advisory, brokers and other fees, costs and
expenses of any Seller Party or any Company relating to the transactions contemplated hereby.

“Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, any corporation, partnership, association, trust or other form of legal entity of which
(1) more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of the outstanding voting securities are directly or indirectly owned by such Person or
(i) such Person or any Subsidiary of such Person is a general partner (excluding partnerships in which such party or any Subsidiary of such
Person does not have a majority of the voting interests in such partnership).

“Tax” or “Taxes” means any supranational, national, federal, state, provincial, local or foreign income, alternative minimum,
accumulated earnings, personal holding company, branch, transfer, franchise, capital stock, net worth, capital, capital gains, profits,
windfall profits, gross receipts, value added, sales, use, goods and services, harmonized sales, excise, customs duties, transfer, conveyance,
mortgage, registration, stamp, documentary, recording, premium, severance, environmental (including taxes under Section 59A of the Code
or any analogous or similar provision of any state, local or foreign Law or regulation), real property, personal property, ad valorem,
intangibles, unclaimed property, rent, occupancy, license, occupational, employment, unemployment insurance, social security, disability,
workers’ compensation, payroll, health care, withholding, estimated or other similar tax, duty or other governmental charge or assessment
or deficiencies thereof, and any installments in respect thereof, and including any interest, penalties or additions to tax attributable to the
foregoing, and whether disputed or not. “Tax” or “Taxes” also includes any liability for Taxes of any other Person pursuant to applicable
law, any agreement or otherwise, including liability arising as a result of being or ceasing to be a member of any affiliated group, or being
included or required to be included in any Tax Return relating thereto.
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“Tax Return” means any return, report, declaration, election, notice, form, claim for refund or information return or statement relating
to Taxes, including any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendment thereof.

“Termination Date” means July 8, 2013.

“Transaction Documents” means, with respect to any Person, this Agreement together with any other agreements, instruments,
certificates and documents executed by such Person in connection herewith or therewith or in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby.

“Transaction Personal Information” means any Personal Information in the possession, custody or control of the Companies or the
Selling Parties at the Closing Date, including Personal Information about employees, suppliers, customers, directors, officers or
shareholders of the Companies that is:

(a) disclosed to the Purchaser or any representative of the Purchaser prior to the Closing Date by the Selling Parties, the
Companies or their respective representatives or otherwise; or

(b) collected by the Purchaser or any representative of the Purchaser prior to the Closing Date from the Selling Parties, the
Companies, any of their respective representatives or otherwise,

in either case in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Agreement.

“Treasury Regulations” means the regulations promulgated under the Code, including temporary and proposed regulations.

“WARN” means the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, as amended.

(b) Each of the following terms is defined in the Section set forth opposite such term:

Term Section
Agreement Preamble
Balance Sheet 3.5(a)
Balance Sheet Date 3.5(a)
Basket 7.5(a)
Blue Sky Laws 2.6
Cayman Newco Preamble
Cayman Newco Shares Preamble
Cayman Newco Transfer 5.13(b)
Closing 1.1(a)
Closing Date 1.2
Closing Shares 1.1(b)(1)
commercially reasonable efforts 1.3(f)
Commission 4.7
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Companies

Company ERISA Affiliate
Contracts

Conversion

CTAP101 NDA
Development
Development Shares
Disclosure Schedule
Earn-Out Consideration
Earn-Out Payment
Earn-Out Shares
Earn-Out Value
Employee Benefit Plans
Environmental Permits
ERISA

Final Milestone Date
Financial Statements
GST/HST

Holdings

Human Testing Authorization
Indemnified Party
Indemnifying Party
Intellectual Property Licenses
Leased Properties

Losses

Multiemployer Plans
Multiple Employer Plans
Opko Closing Value
Opko Common Stock
Opko Health

Owned Intellectual Property
Parent

Parent Shareholder Approval
Parties

Party

Payables

Personal Property Leases
Product Candidates
Proventiv

Proventiv Contribution
Proventiv Interests
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Preamble
3.13(a)
3.12(a)
5.13(d)
1.3(a)
Preamble
Preamble
9.11

1.3

1.3

1.3
1.3(a), 1.3(b), 1.3(c), 1.3(d)
3.13(a)
3.17(a)
3.13(a)
1.3(d)
3.5(a)
5.13(b)
Preamble
3.20(¢c)
7.3(a)
7.3(a)
3.11(b)
3.9(b)
7.1
3.13(a)
3.13(a)
1.1(b)(i)
1.1(b)(3)
Preamble
3.11(a)
Preamble
5.18
Preamble
Preamble
5.14
3.10(a)
3.20(c)
Preamble
5.13(e)
Preamble



Purchaser Preamble

Purchaser Disclosure Schedule 9.11
Purchaser Indemnitees 7.1
Purchaser’s Agents 5.2(a)
QST 5.13(b)
Qualified Plans 3.13(c)
Real Property Laws 3.9(c)
Real Property Lease 3.9(b)
Restructuring 5.13(e)
Restructuring Consents 5.13(j)
SEC Reports 4.7
Seller Preamble
Seller Parties Preamble
Shareholder Approval 6.1(d)
Shareholder Meeting 5.18
Shares Preamble
SPA 1.3(a)
Straddle Period 5.8(c)
Systems 3.25
Third Party Claim 7.3(a)
Third Party Claims 7.3(a)
Transaction Consideration 1.1(b)
Transactional Representation 7.4

Section 9.2 Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each of the Parties shall bear its own fees, costs and expenses
(including legal, accounting, consulting and investment advisory fees and expenses) incurred in connection with this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and subject to Sections 5.8(b) and 5.13(b), all transfer, documentary,
sales, use, stamp, registration and other such Taxes, and all conveyance fees, recording charges and other fees and charges (including any
penalties and interest) incurred in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be paid by
Seller or another Seller Party.

Section 9.3 Governing Law: Jurisdiction; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal
laws of the state of Florida (without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the state of Florida or any
other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the state of Florida). Each of the Parties
submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal court within Miami-Dade County in the state of Florida in any action or
proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement and agrees that all claims in respect of the action or proceeding shall be exclusively
heard and determined in any such court. The Parties hereby irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, any
objection which they may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such dispute brought in such court. Each of the Parties
waives any defense of inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any action or proceeding so brought.

66



Section 9.4 Entire Agreement; Amendments and Waivers. This Agreement (including the schedules and exhibits hereto) represents
the entire understanding and agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and can be amended, supplemented or
changed, and any provision hereof can be waived, only by written instrument making specific reference to this Agreement signed by
Purchaser and Opko Health, in the case of an amendment, supplement, modification or waiver sought to be enforced against Purchaser or
Opko Health, or the Seller Parties and the Companies, in the case of an amendment, supplement, modification or waiver sought to be
enforced against Seller Parties or the Companies. The waiver by any Party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate
or be construed as a further or continuing waiver of such breach or as a waiver of any other or subsequent breach. No failure on the part of
any Party to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any
single or partial exercise of such right, power or remedy by such Party preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any
other right, power or remedy. All remedies hereunder are cumulative and are not exclusive of any other remedies provided by Law.

Section 9.5 Section Headings. The section headings of this Agreement are for reference purposes only and are to be given no effect in
the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 9.6 Notices. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given by personal
delivery, nationally recognized overnight courier or certified mail at the following addresses (or to such other address as a Party may have
specified by notice given to the other Party pursuant to this provision):

If to a Seller Party:

100 Allstate Parkway
Suite 600

Markham, ON L3R 6H3
Canada

Attention: ***

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Aird & Berlis LLP
Brookfield Place

181 Bay Street, Suite 1800
Toronto, Ontario, Canada
MS5J 2T9

Attention: Richard Kimel
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If to Purchaser or Opko Health, to:

Opko Health, Inc.

4400 Biscayne Boulevard
Suite 1500

Miami, Florida 33137
Attention: Kate Inman, Deputy
General Counsel

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Akerman Senterfitt

One Southeast Third Ave., Suite 2500
Miami, FL 33131

Attention: Teddy D. Klinghoffer, Esq.
and Mary V. Carroll, Esq.

Any such notice or communication shall be deemed to have been received (i) when delivered, if personally delivered, (ii) on the next
Business Day after dispatch, if sent postage pre-paid by nationally recognized, overnight courier guaranteeing next Business Day delivery,
and (iii) on the fifth (5th) Business Day following the date on which the piece of mail containing such communication is posted, if sent by
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.

Section 9.7 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the balance of this Agreement shall
remain in effect. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Parties shall negotiate in
good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the Parties as closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner
in order that the transactions contemplated hereby be consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent possible.

Section 9.8 Binding Effect; Assignment; Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns; provided, however, that, except as provided in Section 1.3(i), no
Party may assign its rights and/or obligations hereunder without the consent of the other Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser
and Opko Health may assign its respective rights and obligations pursuant to this Agreement, in whole or in part, in connection with any
disposition or transfer of all or any portion of Purchaser, Opko Health, the Companies or their respective businesses in any form of
transaction without the consent of any of the other Parties. In addition, each of Purchaser and Opko Health may assign any or all of its
rights pursuant to this Agreement to any lender to Purchaser or Opko Health or the Companies as collateral security without the consent of
any of the other Parties. Except as provided in ARTICLE VII with respect to Persons entitled to indemnification thereunder, nothing in this
Agreement shall create or be deemed to create any third party beneficiary rights in any Person.
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Section 9.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original
but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this
Agreement by facsimile, portable document format or other electronic means shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed
counterpart to this Agreement.

Section 9.10 Remedies Cumulative. Except as otherwise provided herein, no remedy herein conferred upon a Party hereto is intended
to be exclusive of any other remedy. No single or partial exercise by a Party hereto of any right, power or remedy hereunder shall preclude
any other or further exercise thereof. Purchaser Indemnitees may, at Purchaser’s election, set-off against any amounts due to any Seller
Party or any of their respective Affiliates, any Losses or other amounts for which such Seller Party (or any Affiliate thereof) may be
responsible to pay to such Purchaser Indemnitees.

Section 9.11 Exhibits and Schedules. The exhibits and schedules referred to herein are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference. The disclosure schedule delivered by Seller Parties and the Companies to Purchaser and Opko Health in connection with the
execution of this Agreement (the “Disclosure Schedule”) and by Purchaser to the Seller Parties in connection with the execution of this
Agreement (the “Purchaser Disclosure Schedule”) shall be arranged to correspond to the specific sections and subsections of this
Agreement. Any matter which is disclosed in any Section of the Disclosure Schedule or Purchaser Disclosure Schedule will be deemed to
be disclosed in each other Section of the Disclosure Schedule or Purchaser Disclosure Schedule and to qualify any representation or
warranty made in this Agreement by Seller Parties on the one hand and Purchaser on the other hand to the extent that it is reasonably
apparent on the face of such disclosure that it is relevant or applicable to such other Section or representation or warranty. Nothing in the
Disclosure Schedule or Purchaser Disclosure Schedule will be deemed adequate to disclose an exception to a representation or warranty
made herein, unless the Disclosure Schedule or Purchaser Disclosure Schedule, as applicable, identifies the exception with particularity and
describes the relevant facts in detail. The mere listing (or inclusion of a copy) of a document or other item in the Disclosure Schedule or
Purchaser Disclosure Schedule, as applicable, will not be deemed adequate to disclose an exception to a representation or warranty made in
this Agreement (unless the representation or warranty pertains to the existence of the document or other item itself). The Parties hereto
intend that each representation, warranty and covenant contained herein will have independent significance. If any Party hereto has
breached any representation, warranty, or covenant contained herein in any respect, the fact that there exists another representation,
warranty, or covenant relating to the same subject matter (regardless of the relative levels of specificity) which the Party has not breached
will not detract from or mitigate the fact that the Party is in breach of the first representation, warranty or covenant.

Section 9.12 Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to an article, section, paragraph, clause, schedule or exhibit,
such reference shall be deemed to be to this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The text of all schedules is incorporated herein by
reference. Whenever the words “include,” “includes” or “including” are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the
words “without limitation.” As used herein, words in the singular will be held to include the plural and vice versa (unless the context
otherwise requires), words of one gender shall be held to include the other gender (or the neuter) as the context requires, and the terms
“hereof”, “herein”, and “herewith” and words of similar import will, unless otherwise stated, be construed to refer to this Agreement as a

whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement.
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Section 9.13 Arm’s Length Negotiations. Each Party herein expressly represents and warrants to all other Parties hereto that (a) said
Party has had the opportunity to seek and has obtained the advice of its own legal, tax and business advisors before executing this
Agreement; and (b) this Agreement is the result of arm’s length negotiations conducted by and among the Parties and their respective
counsel.

Section 9.14 Construction. The Parties agree and acknowledge that they have jointly participated in the negotiation and drafting of
this Agreement. In the event of an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted
jointly by the Parties and no presumptions or burdens of proof shall arise favoring any Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the
provisions of this Agreement. Any reference to any federal, state, local, or foreign statute or Law shall be deemed also to refer to all rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder, unless the context requires otherwise.

Section 9.15 Specific Performance. The Parties agree that irreparable damage would occur if any provision of this Agreement were
not performed by Purchaser, Opko Health, the Seller Parties or the Companies in accordance with the specific terms hereof or were
otherwise breached by Purchaser, Opko Health, Seller Parties or the Companies as applicable. It is accordingly agreed that a Party shall be
entitled, without posting a bond or similar indemnity, to an injunction or other equitable relief to prevent breaches of this Agreement or to
enforce specifically the performance of the terms. Each of Purchaser, Opko Health, Seller Party and each Company agrees that it will not
oppose the granting of an injunction, specific performance and other equitable relief when expressly available pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement on the basis that Purchaser or Opko Health has an adequate remedy at law or an award of specific performance is not an
appropriate remedy for any reason at law or equity.

Section 9.16 Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL
RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, ANY
OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY.

Section 9.17 Time of Essence. With regard to all dates and time periods set forth or referred to in this Agreement, time is of the
essence.

* %ok k%
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Share Purchase Agreement has been executed by or on behalf of each of the Parties as of the day first
written above.

PURCHASER:

OPKO IP HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Adam Logal

Name: Adam Logal
Title: Treasurer

OPKO HEALTH:

OPKO HEALTH, INC.

By: /s/ Juan F. Rodriguez

Name: Juan F. Rodriguez
Title: Senior Vice President, CFO
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SELLER:

CYTOCHROMA INC.

By: /s/ Charles W. Bishop

Name: Charles W. Bishop
Title:

HOLDINGS:

CYTOCHROMA HOLDINGS ULC

By: /s/ Charles W. Bishop

Name: Charles W. Bishop
Title:

PARENT:

CYTOCHROMA CANADA INC.

By: /s/ Charles W. Bishop

Name: Charles W. Bishop
Title:

COMPANIES:

CYTOCHROMA DEVELOPMENT INC.

By: /s/ Charles W. Bishop

Name: Charles W. Bishop
Title:

PROVENTIV THERAPEUTICS, LLC

By: /s/ Charles W. Bishop

Name: Charles W. Bishop
Title:
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CYTOCHROMA CAYMAN ISLANDS, LTD.

By: /s/ Charles W. Bishop

Name: Charles W. Bishop
Title:



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Phillip Frost, certify that:
(1) Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of OPKO Health, Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 10, 2013 /s/ Dr. Phillip Frost, M.D.

Dr. Phillip Frost, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Juan F. Rodriguez, certify that:
(1) Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of OPKO Health, Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 10, 2013 /s/ Juan F. Rodriguez

Juan F. Rodriguez
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 73 of Title 18, United States Code)

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, Phillip Frost, Chief Executive
Officer of OPKO Health, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify that:

The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 10, 2013

/s/ Dr. Phillip Frost, M.D.
Dr. Phillip Frost, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 73 of Title 18, United States Code)

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, Juan F. Rodriguez, Chief
Financial Officer of OPKO Health, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify that:

The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 10, 2013

/s/ Juan F. Rodriguez

Juan F. Rodriguez
Chief Financial Officer
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